


Founded in 1923 ai headquarteied in St Paul Minn Ecolab serves

customers more than 170 countries across Nortt America Europe

Asia Pacific Latin America the ddle East and Africa

Our global workfor of 1OOO associates helps protect people

and vital resources by delivering omprehensive solutions to meet

the unique reeds of custcmei in he food energy nealtncare

hosptality and industrial markets Ecolabs more than 23000

salesandservice associa es comprise the industry largest and

best trained direct sales ndserv cc force Our product and service

professionals are dedicated to assisting customers as they meet

full range of caning sanitizing and water and energy

management chalknges

Ecolab common stock is sted and traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol ECL For more company information

vist www ecolab.com 1.800.2.ECOLAB

Customer Segments
Amusement parks

Biofuel producton facilities

Breweries and distilleries

Chemical production facilties

Commercial bu Idings

Convenience stores

Cruise lines

Dairy farms and plants

Energy oil and gas producton

Food processors

Food retail locations

Foodservice operators

Full service restaurants

Gaming facilities

Government fac lities

Grain milling facilities

Heavy manufacturing industries

Hospitals and healthcare

facilities

Hotels and lodging

Laundries and textile rental

Light manufacturing industries

Mining and mineral processing

Natural gas processing

Office buldings

Personal care and

pharmaceutical facilit es

Powei generation facilites

Pulp and paper production

Quick service restaurants

Recreational facilities

Schools and educational

facilities

Shopping malls

Soft drink bottlers

Wastewater treatment facilities

ForwarLooking Statements and Risk Factors

We refer readers to the companys disclosuie entitled Forwand

Looking Statements and Risk Factors which located on page 27

of this Annual Report

Percent of Total Sales

27

Salesand Service Associates

US caning San tiznrg

U.S Other Services

tnt Cleaning San tizing Ott ei Serv ces

obal Water Global Paper

Global Energy

TOTAL

75 4680

2470 2385

7505 7330

540S 25

2370 2060

22525 21730

18



Summary
Net Sales

Net Income Attributable

to Ecolab

Ecolab Stock Performance Comparison

Diluted Net Income Attributable

to Ecolab per Share

SO0 Fndex

Ecolab Stock Perform3nce
Dividends Declared per Share
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STRATEGIC ACQUISITIONS

We increased capabilities within our core business areas by making

additional strategic acquisitions and sharpening our focus on

our core businesses We acquired Quimiproductos S.A de CV
leading manufacturer and provider of cleaning and sanitizing and

water treatment products and services to beverage and brewery

customers in Mexico and several Central and South American

countries and lnsetCenter leader in Brazils pest control market

We sold our Vehicle Care business healthy business with excellent

growth prospects but no longer fit with our long-term strategy

In October we announced our intention to acquire Champion

Technologies and related business CorsiTech with combined

2012 sales of approximately $1.4 billion The Champion organization

is leading global oilfield production chemical company with an

exceptional reputation and natural fit for our Global Energy

business We expect the deal which remains subject to various

closing conditions to close in the first quarter of 2013

Increased demand for energy has made harder-to-reach harder-to-

treat energy sources economically viable Many of the new energy

sources require more technology and water treatment solutions

creating tremendous opportunities By combining our Global Energy

business with Champion we will have more comprehensive

portfolio of products more strategic geographic presence broader

customer relationships and the ability to bring larger pipeline

of innovative offerings to customers faster We expect to apply

what weve learned about successful integration from our Nalco

experience as we bring Champion and the Nalco energy teams

together this coming year

OUTLOOK FOR 2013

Going forward we recognize that we will continue to face

weak economic conditions globally To continue to excel in this

environment we will rely on the same strategies and tactics that

have generated our companys consistent above-average growth

for decades

We will keep innovating to drive better more efficient and more

sustainable solutions that help our customers succeed and drive

competitive advantage

We will build share with our largest global customers expanding

the solutions we offer and increasing our value to them

We will invest in building our business in high-growth global

markets bringing the right people products and infrastructure

together to assure we grow the right way for the long term

We will better manage our costs streamlining our corporate

functions creating new ways to do things more effectively and

efficiently while enhancing our execution

We will stay focused on improving cash flow and return on

investment with the expectation of returning to A-level

credit metrics

We will increase our focus on safety continuing to build

common safety culture and improving our performance

We will continue to come together as one company under the

One Ecolab banner

We aim to deliver great results We know thats an easier goal to

achieve with great team and we have one Our talented and

dedicated leadership team and field organizations are committed to

delivering for customers for each other and for our shareholders

Throughout our company were embracing an own it mindset

clarifying expectations and roles identifying who does what best

being accountable and owning outcomes

As part of our integration process we globalized our core divisions

and standardized our approach across our businesses and around

the world Moving to more global structure enables us to be more

responsive to changing market conditions eliminates redundancies

in our goto-market and back-office processes and creates better

platform for managing customer relationships

The much larger size and scope of our global business and our need

to continually sharpen our product and service value proposition

for customers requires additional senior-level oversight so have

named Tom Handley president and chief operating officer Tom

is an exceptional executive and great partner to all of us on the

executive team Seven of our eight business sectors now report to

Tom Global Energy will continue to report to me

As we move into this next phase of our growth Ecolabs values will

continue to guide us because we know that our work matters and

how we work matters too Our goal is to ensure that we continue to

lead and are able to deliver exceptional results in all four areas of

our vision providing and protecting what is vital clean water safe

food abundant energy and healthy environments We are incredibly

excited about our growth prospects and our ability to make real

difference and we are respectful of the trust our shareholders have

put in us

Sincerely

Douglas Baker Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ecolab Annual Report 2012
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Operating Segments

Ecolab pursues Circle the Customer Circle the Globe strategy by providing an array of

innovative cleaning sanitizing and water treatment programs products and services which meet

the specific needs of our customers various operations around the world Through this strategy

and our varied product and service mix one customer may utilize the products or services of

several of our six reportable segments

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing

Provides cleaning and sanitizing

programs and products that help our

customers ensure safe food improve

productivity and reduce water and

energy consumption and waste

through five operating units including

Institutional Food Beverage Kay

Healthcare and Textile Care Ecolabs U.S Cleaning

Sanitizing products and programs can be found

in leading commercial kitchens on-premise and

industrial laundries food and beverage processing

facilities quick service restaurants food retailers

healthcare facilities and pool and spa operations

Global Water

Provides water and process

applications that combine

environmental benefits with

economic gains including

innovative treatment of cooling

water boiler water influent

and wastewater and practical solutions for pollution

control and process improvements for customers

in the aerospace chemical pharmaceutical mining

primary metals power food and beverage medium

and light manufacturing industries as well as

institutional clients such as hospitals universities

commercial buildings and hotels

ECOLAB

U.S Other Services

Provides comprehensive

pest elimination and

equipment care programs to

customers through certified

specialists Our Pest Elimination business provides

services to detect eliminate and prevent pests in

restaurants food and beverage plants hotels and

other commercial facilities Our Equipment Care

business provides equipment repair maintenance and

preventive maintenance services for the commercial

food service industry

International Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services

Provides innovative and

comprehensive product and

service solutions similar to our

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing and

U.S Other Services businesses

to customers in Canada Europe Asia Pacific Latin

America Africa and the Middle East Our International

Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services businesses

incude Institutional Food and Beverage Healthcare

Textile Care and Kay which provide cleaning and

sanitizing programs to reduce labor and water and

energy use and Pest Elimination which provides

products and programs through certified specialists

Global Paper

Provides comprehensive

portfolio of water treatment

products and process

solutions for use in pulp and papermaking processes

and across all grades of paper including graphic

grades board and packaging and tissue and towel

Our pulp applications maximize process efficiency

increase cleanliness and brightness in bleaching

operations and predict and monitor scaling potential

Our paper process applications include innovative

chemistries and detailed process knowledge to develop

and implement broad range of customer solutions

Global Energy

Provides on-site technology-

driven solutions to the global

well completion and stimulation

oil and gas production refining

and petrochemical industries

Global Energy is divided into

Upstream which includes the Adomite Oil Field

Chemicals and Enhanced Oil Recovery businesses

and Downstream which includes our refinery and

petrochemical processing businesses Global Energy

provides full range of process and water treatment

offerings to enhance customers production

asset integrity recovery rates and environmental

compliance Our customers comprise nearly all of the

largest publicly traded oil companies refiners and

oilfield service companies

Ecolab Annual Report 2012



Managements Discussion Analysis

The following management discussion and analysis MDA
provides informaticn that we believe is useful in understanding our

operating results cash flows and financial condition The discussion

should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial

information and related notes included in this Annual Report and

the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income

for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and corresponding

footnotes the 2011 Merger Pro Formas included as part of

Exhibit 99.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27

2012 The 2011 Merger Pro Formas are incorporated herein by

reference

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America U.S GAAP This discussion contains various Non-GAAP

Financial Measures and various Forward-Looking Statements

within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995 We refer readers to the information on Non-GAAP Financial

Measures Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors found on

pages 26 and 27

Comparability of Results

2012 versus 2011

On December 2011 Nalco Holding Company Nalco merged into

wholly-owned subsidiary of Ecolab Inc Ecolab the company
we or our creating the global leader in water hygiene and

energy technologies and services that provide and protect clean

water safe food abundant energy and healthy environments

Our results of operations include Nalco since the close of the

merger on December 2011 Because Nalcos operations had such

significant impact on our operations comparison of our reported

results for the twelve months ended December 31 2012 against our

reported results for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 is

not entirely meanintul In order to provide meaningful comparison

of our results of operations where applicable generally net sales

through operating income we have supplemented our historical

financial data with discussion and analysis that compares reported

and adjusted results for the twelve months ended December 31 2012

against the 2011 Merger Pro Formas

The 2011 Merger Pro Formas are based on the historical consolidated

financial statements and accompanying notes of both Ecolab and

Nalco and were prepared to illustrate the effects of our merger with

Nalco assuming the merger had been consummated on January

2010 The 2011 Merger Pro Formas also include the movement of

certain legacy Ecolab water treatment related businesses from the

U.S Cleaning Santizing and International Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services reportable segments to the Global Water reportable

segment which resulted from changes in how we internally manage

and report results within our legacy Ecolab Food Beverage and

Asia Pacific operating units The movement of the water treatment

related business did not significantly impact year-over-year

comparability therefore prior year reported segment information

has not been restated to reflect this change

The unaudited 2012 adjusted results and 2011 adjusted pro forma

results exclude special gains and charge items that are unusual in

nature and significant in amount The exclusion of such items help

provide better understanding of underlying business performance

The unaudited pro forma and adjusted pro forma results are not

necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have

actually occurred had the merger been completed as of the date

indicated nor are they indicative of future operating results of the

combined company

Reported data for both 2012 and 2011 and comparison against

applicable unaudited pro forma data for 2011 included within this

MDA are shown in the following tables Reconciliations of reported

pro torma adjusted and pro forma adjusted amounts are provided

on pages 14-18 of this MDA
Selected Statement of Income Data

MILLIONS

Net sales

Cost of sales

Selling general and

administrative expenses

Special gains and chares

Operating income

Special Gains and Charges

REPORTED REPORTE PRO rORMA

MILLIONS 2012 2011 2011

Net sales

Customer agreement

modification 29.6 29.6

Cost of sales

Restructuring charges 22.7 5.3 5.3

Recognition of Nalco inventory

fair value step-up 71.2 3.6 3.6

Subtotal 93.9 8.9 8.9

Special gains and charges

Restructuring charges 116.6 69.0 77.9

Champion acquisition costs 18.3

Nalco merger and integration costs 70.9 57.7 34.0

Gain on sales of businesses

litigation related charges and other 60.1 4.3 131.7

Subtotal 145.7 131.0 19.8

Total special gains and charges

within operating espense 239.6 169.5 18.7

Reportable Segments

REPORTED REPORTED PRO FORMA

MILLIONS 2012 2011 2011

Net sales

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing 2992.9 2930.3 2839.0
U.S Other Services 474.6 457.1 457.1

International Cleaning

Sanitizing Other Services 3175.8 30751 3027.4
Global Water 2087.4 67.2 2014.0
Global Paper 805.4 33.9 811.8

Global Energy 2268.0 92.3 1873.4

Corporate 29.6 29.6

Subtotal at fixed currency rates 11804.1 6626.3 10993.1

Effect of foreign currency

translation 34.6 172.2 290.8

Consolidated $11838.7 6798.5 $11283.9

Operating Income

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing 651.4 556.7 568.5

U.S Other Services 70.8 69.7 69.7

International Cleaning

Sanitizing Other Services 340.8 285.8 280.3

Global Water 235.9 11.0 196.7

Global Paper 86.3 6.2 75.9

Global Energy 360.1 17.7 264.0

Corporate 459.9 211.6 226.6
Subtotal at fixed currency rates 1285.4 735.5 1228.5

Effect of foreign currency

translation 3.9 18.3 28.2

Consolidated 1289.3 753.8 1256.7

2011 versus 2010

Based on the December 2011 completion of the Nalco merger one

month of legacy Nalco U.S subsidiary activity was included in the

REPORTED REPORTED PRO FORMA

2011 20112012

11838.7

6483.5

3920.2

145.7

1289.3

6798.5

3475.6

24381

131.0

753.8

11283.9

6126.4

3920.6

19.8

1256.7
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consolidated Ecolab results during 2011 Consistent with our historical

practice International subsidiaries are included in the financial

statements on the basis of their U.S GAAP November 30 fiscal year-

ends

In order to provide the most meaningful comparisons of 2011 results

of operations versus 2010 results of operations where applicable

comparisons made throughout the MDA of 2011 results against 2010

results have been presented excluding the 2011 post merger Nalco

activity In addition the unaudited 2011 and 2010 adjusted results

exclude special gains and charge items that are unusual in nature

and significant in amount The exclusion of such items help provide

better understanding of underlying business performance

Reconciliations of reported and adjusted amounts are provided on

pages 14-22 of this MDA

Fixed Currency Foreign Exchange Rates

We evaluate he performance of our international operations based

on fixed currency exchange rates which eliminate the impact of

exchange rate fluctuations on our international operations Fixed

currency amounts for all years presented are updated annually based

on translation into U.S dollars at fixed foreign currency exchange

rates established by management at the beginning of 2012

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2012 Ecolab significantly outpaced continued mixed conditions

in our end markets to deliver strong double-digit adjusted earnings

growtn We also made key investments in growth drivers for the

future and as hieved another year of outstanding shareholder returns

We realized strong fixed currency organic growth as our teams

emphasized our innovative product and service strengths to help

customers obtain better results and lower costs and through these

we drove new account gains across our customer segments We

continued to implement appropriate price increases to help offset

higher delivered product costs and investments in our business We

also used new products cost efficiencies and merger synergies to

leverage margins and deliver the strong earnings gain

Global hospitality markets continued to show improving trends and

food arid beverage and healthcare were generally steady while

foodservice markets in the U.S and Europe remained soft Regionally

Latin America continued to show very good growth the U.S and

Asia Pacific showed steady trends and Europe softened Global

indusfnial end markets showed improving trends light
end markets

were mixed arid mining slowed throughout the year Regionally all

water markes showed steady trends in the Americas and Asia Pacific

and general softness in Europe Middle East and Africa EMEA
paper end markets remained soft especially in the U.S and Asia

Pacific Energy upstream end markets were strong in the Americas

the Middle East and Africa MEA and North Sea and downstream

end markets were steady globally Within this backdrop we continued

to focus on criving our sales working to expand our shares in all

markets and regions investing in new product development that

provide outstanding results and enable customers to save labor

water and energy making smart investments to sustain our growth in

the future slrengthening our safety culture and employing strategic

acquisitions to bolster the current business and to develop new areas

of growth

We also made important investments for the future including

announcing the creation of new organization model to support

global growth developing common employee benefits and other key

policies and mapping global shared services organization model

We announced our intent to make major investment in the energy

market with the pending acquisition of Champion Technologies

and its related company Corsicana Technologies Icollectively

Champion Chamsion is Houston Texas-based global energy

specialty products and services company with approximately 3300

employees in more han 30 countries delivering product and service-

based offerings to the oil and gas industry Champions sales for the

business to be acqu red were approximately S1.4 billion in 2012 The

Champion acquisiticn remains subject to various closing conditions

Through these focused actions we once again delivered outstanding

results for our shareholders in 2012 while building opportunity for

the future Our perfcrmance underscored the strength and long term

potential of our bus ness our people and our strategies

Sales Reported 20 sales of $11.8 billion increased 74% compared

to reported 2011 salss of $6.8 billion and 5% compared to 2011

pro forma sales of $11.3 billion Sales were negatively impacted by

foreign currency exnhange compared to the prior year as 2012

fixed currency saies increased 7% when compared to 2011 adlusted

pro forma fixed currency sales See the section entitled Non-GAAP

Financial Measures on page 26 for further information on our Non

GAAP measures the Net Sales table on page 14 and the Sales by

Reportable Segment tables on page 19

Gross Margin Our eported gross margin was 45.2% of sales for

2012 which compared against 2011 reported gross margin of 48.9%

and 2011 pro forma gross margin of 45.7% Excluding the impact of

special gains and barges included in sales from 2011 and in cost of

sales from both 2012 and 2011 our 2012 adjusted gross margin was

46.0% and our 201 pro forma adjusted gross margin was 45.9%

See the section ent.tled Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 26

for further information on our Non-GAAP measures and the Gross

Margin table on pace 14

Operating Income Reported operating income increased 7f%

to $1289 million in 2012 when compared to $754 million in 2011

Reported 2012 operating income increased 3% when compared

to 2011 pro forma operating income of $1257 million Excluding

the impact of specLrl gains and charges from 2012 reported

operating income and from 2011 pro forma operating income 2012

adjusted operating income increased 2O% when compared against

2011 adjusted pro forma operating income Foreign currency had

negative impact on operating income growth as 2012 adjusted

fixed currency operating income irmcreased 22% when compared to

2011 adjusted pro fcrma fixed currency operating income See the

section entitled Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 26 for further

information on our Non-GAAP measures the Operating Income table

on page 17 and Opcrating Income by Reportable Segment tables on

pages 21 and 22

Earnings Per Share Reported diluted earnings per share increased

23% to $2.35 in 2012 compared to $1.91 in 2011 Special gainsl

and charges had significant impact on both years driven by

restructuring charges and Nalco integration costs incurred in both

2012 and 2011 Champion acquisition costs the gain on sale of our

Vehicle Care business and litigation
related charges in 2012 and

the modification of long-term customer agreement in 2011 Nalco

merger related activity also negatively impacted 2011 reported

diluted earnings per share Non-GAAP adjusted earnings per share

which exclude the iinpact of special gains and charges and discrete

tax items from both 2012 and 2011 and Nalco merger related activity

from 2011 increased 17% to $2.98 in 2012 compared to $2.54 in 2011

See the section entitled Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 26

for further information on our Norm-GAAP measures and the Diluted

Earnings Per Comnon Share EPS table on page 18

10 Elcolab Annual Report 2012



Cash Flow Cash flow from operating activities was $1.2 billion in

2012 We continued to generate strong cash flow from operations

allowing us to fund our ongoing operations investments in the

business acquisitions and pension obligations and return cash to our

shareholders through share repurchases and dividend payments

Balance Sheet We remain committed to our stated objective of

having an investment grade balance sheet supported by our current

rating of BBB/Baal by the major ratings agencies We expect to

return to ratings metrics by the end of 2015 Our strong balance

sheet has allowed us continued access to capital at attractive rates

Dividends We increased our quarterly cash dividend 15% in

December 2012 to an indicated annual rate of $0.92 per share

The increase represents our 21st consecutive annual dividend rate

increase and the 76th consecutive year we have paid cash dividends

We have achieved this outstanding dividend record through our

excellent business model and strong financial position and we

believe our recent actions have strengthened our growth prospects

cash flow and ability to deliver superior shareholder returns going

forward

Restructuring Initiatives In February 2011 we commenced

comprehensive plan to improve substantially the efficiency and

effectiveness of our European business sharpen its competitiveness

and accelerate its growth and profitability Despite the very slow

conditions in Euroce we grew our sales and expanded operating

margins benefiting from our work to leverage our scale improve

process efficiency consolidate facilities and simplify and enhance

our product portfolio We expect the restructuring activities related

to this plan will be substantially completed by the end of 2013

Following the completion of the Nalco merger we commenced plans

in January 2012 to undertake restructuring actions related to the

reduction of our global workforce and optimization of our supply

chain and office facilities We expect that restructuring activities

related to the Nalco merger will be substantially completed by the

end of 2013

Nalco Merger Integration The integration of Ecolab and Nalco

continues to be or track Our teams came together quickly and

smoothly meeting or beating all of our merger goals for the first

year Customer reaction to our combined offering was excellent

allowing us to be more confident than ever in the value we will

create through the merger We were also successful using joint

innovation proces to introduce several new products across our

legacy platforms

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance

with U.S GAAP We have adopted various accounting policies to

prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

U.S GAAP Our most significant accounting policies are disclosed in

Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity

with U.S GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes Estimates are considered to

be critical if they meet both of the following criteria the estimate

requires assumptions to be made about matters that are highly

uncertain at the time the accounting estimate is made and

different estimates that the company reasonably could have used

for the accounting estimate in the current period or changes in

the accounting estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from

period to period have material impact on the presentation of the

companys financial condition or results of operations

Besides estimates that meet the critical estimate criteria we

make many other accounting estimates in preparing our financial

statements and related disclosures All estimates whxther or not

deemed critical affect reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues or expenses as well as disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities Estimates are based on experience and other information

available prior to the issuance of the financial statements Materially

different results can occur as circumstances change and additional

information becomes known even from estimates not deemed

critical Our critical accounting estimates include the following

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue on product sales at the time evidence of an

arrangement exists title to the product and risk of 1o5s transfers

to the customer the price is fixed and determinable and collection

is reasonably assured We recognize revenue on services as they

are performed While we employ sales and service team to ensure

our customers needs are best met in high quality way the vast

majority of our revenue is generated from product saes Outside of

the service businesses discussed in Note 16 any other services are

either incidental to product sale and not sold separately or are

insignificant

Our sales policies do not provide for general rights of return Critical

estimates used in recognizing revenue include the delay between

the time that products are shipped when they are received by

customers when title transfers and the amount of credit memos

issued in subsequent periods We record estimated reductions

to revenue for customer programs and incentive offerings

including pricing arrangements promotions and other volume-

based incentives at the time the sale is recorded We also record

estimated reserves for anticipated uncollectible accounts and

for product returns and credits at the time of sale Depending on

market conditions we may increase customer incentive offerings

which could reduce gross profit margins at the time the incentive is

offered

Valuation Allowances and Accrued Liabilities

We estimate sales returns and allowances by analyzing historical

returns and credits and apply these trend rates to calculate

estimated reserves for future credits We estimate the allowance

for doubtful accounts by analyzing accounts receivable balances

by age and applying historical write-off and collection trend rates

In addition our estimates also include separately providing for

customer balances based on specific circumstances and credit

conditions and when it is deemed probable that the balance is

uncollectible Actual results could differ from these estimates under

different assumphons Our allowance for doubtful accounts balance

was $73 million and $49 million as of December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively These amounts include our allowance for sales returns

and credits of $13 million and $12 million as of Decemeer 31 2012

and 2011 respectively Our bad debt expense as percent of net

sales was 0.3% O.2% and O.3% in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

We believe that it is reasonably likely that future results will be

consistent with historical trends and experience However if the

financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate resulting

in an inability to make payments or if unexpected events economic

downturns or significant changes in future trends were to occur

additional allowances may be required

Our business and operations are subject to extensive environmental

laws and regulations governing among other things air emissions

wastewater discharges the use and handling of hazardous

substances waste disposal and the investigation and remediation

of soil and groundwater contamination As with other companies

engaged in similar manufacturing activities and providing similar

Ecolab Annual Report 2012 11



services sorre nsk of environmental liability is inherent in our

operations Estimates used to record liabilities related to pending

litigation and environmental claims are based on our best estimate

of probable future costs We record the amounts that represent

the points in he range of estimates that we believe are most

probable or the minimum amount when no amount within the range

is better estimate than any other amount Potential insurance

reimbursements generally are not anticipated in our accruals

for envronrnental liabilities or other insured losses Expected

insuracce prcceeds are recorded as receivables when recovery is

prohab Wh to the final resolution of litigation and environmental

contingencies could result in amounts different than current

accruals and therefore have an impact on our consolidated financial

resultr in future reporting period we believe the ultimate outcome

will not have sgnificant effect on our financial or liquidity position

Actuarially Determined Liabilities

As part of the merger with Nalco we assumed sponsorship of the

Nalco qualified and non-qualified pension and other postretirernent

benefi plans

The measurement of our pension and postretirement benefit

obligations are dependent on variety of assumptions determined

by management and used by our actuaries These assumpt ons

affect the amount and timing of future contribut ons and expenses

The assumptions used in developing the required estimates include

among otherr discount rate projected salary and health care

cost increase and expected return on assets The discount rate

assumptions for the U.S Plans are assessed using yield curve

constricted fom subset of bonds yielding greater than the median

return from population of non-callable corporate bond issues

rated Aa by Noodys Investor Services or AA by Standard Poors

The discount rate is calculated by matching the Plans projected

cash flows to the bond yield curve Projected salary and health care

cost increasee are based on our ong-term actual experience the

near-term outlook and assumed inflation The expected return on

plan assets reflects asset allocations investment strategies and

vews of investment advisors

The efects of actual results differinq from our assumptions as

wel as changes in assumptions are reflected in the unrecognized

actuaria loss and amortized over future periods and therefore

geerclly affect our recognized expense in future periods

Significant differences in actual experience or significant changes

in assumptions may materially affect pension and other post-

retirement obligations The unrecognized actuarial loss on our U.S

qualified and non-qualified pension plans increased from $690

million to $769 million before tax as of December 31 2011 and 2012

respectively primarily due to decrease in our discount rate The

assumptions used to estimate our U.S pension and postretirement

oblqations vary by plan In determining our U.S pension obligations

for 2012 our discount rate decreased to 4.14% from weighted

average 4.86% at year-end 2011 and our weighted-average

projected salary ncrease ncreased from 4.08/a as of December

31 2011 to 4.32% as of December 31 2012 In determining our U.S

postret remerit health care obligation for 2012 our discount rate

decreased to 3.95% from weighted-average 4.80% at year-end

2011 Our weighted average expected return on U.S plan assets

which eflects our expected long-term returns on plan assets used

for determining 2012 and 2013 U.S pension expense was 8.25%

Our weightedaverage expected return on plan assets used for

determining 2012 and 2013 U.S postretirement health care expense

was 8.25%

The efect on December 31 2012 funded status and 2013 expense

of decrease in the discount rate or expected return on assets

assumption as of December 31 2012 is shown below assuming no

changes in benefit evels and no amortization of gains or losses for

our major plans

LF CCN INC 1N ELAN

NCi LANE IN OHLR

MPI ON RE RDEL riL

nAN HL All ARLN

-025 pts $60.2 $5.0

-0.25 pts $3.9

Discount rate -0.25 pts $8.2 $0.6

Expected return on ussets -0.25 pts $0.1

Our nternationa nsion obl gations and underly ng plan assets

are approximately one third of our global pension plans wth the

majority of the amounts held in the U.K and Eurozone countries

We use similar assumptions to measure our international pension

obligations However the assumptons used vary by country based

on specific local country requirements and information

See Note 15 for further dscussion concerning our accounting

policies estmates funded status planned contributions and

overall financial poitons of our pension and post-retirement plan

obligations

In the U.S we have high deductible insurance pot des for casLialty

and property losse subject to per occurrence and liability

limitations Globally we have high dedijctible insurance polick

for property losses We are insured for losses in excess of these

limitations and have recorded both liability and an offsetting

receivable for arrocints in excess cf these limitat ons We are self

insured for health care claims for eligible participating employees

subject to certain deductibles and limitations We determine

our liabilities for ms on an actuaria basis change in these

assumptions wou cause reported results to differ

Restructuring

We incur costs for restructuring activities associated with plans

to enhance our efficiency and effectiveness and sharpen the

competitiveness of our businesses These restructuring plans

include costs assoc ated with significant actions nvolving employee

re ated severance charges contrait termination costs and asset

write-downs Employee termination costs are largely based on

policies and severance plans and include personnel reductions and

related costs for seaerance benefits and outplacement services

These charges are reflected in the quarter in which the actions are

probable and the amounts are estimable which is generally when

management approves the associated actions Contract termination

costs include charg as to termnate leases prior to the end of their

respective terms and other contract termination costs Asset write-

downs include lease hold improvement write-downs and other asset

write downs associated with combining operations

Restructuring charges have been included as component of both

cost of sales and spec al gains and charges on the Consolidated

Statement of Income Amounts included as component of cost

of sales include sapp chain and manufacturing related actions

Restructuring liabilities have been classified as component of

other current liabili ies on the Consolidated Balance Sheet We

expect to incur total of $330 million in charges for our two active
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restructuring plans from 2011 to 2013 and at December 31 2012 we

had restructuring liability of $117 million For additional information

on our current restructuring activities see Note

Income Taxes

Judgment is required to determine the annual effective income tax

rate deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowances

recorded against net deferred tax assets Our effective income

tax rate is based on annual income statutory tax rates and tax

planning available in the various jurisdictions in which we operate

Our annual effective income tax rate includes the impact of reserve

provisions We recognize the largest amount of tax benefit that is

greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement with

taxing authority We adjust these reserves in light
of changing facts

and circumstances During interim periods this annual rate is then

applied to our year-to-date operating results In the event that there

is significant discrete item recognized in our interim operating

results the tax attributable to that item would be separately

calculated and recorded in the same period

Tax regulations require items to be included in our tax returns

at different times than the items are reflected in our financial

statements As result the effective income tax rate reflected

in our financial statements differs from that reported in our tax

returns Some of these differences are permanent such as expenses

that are not deductible on our tax return and some are temporary

differences such as depreciation expense

Temporary differences create deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets generally represent items that can be used as

tax deduction or credit in our tax return in future years for which we

have already recorded the tax benefit in our income statement We

establish valuation allowances for our deferred tax assets when the

amount of expected future taxable income is not likely to support

the utilization of the entire deduction or credit Relevant factors in

determining the realizability of deferred tax assets include future

taxable income the expected timing of the reversal of temporary

differences tax planning strategies and the expiration dates of the

various tax attributes Deferred tax liabilities generally represent

items for which we have already taken deduction in our tax

return but have not yet recognized that tax benefit in our financial

statements

U.S deferred income taxes are not provided on certain unremitted

foreign earnings that are considered permanently reinvested

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries are considered to

have been reinvested indefinitely or are available for distribution

with foreign tax credits available to offset the amount of applicable

income tax and foreign withholding taxes that might be payable on

earnings It is impractical to determine the amount of incremental

taxes on an ongoing basis that might arise if all undistributed

earnings were distributed

number of years may elapse before particular tax matter

for which we have established reserve is audited and finally

resolved The number of tax years with open tax audits varies

depending on the tax jurisdiction The Internal Revenue Service

IRS has completed its examinations of our federal income tax

returns through 2004 The legacy Ecolab U.S income tax returns

for the years 2009 and 2010 are currently under audit The

legacy Nalco U.S income tax returns for the years 2005 through

2010 are currently under audit In addition to the U.S federal

examinations we have limited audit activity in several U.S state

and foreign juriscictions The tax positions we take are based on our

interpretations of tax laws and regulations in the applicable federal

state and international jurisdictions We believe that our tax returns

properly reflect the tax consequences of our operations and that

our reserves for tax contingencies are appropriate and sufficient for

the positions taken Because of the uncertainty of the final outcome

of these examinations we have reserved for potential reductions of

tax benefits including related interest and penalties for amounts

that do not meet the more-likely-than-not thresholds for recognition

and measurement as required by authoritative guidance The tax

reserves are reviewed throughout the year taking into account new

legislation regulations case law and audit results Settlement of

any particular issue could result in offsets to other balance sheet

accounts cash payments or receipts and/or adjustments to tax

expense The majority of our tax reserves are presented in the

balance sheet within other non-current liabilities As of December 31

2012 our gross liability for uncertain tax positions was $93 million

For additional information on income taxes see Note 11

Long-Lived Intangible Assets and Goodwill

We periodically review our long-lived and intangible assets the

total value of which were $6.8 billion as of December 31 2012

for impairment and assess whether significant events or changes

in business circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the

assets may not be recoverable Such circumstances may include for

example significant decrease in the market price of an asset

significant adverse change in the manner in which the asset is being

used or in its physical condition or history of operating or cash flow

losses associated with the use of the asset Impairmert losses could

occur when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the anticipated

future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of

the asset and its eventual disposition The amount of the impairment

loss to be recorded if any is calculated as the excess of the assets

carrying value over its estimated fair value

We also periodically reassess the estimated remaining useful lives

of our long-lived assets Changes to estimated useful lives would

impact the amount of depreciation and amortization expense

recorded in earnings We have experienced no significant changes

in the carrying value or estimated remaining useful lives of our

long-lived assets As part of the Nalco merger we added intangible

asset trade names with indefinite useful lives The carrying value of

the indefinite life trade names were subject to annual impairment

testing during the second quarter of 2012 Based on this testing no

adjustment to the carrying value was necessary

As of December 31 2012 we had total goodwill of $5.9 billion We

test our goodwill for impairment on an annual basis curing the

second quarter Our reporting units are our operating segments If

circumstances change significantly we would also test reporting

unit for impairment during interim periods between the annual tests

Goodwill impairment has historically been determined using two-

step process However in September 2011 the Financial Accounting

Standards Board FASB amended its guidance on the testing of

goodwill impairment to allow an entity the option to first assess

qualitative factors to determine whether performing the current

two-step process is necessary Under the new option the calculation

of the reporting units fair value is not required unless as result

of the qualitative assessment it is more likely than not that the fair

value of the reporting unit is less than the units carrying amount

We adopted this guidance effective with our annual goodwill

impairment testing during the second quarter of 2012

In spite of the change in accounting guidance assessing goodwill for

impairment remains judgmental in nature and often involves the use

of significant estimates and assumptions Fair values of reporting

units are established using discounted cash flow method Where

available and as appropriate comparable market mu tiples are used

to corroborate the results of the discounted cash floss method

These valuation methodologies use estimates and assumptions
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which nclude projected future cash flows including timing discount rates reflecting the risk inherent in future cash flows perpetual growth

rates and determination of appropriate market comparables

Our merger ith Nalco resulted in the addition of $4.5 billion of goodwill Subsequent performance of the reporting units holding the

addticnal goodwill relative to projections used in our purchase price allocation could result in mpairment if there is either underperformance

by the reporting unit or if the carrying value of the reporting unit were to fluctuate due to working capital changes or other reasons that did

not proportioiately increase fair value

Based on our testing there has been no impairment of goodwill during the three years ended December 31 2012 Additionally based on the

ongoing performance of our operating units updating the impairment testing during the seccnd half of 2012 was not deemed necessary

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

Net sales 11838.7 11283.9

Adjustments

Special gains and charges 29.6

Nalco merger impact to 2011 reported results

Non-GAAP adjusted sales 11838.7 11 313.5

Effect of foreign currency translation 34.6 290.8

Non-GAAP adjusted fixed currency sales 11804.1

0Amourrts represent the pro forma equivalent to the 2012 amounts presented

6798.5 6089.7 12

29.6

193.4

6634.7 6089.7

172.2 20.0

6462.5 6069.7 6%

The increase in reported sales for 2012 is due primarily to the inclusion of the Nalco business in our results Reported sales for 2012 increased

5% when compared to both 2011 pro forma sales and 2011 adjusted pro forma sales Foreign currency negatively impacted sales growth in

2012

The increase in reported sales for 2011 was also impacted by the Nalco merger Excluding Nalco merger related activity and special gains and

charges from 2011 results adjusted sales increased 9% when compared to 2010 reported sales Foreign currency positively impacted sales

growth in 2011

The change components of the year-over-year 2012 reported net sales versus 2011 adjusted pro forma sales and the year-over-year 2011

adjusted sales versus 2010 reported sales are as follows

2012

5%

Note Amounts in the table above do not necessarily sum due to rounding

Gross margin 45.2% 457%

Adjustments

Special gains and charges 0.8 0.2

Nalco merger impact to reported 2011 results

Non-GAAP adjusted gross margin 46O%J 45.9%

0Amourits represent the pro forma equivalent to the 2012 amounts presented

48.9% 50.5%

0.3

0.2

49.4% 50.5%

Our gross profit margin lgross margin is defined as the difference between sales less cost cf sales divided by sales Our reported gross

margin was 45.2% and 48.9% for 2012 and 2011 respectively The inclusicrn of Nalcos business mix in 2012 negatively impacted our 2012

reported gross margin when comparing against our reported 2011 gross margin Our 2012 reported gross margin was also negatively impacted

by special gains and charges including the recognition of fair value step-up in Nalco inventor of $71.2 million and restructuring charges

of $22.7 millIon Our 2011 gross margin was negatively impacted by restructuring charges of $3.3 million recognition of fair value step-up in

Nalco inventory of $3.6 million and $29.6 million related to the modification of customer agreement

Adjusting 2011 for the pro forma effect of the Nalco merger and excluding the impact of restructuring charges and the recognition of fair

Reported GAAP net sales

Adjustnrents

Nalco merge- pro forma adjustment

2012

11838.7 6798.5

4485.4

CO AN CL

PC PC

2Or CAI000L

6798.5 6089.7 12%

11 022 7%

Volume

Price changes

Acquisitions and divestitures

Non-GAAP adjusted sales increase

Non-GAAP adjusted fised currency sales increase

Foreign currency translation

3%

Gross Marclin
2012 2011

Reported gross margin 45.2% 48.9%

Adjustments

Nalcc merger pro forma adjustment 3.2

5% 9%

48.9% 50.5%
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value step-up inventory from 2012 and 2011 results and the impact

of the customer agreement modification from our 2011 results our

2012 adjusted gross margin was 46.0% which compared against an

adjusted pro forma gross margin of 45.9% for 2011 The increase in

the 2012 adjusted gross margin as compared to the 2011 adjusted

pro forma gross margin was driven by pricing gains sales volume

increases synergies and cost savings which outpaced increased

delivered product iosts including raw materials freight and fuel as

well as the negative business mix impact of increased Global Energy

sales which on average have lower gross margin compared to our

other businesses

Our reported gross margin was 48.9% and 50.5% for 2011 and

2010 respectively As previously discussed our 2011 gross margin

was negatively impacted by restructuring charges recognition of

fair value step-up in Nalco inventory and customer agreement

modification Additionally the Nalco merger had negative impact

on our gross margins subsequent to the close of the merger in

December of 2011 Our 2010 gross margin was not impacted by

special gains and charges or the Nalco merger

Excluding the impact of restructuring charges the recognition of

fair value step-up in Nalco inventory the impact of the customer

agreement modification and the negative impact of Nalcos post-

merger results our 2011 adjusted gross margin was 49.4% which

compared against reported gross margin of 50.5% for 2010

The decrease when comparing the 2011 adjusted gross margin to

the reported 2010 gross margin was driven by significantly higher

delivered product costs which more than offset sales and pricing

gains

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

PERCENT

Reported SGA ratio

33.I%j

Adjustments

Nalco merger pro forma

adjustment

2012 2011 2011 2010

SGA ratio 33.1% 3470/

Adjustments

Nalco merger impact to

reported 2011 results

________
0.2

347% 35.7% 37.1%

Amounts represent the pro forma equivalent to the 2012 amounts

presented

Reported selling general and administrative SGA expenses as

percentage of reported net sales were 33.1% during 2012 compared

to the reported ecluivalent of 35.9% in 2011 The inclusion of Nalcos

business mix in 2012 positively impacted our 2012 reported SGA

expense ratio when comparing against our reported 2011 SGA

expense ratio

Adjusting 2011 results for the pro forma effect of the Nalco merger

our reported 2012 SGA expense ratio of 33.1% compared against

2011 pro forma SGA expense ratio of 34.7% The decrease in

expense percentage during 2012 was driven by leverage from sales

gains along with ost savings efforts including those associated with

restructuring actions which more than offset investments and other

cost increases We continued to make key business investments

that drive innovation and efficiency through RD and information

technology systems

Reported SGA expenses as percentage of reported net sales

decreased to 35.9% in 2011 compared to 37.1% in 2010 As shown

in the previous table the impact on the SGA expense ratio in 2011

from the Nalco merger was minimal The decrease in the expense

ratio from 2010 to 2011 was driven by leverage from sales gains and

acquisitions along with savings from restructuring in 2011 which

more than offset investments in the business and cost increases

Special Gains and Charges

Special gains and charges reported on the Consolidated Statement

of Income included the following items

MLL0NS

Net sales

Customer agreement

modification

Cost of sales

Restructuring charges

Recognition of Nalco inventory

fair value step-up

Subtotal 93.9 8.9

Special gains and charges

Restructuring charges 116.6 61.0

Champion acquisition costs 18.3

Nalco merger and integration costs 70.9 57.7

Gain on sale of businesses litigation

related charges and other 60.1 4.3 3.3

venezuela currency devaluation 4.2

Subtotal 145.7 131.0 7.5

Operating income subtotal 239.6 169.5 7.5

Interest expense net

Debt extinguishment costs 18.2

Merger and acquisition debt costs 1.1 1.5

Subtotal 19.3 1.5

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Recognition of Nalco inventory

fair value step-up 4.5

Total special gains and charges 254.4 171.0 7.5

Restructuring Charges

2011 Restructuring Plan

In February 2011 we commenced comprehensive plan to

substantially improve the efficiency and effectivenes of our

European business sharpen its competitiveness and accelerate

its growth and profitability Additionally through this Plan

restructuring has been and will continue to be undertaken outside

of Europe collectively the 2011 Restructuring Plan As result

of restructuring activities under the 2011 Restructuring Plan we

recorded restructuring charges of $66.2 million $46.1 million after

tax or $0.15 per diluted share and $68.1 million $54.2 million after

tax or $0.22 per diluted share during 2012 and 2011 respectively

We expect to incur pretax restructuring charges of approximately

$150 million $125 million after tax under the 2011 Restructuring

Plan through the completion of the Plan in 2013 We anticipate that

approximately $140 million of the pre-tax charges will represent

cash expenditures The remaining $10 million of the pre-tax charges

represent estimated asset disposals or other non-cash expenses

No decisions have been made for any remaining asset disposals and

estimates could vary depending on the actual action taken

Actions under the 2011 Restructuring Plan are expected to result

in approximately $120 million in annualized cost savings when fully

realized with approximately $70 million of cost savings realized

through 2012

2012

22.7

71.2

2011 2010

29.6

3.6

35.9%

1.2

35.9% 37.1%

Non-GAAP adjusted SGA ratio

35.9% 37.1%
For segment reporting purposes special gains and charges have

been included in our corporate segment which is consistent with our

internal management reporting

33.1%
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Merger Restructuring Plan Other special cgainsi and charges

In January 2C12 following the completion of the Nalco merger

we formally commenced plans to undertake restructuring actions

related to the reduction of our global workforce and optimization of

our supply chain and office facilities including planned reduction of

plant and distribution center locations the Merger Restructuring

Plan In anticipation of the Plan limited number of actions were

taken in 2011 and as result we recorded restructuring charges of

$6.6 mdlion $4.1 million after tax or $0.02 per diluted share in 2011

During 2012 as result of restructuring activities under the Plan we

recorded restructuring charges of $73.2 million $54.5 million after

tax or $0.18 per diluted share

We expect that restructuring activities under the Merger

Restructuring Plan will be completed by the end of 2013 with total

cost through the end of 2013 anticipated to be approximately $180

million $120 rilllion after tax We anticipate that approximately

$160 milion the pre-tax restructuring charges will represent cash

expenditures The remaining $20 million of the pre-tax charges

represent estimated asset disposals or other non-cash expenses

No decisions have been made for any remaining asset disposals and

estimates could vary depending on the actual actions taken

We anticipate savings from the Merger Restructuring Plan along

with synergies achieved in connection with the merger will be

approximately $250 million on an annual basis with the run rate

achieved by the end of 2014 The corresponding savings and

synergies were approximately $75 million in 2012 with $135 million

expected in 2C13

Restructuring charges have been included as component of both

cost of sales aid special gains and charges on the Consolidated

Statement of rcome Further details related to our restructuring

charges are included in Note

Non-restructuring special garns and charges

Na/co merger and integration costs

As result of the Nalco merger during 2012 and 2011 we incurred

charges of $155.8 million $113.7 million after tax or $0.38 per

diluted share and $62.8 million $45.6 million after tax or $0.19 per

diluted share respectively Nalco merger and integration charges

have been inclijded as component of cost of sales special gains

and charges net interest expense and net income loss attributable

to noncontrolling interest on the Consolidated Statement of Income

Amounts included in cost of sales and net income loss attributable

to noncontrolling interest include recognition of fair value step-up

in Nalco international inventory which is maintained on FIFO basis

Amounts included in special gains and charges include merger

and integration charges closing costs and advisory fees Amounts

included in net interest expense include loss on the extinguishment

of Nalccs senior notes which were assumed as part of the merger

and fees to secure short-term credit facilities to initially fund the

Nalco merger

Champion acquisition costs

As result of tie pending acquisition of Champion during 2012

we incurred charges of $19.4 million $16.7 million after tax or

$0.06 per diluted share Champion acquisition charges have been

included as componenf of special gains and charges and net

interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income Amounts

included in special gains and charges include acquisition costs and

advisory fees Amounts included in net interest expense include fees

to secure term loans and short-term debt and the interest expense

impact our $500 milton public debt issuance in December 2012

all of which were initiated to fund the Champion acquisition

During 2012 we recorded net gain of $60.1 million $35.7 million

after tax or $0.12 per diluted share related to the sale of our

Vehicle Care division the receipt of additional payments related to

the sale of an investment in U.S business originally sold prior to

2012 and litigation related charges

In the fourth quarter of 2011 we modified long-term customer

agreement that was assumed as part of previous acquisition

The impact of the modification war included in net sales on the

Consolidated Statemerrt of Income resulting in sales reduction of

$29.6 million $18.4 million after tax/ on $0.08 per diluted share

In the first quarter of 2011 we completed the purchase of the assets

of the Cleantec business of Campbell Brothers Ltd Brisbane

Queensland Austraia Cleantec Special gains and charges in

2011 included acquisition integrat ion costs incurred to optimize the

Cleantec business structure

As shown in the pro forma table on page pro forma 2011 special

gains and charges include the impact of the sale of Nalcos

personal care products business arid its marine chemicals business

which resulted in cain of $136.0 million

Special gains and charges in 2010 include costs to optimize the

companys business structures of $10.9 million of which $8.5 million

were recorded in the fourth quarter In the third quarter of 2010 we

sold an investment in small U.S business and recognized $5.9

million gain on the sale The investment was not material to our

consolidated resuts of operations or financial position

Beginning in 2010 Venezuela was designated hyper-inflationary and

as such all foreign currency fluctuations are recorded in income On

January 2010 the Venezuelan gcverriment devalued its currency

Bolivar Fuerte We are remeasuring the financial statements of

our Venezuelan subt idiary using the official exchange rate of 4.30

Bolivars to U.S dcllar As result of the devaluation we recorded

charge of $4.2 miliori in the first quarter of 2010 due to the

remeasurement of the local balance sheet We are unable to predict

the ongoing currencl gains and losses for the rerneasuremerit of the

balance sheet

Further details related to our non-restructuring special Igains and

charges are includec in Note
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Operating Income

PERCENT PERCENT
MILLIONS 2012 2011 CHANGE 2011 2010 CHANGE

Reported GAAP operating income 1289.3 753.8 71% 753.8 806.8 7%
Adjustments

Nalco merger pro forma adiustment 502.9

Operating income 1289.3 1256.7

Adjustments

Special gains and charges 239.6 18.7

Nalco merger impact to 2011 reported results

Non-GAAP adjusted operating income 1528.9 1275.4 20
Effect of foreign currency translation 3.9 28.2

Interest Expense Net

MILLIONS

Reported GAAP

interest expense net

Less adjustments

Special gains and charges

Nalco merger impact

Non-GAAP adjusted

interest expense net

Reported tax rate

Tax rate impact of

Special gains and charges

Discrete tax items

Nalco merger impact

Non-GAAP adjusted effective tax rate

753.8 806.8

169.5 7.5

13.8

909.5 814.3 12

18.3 2.5

891.2 816.8 9%Non-GAAP adjusted fixed currency operating income $1525.0 1247.2 22%

Amounts represent the pro forma equivalent to the 2012 amounts presented

Reported operatirg income in 2012 increased 71% compared to reported operating income in 2011 Reported operating income in 2012

increased 3% against 2011 pro forma operating income Our 2012 reported operating income and 2011 pro forma operating income were both

impacted by special gains and charges Excluding the impact of special gains and charges from 2012 reported and 2011 pro forma operating

income 2012 adjusted operating income increased 200/s when compared against 2011 adjusted pro forma operating income Foreign currency

had negative imoact on operating income growth as shown in the previous table The 2012 adjusted fixed currency operating ncome

increase of 22% as compared to 2011 adjusted pro forma fixed currency operating income was driven by sales volume and pricing gains as

well as synergies end other cost savings which more than offset higher delivered product costs and investments in the business

Reported operatirg income decreased 75/s in 2011 compared to 2010 The operating income decrease was impacted by the year-over-year

comparison of special gains and charges offset partially by the impact of including Nalco merger related activity in our conso idated results

in December 2011 Excluding the impact of special gains and charges and Nalco merger related activity adjusted operating income increased

12% in 2011 Foreign currency had positive impact on operating income growth as shown in the previous table The 2011 adjusted fixed

currency operating increase of 9% as compared to 2010 adjusted fixed currency operating income was driven by sales volume gains pricing

and cost savings which more than offset increased delivered product costs and investments in the business

PERCENT CHANGE

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011

$276.7
74.2 59.1

273%
26%

19.3 1.5

17.4

55.3 59.1 365% 6%

Reported net interest expense totaled $276.7 million $74.2 million and $59.1 million during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Special gains and charges reported within net interest expense during 2012 included net loss on the extinguishment of Nalccs senior notes

which were assumed as part of the merger Special gains and charges within net interest during 2012 also included fees to secure term loans

and short-term debt and the interest expense impact of our $500 million public debt issuance in December 2012 all of which were initiated

to fund the Champion acquisition Special gains and charges reported within net interest expense during 2011 include short-term credit

facility costs incurred to initially finance the Nalco merger Both reported and adjusted net interest expense increased from 2011 to 2012 due

primarily to debt to fund the cash portion of the Nalco merger consideration the repayment of Nalco debt and share repurchases

The yea r-over year comparability of 2011 compared to 2010 was also impacted by inclusion of Nalcos merger related activity in our

consolidated results in 2011 which Includes the interest expense impact of our $3.75 billion public debt issuance in December 2011 as well as

interest expense on the Nalco senior notes outstanding as of December 31 2011 Excluding the impact of special gains and charges and the

Nalco merger impact 2011 adjusted net interest expense decreased 6% compared to 2010 due primarily to the repayment of our $150 million

6.875% notes in February 2011

Provision for Income Taxes

The following table provides summary of our tax rate

PERCENT 2012 2011 2010

30.7% 31.8% 29.0%

1.5 0.9 0.1

0.7 1.0 1.0

0.0

29% 29.9% 29.9%

Our reported tax rate for 2012 2011 and 2010 includes the tax impact of special gains and charges and discrete tax items Depending on the

nature of our special gains and charges and discrete tax items our reported tax rate may not be consistent on period to period basis as

amounts included in our special gains and charges are derived from tax jurisdictions with rates that vary from our overall non-G4AP adjusted

Ecolab Annual Report 2012 17



tix aL Addr onally our 2011 reported ax rate includes the impact

of includ nq NaN os U.S activ ty in our consolidated resu ts beginning

Decembcr 011

Our 2C12 repr rted tax rate nc udes $59 ion of net tax benefits

on pe la qainsi and cnarqes and $9.2 of screte tax not

benefit The irresponding impact of these items to the reported tax

rats is rhoc the previous table

Discrete tax bcnefits 2012 arc based largely on benefits of $11

lion ic eked to remeasuremenf of certan dcferred tax assets

ar Irab lit resuting rom changing tax jurisdictions recognizing

adlustrsientv from lnq the company 2011 U.S federa tax return

as wet vs rclease of valuaton at owarrce related to capital

loss carryforviard xc etc benelts were partally offset by the

rernea urerncnt of certairr deferred tax assets and iabil ties resulting

from canges in loca country tax rates and state and foreign country

cud settlerrrents arid adjustments

Our 2011 noorted tax rats includcs $45.4 ml lion of net tax beret its

on special gans and charges $1.5 million of tax benefits related

to U.S Na cc act
ty

incluoed in our cor soxdateo resu ts begirirurig

in December 011 and $7.4 lion of discrete tax net expense The

ur res vonding impact of these items to the rcported tax rate is

shown the rev ous table

screU tax items in 2011 include an $8 lion charge recorded in

the foLn th quarter related to the real zahility of fore gn net operating

loss carryfcirwvr ds as well as discrete tax net expense related to

the rerrcasurvment of our deferred tax assets due to the impact of

ctianc ii Jr blended state tax rate These items were part at

offset by net enef ts related to recogn zing ad ustments from fi ing

our 2010 U.S fedcral returns ansI other Internat onal income tax

arvm.ogriziq settlemets and adj.stments related to our

1999 vrouijh 2001 U.S income tax returns We also had benefits

from prior veer state re fur cIa ms arid benefits from recogn ziog

settler erits and adjustments related to our 2007 through 2008 U.S

income tar eturns

Our 200 per ted tax rate mc uded $0.9 mill on of net tax benefts

on spec al ga us and charges as we as $8.0 wI ion of discrete

tax net benef ts The corresponding impact of these items to the

roper ted fix rate shown in ttre prezious table

Discr crc tax berref its 2010 Primarily irrclude recognizing favorable

settlements rvlated to our 2002 through 2004 RS appeals case and

aojustrrrencs rerareo to our prior year tax reser vex Tirc discrete tax

net beneft for the year also nc Lides $6 million tax benefit from the

settler en of en nternatior at ta audit recor bed in the first quarter

offset by $E ni then charge also recorded ri the frst quarter due to

the paxsaoe cf the U.S Pat ent Protection and Affordab Care Act

wh oh rhangcs ttve tax deductibility related to federal subsidies and

resulted redu ton of the value of our deterred tax assets rcated

to the subs dies as wel axe $2 mill on charge the second quarter

for the impact cit nternational tax costs from optimizing our business

St ii Ct ire

Our adjusts effertixe tax rate has been conbstent at 29.9/v across

2012 230 ir 2010

Non GAAP adjusted

net income 889.4 597.6 528.9 49% 13o

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share EPS
re ON Hf

LAN 2012 2012

Reported GAAP EPS 2.35 1.91 2.23 23% 14

Adjustments

Special gains and ctarges 0.65 0.52 0.03

Discrete tax expense

benefit 0.03 0.03 0.03
Nalco merger impact 0.08

Non-GAAP adjusted EPS 2.98 2.54 23 17% 14o

Note Per share amounts do not necessarily sum due to rounding

Reported net incon vttr but idle to ab tota cci $704 ml lion

$463 on and $U 10 mllion dur nq /012 2011 and 2010

respectively wh resulted ri reported earn rigs per shard of $2.30

$1.91 and $2.23 fir tinr irrespondling per ohs

AmoUnts for /UL .D md 2010 include spec gains and charge

arrd discrete tax Ic us Additiona 2011 arirounts nr lube Na

merger related iti ty in our ronsol dated resu heqinining in

December 2011 oS sO ax shoc vs rvsued as corisi oration for the

equity per tion fh Nalco mi rqen

Exciud nq spool cci is and harges and the mpac of screte

items from 2012 2011 irid 2010 arrd the impact of the Nalco nrerger

from 2011 adjusf..d net ucorris and adjustert can rigs per stiare

increased 49o coO 17o respect xc when comp yr ng 2012 to 2011

and increased 13o ri 14 respectively when rmparinq 2011 fo

2010

Currency transla ion ad an untavorab impacf of approx mately

$0.06 per share on oiluted ear sings per sliar ci 2012 cumpored to

2011 Currency trios atiori had favorab mpart of ipprOx mately

$0.06 per share luted ear ri nqs per share tsr 2011 compared to

2010

Segment Performance

Effective with thi Nalso merger we added Nairos 5hrec egary

operatirq unit 1/V ter Serv ce-s Paper Services and Errergy

Services as mdd rat reportable segments to the merged

compaoy report xtrsictuir

Begion ng ir the firO juarter of 2012 the Water Services Paper

Services md Crier Sorv ces eportahlc scgmerrts were rer amed

as the Global Wa Ulebal Pape md obol Ens rqy reportable

segments respe tir the exception of th water treat ment

re ated business ct scussect the followir paragraphs the

underlyng strmruie of the obal Water Globe per and Globa

Energy segment ns the sarrre as 2011

Begonoq in thc first quarter of 2012 the Inrernatonal repcirtable

segment was reran as the Info national caning Sanitizing

Other Sei vices pu table segment With the xceptioo of the water

treatment relate it us ness change discussed be ow the unde0ying

structure of the mnterrrational Cleaning Sanitizinci Other Ser vices

seqmerrt remmiri tie same is 2011

Net Income Attributable to Ecolab

MIL ON

Reported GAAP net income

Adjustments

Special gains and charges

Discrete tax expense

benefit

Nalco merger impac

ne HSNGi

2012 2012 10

703.6 462.5 C30 52% 130

195.0 125.6 6.6

9.2 7.4 iR 01

2.1

18 ab Annui Rp rt 2012



Beginning in the guarter of 2012 due to changes how we internally rnanaq und report resuhs th our egacy Ecolab ood

Be erage and Asia Pacfic operating units certair water treatment rOoted bus nesses ware moved from the U.S Cleonng Sal tiling and

internatonal caning San tzinq Other Services reportable segments to the Global Water reportab segment The movement ot these

businesses did no significantly impact year over year comparab lity thor efore prior year repor ted segment nformation las not bcn
restated to reflect this change

Our fourteen operating unt are aggregated nto six reportable segments U.S Cleaning Sanitizing U.S Other Services International

Clean ng Sanitizing Other Services Global Water Global Paper and Global Energy

We evaluate tile per formance of our international operations within our International Cleaninq initiz ng Other Services Globa Water

Global Paper and Globa Energy reportab segments based on fixed currency exchange rates used by nan sqement for 2012 ie difference

between the fixed currency exchange rates and the actual currency exchange rates is reported as effect of foreign currency tr onslation in

the following tab es All other accounting policies of the reportab segments are consistent with account ng princip es generally accepte

the United States of America and the accounting polices of the company described in Ni to Additiona information ibout our reportab

segments is included in Note 16

Sales by Reportable Segment

Reported sales for 2012 2011 and 2010 for each of our reportable segments were as folloAs

PERCENT CHANGE

MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing 2992.9 2930.3 2721.9 2%

U.S Other Services 474.6 457.1 448.5

Intl Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services 3175.8 3075.1 2899.4

Global Water 2087.4 67.2

Global Paper 805.4

Global Energy 2268.0

Corporate

Subtotal at tixed currency 11804.1 6626.3 6069.8 78

Effect of foreign currency translation 34.6 172.2 19.9

Consolidated 11838.7 6798.5 6089.7 74% 12c

Reputed cales for 2012 and pro foma cales in ludng Nalcos asu and rccassf Oat en ceOa wate treitmt ated hr snees vo

2011 for each of our reportable segments were as follows

PERCENT

2012 2011 CHANGE

2992.9 5%

474.6

3175.8

2087.4

805.4

2268.0 21

MILL ONS

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing 2839.0

U.S Other Services 457.1

Intl Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services 3027.4

Global Water 2014.0

Global Paper 811.8

Global Energy 1873.4

Coroorate 29.6

Subtotal at tixed currency 11804.1 10993.1

Effect ot foreign currency translation 34.6 290.8

Consolidated 11838.7 11283.9 5%

Amounts represent the pro forma equivalent of the 2012 amounts presented

As discussed prey ously in this MDA in order to provide the most mean ngful comparison cr1 results by reportable segment ir addrtion

to discuss ng hr gas in 2012 reported resu ts versus 2011 reported results the following sales discussions also provide ana is on 2012

reported results vzrsus 2011 pro torma resu ts Discuss ons ai ound comparisons of 2011 .ersus 20O focus on tIre reported resuits for tlrosc

respective peried

U.S CLEANING SANITIZING

bUSINESS ow Reoorted U.S Cleanng Sanitizing sales rLreascj 20 in 202 cjmpoed to re vortod 2011

salec Reported 2012 SOleS increased 5% when cnnpared tn 2011 pre farmo vu cs Pin rterl

2011 sales increased 8% when omparej to reported so cv from 2010 Exi Ui nq tSr impact of

11

acquisitions and divestitures from all periods 2012 sa Cs increased 50 whet cc mpared 2011

prO forma sa es and 2011 sa es increased against 2010 sale

13

as for our largest U.S earring San znq businesses were rs fol ows

Institutional Reported so es crew ased in 2012 corr pared to 2011 reporten des Sales

17
nit atives tarqetrng new accounts and effective product progi arns continued cad our

results Demand from our lodqng jstorner continue flu shocv modest ro.efh whie overall

foodsevrce foot traffic remained soft

Reported sales grew 4c in 2011 compared to 2010 reported sales Sales initiativec pric rq iin new accounts and effective product

progrInis led our .esultc Demand from cur lodqnq customers showed good q.ct5 ie osca fooiseiice foot OafV cay

33.9

92.3

29.6

Ec ab Ar II Rc ml tO 19
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were stronq dr yen by new progiams ar focus on expansion In emetging Asian iai kets Fe od Beiu agc cc tillEd to ic pctt onj

sales growth driven by new accounts and improved product penetration

Latin America We continued to experience strong sales growth Lain Arreri as sa es the iegic ii nr aced 18 2012 c.mpate

to 2011 Exclud ng the Impact of acquisitions sales ncreased 14 in 2012 At country Ic Bi ai Clii and Mdcc ir du ib

digit sales growth Sales growth In our Institufonal rood Beverage and Pest busnesse all cont nue Ito be sttonj is rew au ur ts ird

continued successes with existing customers benefited al three div slons

Sales In the region ncreased 14% in 2011 compared to 2010 At countt level Brazil ii Ic an Mexico al showe strong es aitis Out

Institutional rood Beverage and Pest Ermination businesses al reportea double digit ncreases in sa es Inst tttion al ales grcwth wa

dr yen by increased product penetration and new accounts wh Ic Food Beverage benef ted ft OtT strong demand it tti iei qe arid

brew ng markets

Canada Sales grew 7% in 2012 compared to the prior year Cont nued sol pet for mances in Food Beverage and In titut tt

sa es Increase

Sales Increased 4% in 2011 compared to 2010 So id gairs in rood Beverage good jr mth ii stitution and .ttc ro He their

led the sales Increcise

GLOBAL WATER

Global Water had $2087 million of fled currency sales in 2012 wrlc.h hased on the closing itc of the mc rgc.t mrared .aj aiii Ii

$67 II on and nc sales In 2010

2012 Globa Water fixed currency sales Increased 4o compared to 2011 pro forma fixed currcncy sales of $2014 or Atgu an

divestitures did no have significant impact when comparng 2012 fled curt ency sa es aga nst 2011 pro for ma fixc ur t% ii uIs Whet

comparing fixed cirrency sales for 2012 agaInst pro forn xcd currency sales for 2011 growth was ed by ncreasc in thi feud icC ra jr

power and primary metals busInesses 2011 pro forma sales also benefited from wastewate project sale act ng the mp on iqa tast

the current year At regonal level sales growth In the U.S Latir America and Asia Pacif if fset general softness id Of hr uc

to reflect the weak economic conditions in that region

When measured at public curiency exchange rates 2012 reported GioL Water sa es ncc ised it3 when compared to 111 ira rr ii des

GLOBAL PAPER

Globa Pipe had $805 riillon of fixed curreny sales It 2012 ishich tased on the cincing date cf the mar4et ompa .aç.a
rict .Phl s.alrc ci

$34 million and no sales in 2010

Global Paper 2012 sacs when measured In fixed rates of currency exchange dccreased Pci wI en compared aca nst ii pro tins fixnd

currency sales of $812 millon When comparng fixed currency sales for 2012 against pro fc rma xed urrcnc sa es cr2011 th Jr rc ase

was driven by ower customer pant uti izatlon and down time is we the strategic imindt on of cerain Ic raargin a.s ness Ftom

regional perspctlve modest growth in Latin AmeYca and EMFA was mote that offset by sacs dec ire the U.S ii ii Pad

When measured at public currency exchange rates 2012 reported ba Paper sa es deere ned again 20111 10 firma sales

GLOBAL ENERGY

Global Energy had $2268 million of fxed currency sales in 2012 which based the closing date of ti.t if erqer comp ati ag st 2011 is

of $92 mU on and no sales in 2010

When measured in fixed rates of currency exchange 2012 Globa Enerjy sales increased 21c versus 2011 rro rma fixed currei cy es of

$1873 milion Wher comparing fixed currency sales for 2012 against pro forma fixed cur ren..y sales for 2011 the in rease sal ectc

strong volume growth In our upstream business resulting from good ir arket conditions share gains and cont nued focus on gi growth

energy sources including deepwater and shale accounts Upstream end markets were strong the Americas and tie Mdd Lat Wt

continued to see sleady sales growth and market share gains in out downstteam bu it ess across aI regotis

Whet measured at public currency exchange rates 2017 reported Global Freigy sa 35 nat ised 19% against 2011 pro forn as il

CORPORATE

The corporate seg nent inc udes $30 million of sales reductions Ira 2011 related to the mod fc at on of customer jreemp at

Operating Income by Reportable Segment

Reported operat nj ncome for 20122011 and 2010 for each of our rep artable segments wa is fo Ioww

PERCENT HANGE

2010 2012 2011

513.9 17%
71.4

254.5 19 12

30.5

Subtotal at fixed currency 1285.4 735.5 809.3 75

Effect of foreign currency translatIon 3.9 18.3 2.5

Consolidated 1289.3 753.8 806.8 71% 7o

Mi LONS

U.S Cleaning Sanit zing

US Other ServIces

intl Cleaning Sanltlz ng Other ServIces

Global Water

Global Paper

Global Energy

2012

851.4

70.8

340.8

235.9

89.3

389.1

489.8

2011

556j
69.7

285.8

11.0

6.2

17.7

211.6

Lc lAw ii Rc.i rtlY2 21



rrted op it 01 05 rnc for 201 ar cr for ma operating

lr NoR results ofld colas cation of cii air Adter

treotroont afed res es for 2011 for of ir rep table

qr uts rsa is ow

Subtotal at xed currency 1285.4 228.5

Ettect of foreign currency

translation 3.9 28.2

Consolidated 1289.3 1256.7 3%

3pa tCr rg rrptcd rrst ow opo rO

in ris icr eirh of oir fllr10r segorer ts was is 110w

PLO OrE

US Cleaning Sanitizing

US Other Services

Intl Cleaning Sanitzing

Other Services 10.7 9.3 9.3 8.8

Global Water 11.3 9.8

Global Paper 10.7 93

obal Energy 15.9 14.1

Consol dated 10.9% 11.1 11.1o 13.2

Tbe 200 operating narg ns ror the legacy Nalco segments have not been

included as they are not necessarily indicative of full year or future trends

as based on the close date ot the merger they include only one month ot U.S

act vity

Op rot cr 101 rr of ior seqmcrt 1hot h0ic rrfcrrat
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flos Irri oOOr iris 11 of ill .r 01O too on the

rc ted re Urn ri rrtsc per oP
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2012 2011

651.4 5685
70.8 69.7

U.S Cleanng Sanitizmng

U.S Other Sennrices

Intl Cleaning Sanrtiz ng

Other Services

Global Water

Global Paper

Global Energy

Corporate

PERCE NT

HAN GE

15%

340.8

235.9

86.3

360.1

459.9

280

196

75.9

264

226.6

Amounts reprasent the pro forma equivalent to the 2012 amounts presented
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Global Paper Global Paper had $86 lion of fixed curren

operating ncome 2012 which based on the osing date of the

merger compared against 2011 operating income of $6 million and

no operating incorr in 2010

2012 Global Paper Dperating income when measured in fxed rates

of currency exchange increased 14% when compared agan 20l

pro fnrma fixed currency operating income of $76 million Our 2012

reported operatng ncome margH improved compared to ow 2011

pro forma operating income margin When cornparng fixed currency

resu ts for 2012 against pro forma fixed currency results for 2011

operating income orowth was drven by pricing gains synergies and

other cost savings which more than offset decreased sales volume

from the strategic mination of low margin business and higher

delivered product osts

When measured at public currency exchange rates 2012 obal

Paper reported operating income increased ll% compared to 2011 pro

forma operating inome

Global Energy Global Energy had $360 nih ion of fixed currency

operating income 2012 which basec err the closing nate of the

merger compared against 2011 operating income of $18 mc lion and

no opei ating ircome in 2010

When measured in fixed rates of cur rencv exchange 2012 GlobdI

Energy operating income increased 36% versus 2011 pro forma

fixed currency ope ating income of $264 million Our 2012 reported

operating income margin improved compared to our 2011 pro forma

operating income margin When comparing fixed currency results

for 2012 againit pro forma resu ts for 2011 operating income

growth was driven by strong sales volume growth priring gains and

synergies whir more than offset higher delivered product costs and

investments the business

When measured at public currency exchange rates 2012 Global

Energy reported operating income increased 34% compared to 2011

oro forma operating income

Corporate Consistent with our internal management reporting the

Corporate segmeni includes amortization specifically from the Naico

merger intangible assets merger integration costs and investments

we are making in business systems and structure

The Corporate segment also includes special gains and charges

reported on the Conso idated Statement of Income Items included

within reported specal gains and chorges are shown the table no

page 15 and items included in pro forma special gans and charges

are shown in the table on oage

FINANCIAL POSITION LIQUIDITY

Financial Position

Total assets were $17.6 billion as of December 31 2012 compared to

total assets of $18.2 billion as of December 31 2011 The decrease

in assets is prirnari due to net reduction in cash related to the

redemption of $1.7 billion of Naicos senior notes in january 2012

partially offset by buildup of cash at the end of 2012 in anticipation

of the Champion acquisition The negative impact of foreign currency

exchange rates on the value of our international assets was offset

by the increasE of assets through general business activities

Acquisitions and divestitures during 2012 did not have significant

impact on our tota assets

Total liabilities wera $11.4 billion as of December 31 2012 compared

to total liabilities $12.4 billion as of December 31 2011 Total

debt was $6.5 billion as of December 31 2012 and $7.6 billion as of

December 31 2011 The ratio of total debt to capitalization total debt

divided by the sum of total equity and total debt was 52% at year

end 2012 and 57% at year-end 2011 reflecting the redemption of $1.7

bill or of Nalces senior notes ir January 2012 off debt ssued

2012 to fund the pending Champion arqur on and for other

goner ii cci porate pur pores We view our debt to rapitr izat en ratio

as an in rnortant indicator of our creditwer thiniess

TOTAL DEBT TO CAPITALIZATION

14 1xCEN

28/o 57% 52%

Cash Flows

Operating Activities Casfi

provided by opcrafng

ntiv ties tota xd $1203

muon $686 err and

$950 million in 2012 2011

and 2010 respectivcly

Fluctuations in earnings

primarily driven by the Nalco

merger timing of vluntary

and required contributions

to our U.S pension plans

and cash activity re ated

to restructuring impacted

comparability of operating

cash flows In addition to

required contributions

we made voluntary conti ibutiorrs to our U.S pension iris of $150

million and $100 million in 2012 and 2011 respective md ire

contributions in 2010 Operatng cash flows were impacted by $73

million $25 million and $17 million of payments made inder our

restructuring plans in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively In idditien

operating cash flows in 2011 were reduced by Nalce ore qer related

financial advisory service payments of $48 million vIce lease

payment of $31 mill en and payment en the customer agreement

modification of $30 milliorr

The cash flew mpdct across the three years from accecjmrts

recevable was driven by nmreased sales ye ames and timing of

cellectiorrs Our bad debt expense was $37 mill on or of sales in

2012 $15 milton or 0.2% of net sales in 2011 and $18 mu ion or 0.3%

of net sales in 2010 We continue to monitor our reces nble portfolio

and the creditworthiness of our customers closely and do not expect

our future cash flow to be materially mpacted

We continue to generate strong cash fiow from operations We expct

to continue to use this cash flow to fund our ongeng operations and

investments in the business to fund acquisitions to return cash to

shareholders through dividend payments and share ret urchises arrd

to repay debt

Investing Activities Cash used for investing activities was $488

million in 2012 $2.0 billion in 2011 and $304 million in 2010 The

fluctuation across the three years is driven primari by the timing

of business acquisitions and dispositions Total cash reeived from

dispositions net of acquisitions during 2012 was $88 million driven

primarily by the sale of our Vehicle Care division Total cash paid for

acquisitions net of cash acquired in 2011 was $1.6 billicn with the

48

52

CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTI\IITIES

iONS

seso $686

__I

$1203
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thereof us any 0crued and unpar interest to the redemption date

In August 2012 in public offerirg the company issued $500

million of debf securities that mature 2015 at rate of 1.00% The

proceeds were used to refinance outstanding commercial paper and

for general corporate purposes

As of December 31 2012 Standard Poors and Moodys rated our

long-term credit at BBB stable outlook and Baa negative review

respectively reduction in our ong-term credit ratings could mit

or preclude our ability to issue commercial paper under our current

programs credit rating reduction could also adversely affccf our

ablity to renew eisting or negotiate new credit facilities in the

future and could increase the cost of these facilifes Should this

occur we could seek additional sources of funding inc uding issuing

additional term rrctes or bonds In addition we have the abilty at our

option to draw upon our $2.0 bil ion of committed cred facilites

prior to termination

We are in compl aice with our debt covenanfs and other

requ rements our credit agreements and indentures

schedu of our obligations under various notes payable long-

term debt agreements operating eases with noncance able terms

in excess of one /oar interest obligations and benefit lyments are

summarized thc follow ng table

MILLIONS PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

LESS MORE
THAN 4-5 THAN

_________________TOTAL
YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS

Notes payable 44 44

Commercial paper 594 594

Long-term debt 5890 163 1255 1979 2493

Capital lease

obligations 14

Operating leases 525 108 154 108 155

Interest 2157 209 378 291 1279

Total contractual

cash obligations 9224 1123 $1793 2379 $3929

lnterest on variable rate debt was calculated using the interest rate at

year-end 2012

As of December 31 2012 our gross liability for uncertain tax

positions was $93 millon We are not able to reasonably estimate

the amount b/ which the liability wil increase or decrease over an

extended period cf me or whether cash settlement of the liability

will be required Therefore these amounts have been excluded from

the schedule of contractual oblgat ens

We are not required to make any contributons to our U.S pension

and postretirement hea thcare benefit plans ir 2013 based on

plan asset values as of December 31 2012 We are required to fund

certain internatlo al pension benefit plans in accordance with

local legal requirements We estimate contributons to be made to

our international slans II approximate $51 mIlion in 2013 These

amounts have been excluded from the schedule of contractual

obligations

We lease certain ales and administrative office facilities distribution

centers research and manufacturing facilities and other equipment

under longer ternr operating leases Vehicle leases are generally

shorter in duration Vehicle leases have guaranteed residual value

requirements that have historically been satisfied primarily by the

proceeds on the sale of the vehicles

Except for approximately $82 million of letters of credit supporting

domestic and international commercial relationships and

transactions prinrarily for our North America high deductible

insurance program we do not have significant unconditional

purchase obligations or significant other commercial commitments

such as commitments under Irnes of credt standby otters of credit

guarantees standby repurchase obligations or other conrinercia

commitments

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than operating leases we do not have any off balancr

sheet financing arrangements See Note 12 for nform ion on our

operating eases We do not have relationships wth unloose iciated

entities or frnanci par tnerships such as ent ties ofterr referred to as

specal purposes entities which sre sometimes estatrished for the

purpose of faclitat ng off-balance sheet financal arrarrgemerts or

other contractually narrow or limited purposes As such we are not

exposed to any financing liquidity market or credit risk that could

arise if we had engaged in such relationshps

New Accounting Pronouncements

Informat on regarding new 3ccountng pronouncemeni included in

Note

Market Risk

We enter into contractual arrangements derivatives the ord nary

course of business to manage foreign currency exposure and nterest

rate risks We do not enter into derivatives for speculative or trading

purposes Our use of derivatives ibject to nternal jolicios

that provrdc guide ices for control counterparty risk snd ongoing

monitoring and report ng and is dos gned to reduce tho volatility

associated wth movements in foregn exchange and ir terest rates on

our income statement and cash ows

We erter into foreign currency forward contracts to hr dge certain

ntercompany financial arrangements and to hedge aqa nst the

effect of exchange rate fluctuations on transactions related to cash

flows denominated in currencies other than U.S dol ars See Note

for further information on our hedging activity

We manage interest expense using mix of fixed and floating rate

debt To help manage borrow ng costs we may enter into interest

rate swap agreements Under these arrangements wo agree to

exchange at specified intervals the difference between ficed and

floating interest amounts calculated by reference to agreed upon

notiona principal amount As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we did

not have any interest rate swaps outstanding

Based on sensitivty analysis assuming 1000 adverse change in

market rates of our foregn exchange and interest rate der vatives

and other financia instruments changes in exchange rates or

interest rates would not materia ly affect our nancial posit on

and Iquidity The effect en our results of operations woo be

substantially offset by the impact of the hedged items

European Economy

The current economic conditions several Europesn countries

particularly Italy Spain Portugal Greece and Ireland deteriorated

during 2012 Further weakening of the European economy may

cause decline in the value of the turopean currencies including

the euro One potential extreme outcome of the European financial

situation is the re-introduction of individual currencies in one or

more Eurozone countries or the ssolution of the eon entirely The

potential dissolution of the euro or market perceptiors concerning

ths and related ssues could adversely affect the valLe of our euro-

denominated assets and obligations and impact our future results

of operations As of year end 2012 net assets of the five European

countries listed above represented 3% of our consolidated net

assets During 2012 sales in the five European countrres listed above

represented approximately 4% of our consolidated net sales

CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS
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Additionally this crisis has caused instabihty in European credit

markets including diminished liquidity and credit availability which

could negatively impact our customers located in these and other

geograohic areas We continue to monitor the situation and the

creditworthiness of our customers Although we do not currently

foresee credit risk associated with material portion of our

customers receivables repayment is dependent upon the financial

stability of the economies of those countries

Subsequent Events

Acquisitions

In JanLiary 2013 we completed the acquisition of Mexico-based

Quimiproductos SA de CV wholly-owned subsidiary of Fomanto

Economico Mexicano S.A.B do CV Annual sales of the business are

approximately $43 million

Venezuela Fore/gn Currency Translation

Venezuela is highly inflationary economy under U.S GAAP As

resulf fhe U.S dollar is the functional currency for our subsidiaries

in Venezuela Any currency remeasurement adjustments for non-

dollar denominated monetary assets and liabilities held by these

subsidiaries arid other transactional foreign exchange gains and

losses are reflected in earnings Our net monetary assets and

liabilities included in our Venezuelan subsidiary balance sheets as

of year end 2012 was approximately $69 million On February

2013 the Veneruelan government devalued its currency Bolivar

Fuerte As rxsult of the devaluation we will record charge of

approximately $20 million net of tax in the first quarter of 2013 due

to the remeasurement of the local balance sheet

Our ability to effectively manage sales and profit levels in Venezuela

will be impacted by several factors including our ability to mitigate

the effect of asy potential future devaluation further actions of

the Venezuelas government economic conditions in Venezuela

the availability of raw materials utilities and energy and the future

state of exchange controls in Venezuela including the availability

of U.S dollars at the official foreign exchange rate Sales and profit

levels iii Venezuela could also be impacted by any actions taken by

the government under the recently passed law aimed at controlling

market prices We expect that the onqoing impact related to

measuring our Venezuelan statement of income at the new exchange

rate will riot have material impact to our results of operations

During 2012 sales in Venezuela represented approximately l% of our

consolidated net sales

Segment Structure

Effective in 2013 we have new organizational model to support

global growth This will result in change to our segment structure

with focus on global businesses These changes will result in the

establishment of ten global operating units including Global Energy

Global Institutional Global Specialty Global Healthcare Global Food

Beverage Global Water Global Paper Global Textile Care and

Global Pest Eli nination and Equipment Care These operating units

will be aggregated into four reportable segments which include

Global Energy Global Institutional Global Industrial and Other Our

internal budgeting and reporting will be realigned in 2013 to reflect

these changes The movement of these businesses will impact year

over-year comoarability therefore prior year segment information

will be recast during the first quarter of 2013 to reflect this change

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This MDA includes financial measures that have not been calculated

in accordance with U.S GAAP These Non-GAAP measures include

Adjusted sales

Adjusted pro formi sales

Fixed currency sales

Adjusted fixed currency sales

Adjusted pro formi fixed currency sales

Pro forma sales

Pro forma fixed urrency sales

Adjusted gross margin

Adjusted pro formr gross margin

Pro forma SGA ratio

Adjusted SGA ratio

Fixed currency operating income

Pro forma operating income

Pro forma fixed currency operating income

Adjusted operating incorrie

Adjusted pro formi operating income

Adjusted fixed currency operating income

Adjusted pro forma fixed currency operating income

Adjusted net interest expense

Adjusted effective income tax rate

Adjusted net income attributable to Ecolab

Adjusted diluted earnings per share attributable to Ecolab

Vie provide these messures as additional information regarding our

operating results We use these Non-GAAP measures internally to

evaluate our performance and in making financial and operational

decisions including with respect to incentive compensation We

believe that our presentation of these measures provides investors

with greater transparency with respect to our results of operations

and that these measures are useful for period-to-period comparison

of results

We include in special rqains and charges items that are unusual in

nature and significant amount In order to better allow investors

to compare underlying business performance period-to-period zxe

provide adjusted sales adjusted pro forma sales adjusted fixed

currency sales adjusted pro forma fixed currency sales adjusted

gross margin adjusted pro forma gross margin adjusted operating

income adjusted fixed currency operating income adjusted

pro forma operating income adjusted pro forma fixed currency

operating income adiusted net interest expense adjusted net income

attributable to Ecolati and adjusted diluted earnings per share which

exclude special gains and charges and discrete tax items The

exclusion of special gains and charges and discrete tax items in such

adjusted amounts help provide better understanding of underlying

business performance In addition to allow for more meaningful

comparison against 2010 results where applicable we have excuded

the impact of Nalcos post-merger results in our 2011 non-GAAP

or cc res

The adjusted effective tax rate measure promotes period-to-period

comparability of the underlying effective tax rate because the

amounts excluded do not necessarily reflect costs associated with

historical trends or expected future costs

We evaluate the performance of our international operations based

on fixed currency rates of foreign exchange Fixed currency sales

adjusted fixed currency sales fixed currency operating income and

adjusted fixed currency operating income measures and the 2011

pro forma equivalent for each eliminate the impact of exchange

rate fluctuations on our sales adjusted sales operating income

and adjusted operating income respectively and promote better

understanding of our underlying sales and operating income trends

Fixed currency amounts are based on translation into U.S dollars at
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fixed foreign currency exchange rates established by management at

the beginning of 2012

In order to provide meaningful comparison of our results of

operations where applicable we have supplemented our 2011

historical financial data with discussion and analysis that compares

reported and adjusted results for 2012 against the 2011 Merger Pro

Formas The unaudited pro forma results are based on the historical

consolidated results of operations of both Ecolab and Nalco and

were prepared to illustrate the effects of our merger with Nalco

assuming the merger had been consummated on January 2010

The unaudited pro forma and adjusted pro forma results are not

necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have

actually occurred f-ad the merger been completed as of the date

indicated nor are they indicative of future operating results of the

combined company

These measures are not in accordance with or an alternative to U.S

GAAP and may be different from Non-GAAP measures used by other

companies Investors should not rely on any single financial measure

when evaluating our business We recommend that investors view

these measures in conjunction with the U.S GAAP measures included

in this MDA and have provided reconciliations of reported U.S

GAAP amounts to the Non-GAAP amounts

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This MDA and other portions of this Annual Report to Shareholders

contain various Forward-Looking Statements within the meaning

of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These

statements include expectations concerning items such as

scope timing ccsts cash expenditures benefits and headcount

impact of our restructuring initiatives

closing of the Champion acguisition

objective to improve credit rating

ability to deliver superior shareholder returns

long-term potential of our business

impact of changes in exchange rates and interest rates

losses due to concentration of credit risk

Cleantec escrow settlement

recognition of share-based compensation expense

future benefit plan payments

amortization expense

European economic uncertainty including euro currency issues

demographic trends and their impact on end-markets

outlook for growth

special gains and charges

benefits of and synergies from the Nalco merger

bad debt experiences and customer credit worthiness

disputes claims and litigation

environmental contingencies

returns on pension plan assets

currency gains and losses

investments

potential for margin improvement in our non-U.S business

cash flow and uses for cash

business acguisitions and sources of funding

dividends

contributions to pension and postretirement healthcare plans

liguidity reguirements and borrowing methods

impact of credit rating downgrade

impact of new accounting pronouncements

tax deductiblity of goodwill

non performance of counterparties

timing of hedged transactions

income taxes including loss carryforwards unrecogruzed tax

benefits and uncertain tax positions

Without limiting the foregoing words or phrases such as will likely

resUlt are expected to will continue is anticipated we

believe we expect estimate project including the negative or

variations thereof or similar terminology generally identify forward-

looking statements Forward-looking statements may aso represent

challenging goals for us These statements which reprEsent the

companys expectations or beliefs concerning various fJture events

are based on current expectations that involve number of risks and

uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from

those of such forward-looking statements We caution that undue

reliance should not be placed on such forward-looking statements

which speak only as of the date made Some of the factors which

could cause results to differ from those expressed in ary forward-

looking statements are set forth under Item 1A of our Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2012 entitled Risk Factors

In addition we note that our stock price can be affected by

fluctuations in guarterly earnings There can be no assurances that

our earnings levels will meet investors expectations Except as may

be reguired under applicable law we undertake no dut to update

our Forward-Looking Statements

share repurchases

debt repayments
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011 2010

Net sales including special charges of $29.6 in 2011 11838.7 6798.5 6089.7

Operating expenses

Cost of sales including special charges of $93.9 in 2012 and $8.9 in 2011 6483.5 3475.6 303.8

Selling general and administrative expenses 3920.2 2438.1 2261.6

Special gains and charges 145.7 131.0 7.5

Operating income 1289.3 753.8 806.8

Interest expense net including special charges of $19.3 in 2012 and $1.5 in 2011 276.7 74.2 59.1

Income before income taxes 1012.6 679.6 74T7

Provision for income taxes 311.3 216.3 216.6

Net income including noncontrolling interest 701.3 463.3 531.1

Less Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interest including special

charges of $4.5 in 2012 2.3 0.8 0.8

Net income attributable to Ecolab 703.6 462.5 530.3

Earnings attributable to Ecolab per common share

Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

Weghfed-average common shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

2.41 1.95 2.27

2.35 1.91 2.23

0.8300 0.7250 0.6400

292.5 236.9 233.4

..
298.9 242.1 237.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED DEICEMBER 31 MILLIONS

Net income including noncontrolling interest

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Foreign currency translation

Gain loss on net investment hedges

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

2012 2011 2010

701.3 463.3 531.1

4.8 34.0 111.6

9.8 9.5 37.6

14.6 24.5 74.0

Derivatives and hedging instruments

Unrealized losses during the period 1.9 15.1 2.5

Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income 1.8 4.9 2.9

0.1 10.2 0.4

Pension and postretirement benefits

Current period net actuarial loss 184.0 113.2 9.3

Pension and postretirement prior period service costs and benefits adjustments 21.8 2.6 25.1

Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service cost included in net periodic pension

and postretirement costs
31.0 233 17.8

131.2 87.3 33.6

Subtotal 116.7 73.0 40.0

Total comprehensive income including noncontrolling interest
584.6 390.3 491.1

Less Comprehensive income loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 4.2 0.8 0.2

Comprehensive income attributable to Ecolab
588.8__J

389.5 491.3
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31 MlLLlDNS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2D11

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1157.8 1843.6

Accounts receivable net 2225.1 2095.3

Inventories 1088.1 1069.6

Deferred income taxes 205.2 164.0

Other current assets 215.8 223.5

Total current assets 4892.0 5396.0

Property plant and equipment net 2409.1 2295.4

Goodwill 5920.5 5855.3

Other
intangible assets net 4044.1 4275.2

Other assets 306.6 362.8

Total assets 17572.3 18184.7

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Short-term debt 805.8 1023.0

Accounts payable 879.7 815.7

Compensation and benefits 518.8 497.2

Income taxes 77.4 81.7

Other current liabilities 771.0 748.7

Total current liabilities 3052.7 3166.3

Longterm debt 5736.1 6613.2

Postretirement health care and pension benefits 1220.5 1173.4

Other liabilities 1402.9 1490.7

Total liabilities 11412.2 12443.6

Equity

Common stock 342.1 336.1

Additional paidon capital 4249.1 3980.8

Retained earnings 4020.6 3559.9

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 459.7 344.9

Treasury stock 2075.1 1865.2

Total Ecolab shareholders equity 6077.0 5666.7

Noncontrolling interest 83.1 74.4

Total equity 6160.1 5741.1

Total liabilities and equity 17572.3 18184.7

Common stock 800.0 million shares authorized $1.00 par value 294.7 million shares outstanding at December 31 2012 292.0 million shares outstanding at

December 31 2011

The aCcompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 MILLIONS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income including noncontrolling interest

Adjustments to reconcile net income including noncontrolling interest

to cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization

Deferred income taxes

Share-based compensation expense

Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements

Pension and postretirement plan contributions

Pension and postretirement plan expense

Restructuring net of cash paid

Gain on sale of businesses

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effect of acquisitions

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other assets

Accounts payable

Other liabilities

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

468.2

246.3

3.2

65.8

50.1

254.9

114.6

66.6

89.3

5.6

331.4

64.3

41.7

39.9

13.7

156.6

83.1

49.5

8.9

2012

701.3

2011 2010

463.3 531.1

306.4

41.5

31.1

29.2

16.9

46.6

90.8

1.8

189.7 106.0 39.3

2.0 36.1 18.6

18.6 60.2 42.4

79.0 60.9 6.8

26.2 84.9 15.7

Cash provided by operating activities 1203.0 685.5 950.4

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures 574.5 341.7 260.5

Capitalized software expenditures 33.0 24.3 37.2

Property and other assets sold 15.9 3.0 2.6

Businesses acquired and investments in affiliates net of cash acquired 43.0 1633.2 43.4

Sale of businesses 130.7 16.0

Deposit into indemnification escrow 1.3 28.1 2.1

Release from indemnification escrow 17.3 21.0

Cash used for investing activities 487.9 2024.3 303.6

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net issuances repayments of commercial paper and notes payable 387.3 907.1 66.6

Long-term debt borrowings 1001.2 4238.7

Long-term debt repayments 1694.9 1420.4 7.4

Reacquired shares 209.9 690.0 348.8

Cash dividends paid on common stock 306.8 162.9 145.5

Exercise of employee stock options 163.7 89.0 89.2

Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 50.1 13.7 16.9

Other net 9.7 41.4

Cash provided by used for financing activities 1393.6 2933.8 462.2

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7.3 6.3 15.9

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 685.8 1601.3 168.7

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 1843.6 242.3 73.6

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 1157.8 1843.6 242.3

Income taxes paid

Interest paid

222.6 224.2 209.6

279.0 71.1 63.3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY

ECOLAB SHARLT CT

ADD TIONAL

PAID IN

CAPITAL

1179.3

UM TL
CJHE

CJMPREHLN ILL

NLOML

232.9

The accompany ng notes are an integral part of the consolidated financia statements

COMMON

STOCL

329.8

Ml IC

Balance December 31 2009

Net income

Comprehensive income activity

Total comprehensive income

Sale of noncontrolling interests

Cash dividends declared

Stock options and awards

Reacquired shares

PLEA NE
CAP IN

2898.1

530.3

149.3

CLI LAB

HAPLHOLDLRS CONTROLLING TOTAL

iLRCS EIUITY

2173.4 2000.9 8.7 2009.6

3.3 130.9

530.3 0.8 53 .1

39.0 39.0 1.0 40.0

491.3

149.3

135.1

348.8

0.9

348.8

0.2 491.1

4.7 4.7

149.3

135.1

348.8

Balance December 31 2010 333.1 1310.2 3279.1 271.9 2521.3 2129.2 3.8 133.0

Net income 462.5 462.5 0.8 463.3

Comprehensive income activity 73.0 73.0 73.0

Total comprehensive income 389.5 0.8 390.3

Cash dividends declared 181.7 181.7 0.6 182.3

Nalco merger 2573.2 1300.0 3873.2 70.4 3943.6

Stock options and awards 3.0 142.1 1.4 146.5 146.5

Reacqured shares 44.7 645.3 690.0 690.0

Balance December 31 2011 336.1 3980.8 3559.9 344.9 1865.2 5666.7 74.4 5741.1

Net income 703.6 703.6 2.3 701.3

Comprehensive income activity 114.8 114.8 1.9 116.7

Total comprehensive income 588.8 4.2 584.6

Cash dividends declared 242.9 242.9 3.9 246.8

Nalco merger 0.3 0.3 16.8 17.1

Stock options and awards 6.0 260.7 7.3 274.0 274.0

Reacquired shares 7.3 217.2 209.9 209.9

Balance December 31 2012 342.1 4249.1 4020.6 459.7 2075.1 6077.0 83.1 6160.1

COMMON STOCK ACTIVITY

2012 Cl

YEAR ENDED EMBER 31 COMMON TREASURY 0MM OMMON TRLAURL
SHAR S1OCK STOCK ST CR STE CR S1OK

Shares beginning of year 336088243 44113799 333141410 OC628659 329825.650 93230.909

Stock options shares 5430997 208239 2946833 93771 3315760 98332

Stock awards ret issuances 587341 21257 114064 112080

Nalco merger 68316283

Reacquired shares 3457740 12009258 7608162

Shares end of veer 342106581 47384557 336088243 44113799 333141410 100628659
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Ecolab Inc Ecolab or the company is the global leader in

water hygiene and energy technologies and services that provide

and protect clean water safe food abundant energy and healthy

environments The company delivers comprehensive programs and

services to the food energy healthcare industrial and hospitality

markets in approximately 170 countries

The companys cleaning and sanitizing programs and products

pest elimination services and eguipment maintenance and repair

services support cLstomers in the foodservice food and beverage

processing hospitality healthcare government and education

retail textile care and commercial facilities management sectors

The companys chemicals and technologies are also used in water

treatment pollution control energy conservation oil production

and refining steelmaking papermaking mining and other industrial

processes

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the

company and all subsidiaries in which the company has controlling

financial interest Investments in companies or partnerships in

which the company does not have control but has the ability to

exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies

are reported using the eguity method International subsidiaries

are included in the financial statements on the basis of their

U.S GAAP November30 fiscal year-ends to facilitate the timely

inclusion of su entities in the companys consolidated financial

reporting All intercompany transactions and profits are eliminated

in consolidation

Revisions

In connection with its quarterly report on Form 10-0 for the guarter

ended June 30 2012 the company has revised its consolidated

balance sheet as 01 December 31 2011 to correct the jurisdictional

netting of long-term deferred tax assets and liabilities This revision

decreased other assets and other liabilities by $56.1 million and does

not impact the consolidated statements of income or comprehensive

income or the consolidated statement of cash flows for any

period This correction also impacted the March 31 2012 interim

financial statements In addition to jurisdictional netting additional

classification differences primarily related to the repayment of debt

in January 2012 were identified between deferred income taxes and

income taxes payable which together had the net effect of reducing

other assets by $57.1 million income taxes payable by $64.9

million and increasing other liabilities by $7.8 million as of March

31 2012 There wac no impact to total cash provided by operations

on the statement of cash flows for the three months ended March

31 2012 but cash used by deferred income taxes was reduced by

$64.9 million with an offsetting impact to other liabilities within the

components of operating cash flows There was no impact on the

consolidated xl atements of income or comprehensive income The

company believes Ihat these revisions were immaterial to previously

issued financial statements

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the companys financial statements requires

management to make certain estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could

differ from these estimates The companys critical accounting

estimates include revenue recognition valuation allowances and

accrued liabilities actuarially determined liabilities income faxes

restructuring and long-lived assets intangible assets and goodwill

Foreign Currency Translation

Financial position and reported results of operations 01 the

companys international subsidiaries are measured using local

currencies as the fUnctional currency Assets and liabilities of these

operations are translated at the exchange rates in effet at each

fiscal year end The translation adjustments related to assets and

liabilities that arise from the use of differing exchange rates from

period to period are included in accumulated other conprehensive

income loss in shareholders equity Income statement accounts

are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during the

year The company evaluates its International operations based

on fixed rates of exchange however the different exchange rates

from period to period impact the amount of reported income from

consolidated operations The foreign currency fluctuations of any

foreign subsidiaries that operate in highly inflationary anvironments

are included in results of operations

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized

at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as

contracted The company believes the likelihood of incjrring

material losses due to concentration of credit risk is remote The

principal financial instruments subject to credit risk are as follows

Cash and Cash Equivalents The company maintains cash deposits

with major banks which from time to time may exceed insured

limits The possibility of loss related to financial condition of major

banks has been deemed minimal Additionally the companys

investment policy limits exposure to concentrations of credit risk

and changes in market conditions

Accounts Receivable large number of customers in diverse

industries and geographies as well as the practice of establishing

reasonable credit lines limits credit risk Based on historical trends

and experiences the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate to

cover potential credit risk losses

Foreign Currency Contracts and Derivatives Exposure to credit

risk is limited by internal policies and active monitoring of

outstanding positions In addition the company selects diversified

group of major international banks and financial institutions as

counterparties The company does not anticipate nonperformance

by any of these counterparties

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly-liquid investments witi maturity of

three months or less when purchased The companys cash and cash

equivalent balances as of December 31 2012 and 2011 were higher

than ifs historical trend The increased balance as of year end 2012

was due primarily to buildup in cash in anticipation of the pending

Champion acquisition The increased balance as of year end 2011 was

due primarily to the timing of proceeds from the companys public

debt offering in December 2011 coupled with the redemption of

Nalcos senior notes in January 2012

Accounts Receivable and Allowance For

Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried at their face amounts less an

allowance for doubtful accounts Accounts receivable are recorded

at the invoiced amount and generally do not hear interest The

company estimates the balance of allowance for doubtful accounts
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by analyzing accounts receivable balances by age and applying

historical write-off and collection trend rates The companys

estimates include separately providing for customer balances based

on specific circumstances and credit conditions and when it is

deemed probable that the balance is uncollectible Account balances

are charged off against the allowance when it is determined the

receivable will not be recovered

The companys allowance for doubtful accounts balance includes an

allowance for the expected return of products shipped and credits

related to pr cinq or quantities shipped of approximately $13 million

$12 million and $7 million as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Returns and credit activity is recorded directly to sales

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for

doubtful accounts

MILLION

Beginning balance

Bad debt expense

Write-offs

Otheh

Ending balance

2012 2011 2010

$45 $52

37 15 18

13 16 20

$49 $45

Other amounts are primarily the effects of changes in currency translations

and the impact of allowance for returns and credits

Inventory Valuations

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Certain

U.S inventory costs are determined on last-in first-out LIFO
basis LIFO inventories represented 31% and 30% of consolidated

inventories as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively All other

inventory co are determined using either the average cost or

first-in first-out FIFO methods Inventory values at FIFO as shown

in Note approximate replacement cost

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Merchandising

and customer equipment consists principally of various systems

that dispense the companys cleaning and sanitizing products

dishwashing machines and process control and monitoring

equipment Certain dispensing systems capitalized by the company

are accounted for on mass asset basis whereby equipment is

capitalized and depreciated as group and written off when fully

depreciated The company capitalizes both internal and external

costs of development or purchase of computer software for internal

use Costs incurred for data conversion training and maintenance

associated with capitalized software are expensed as incurred

Expenditures for major renewals and improvements which

significantly extend the useful lives of existing plant and equipment

are capitalized and depreciated Expenditures for repairs and

maintenance are charged to expense as incurred Upon retirement

or disposition of plant and equipment the cost and related

accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any

resulting gain or loss is recognized in income

Depreciation is charged to operations using the straight-line

method over the assets estimated useful lives ranging from to 40

years for buildings and leasehold improvements to 18 years for

machinery arid equipment and to 10 years for merchandising and

customer equipment and capitalized software Total depreciation

expense was $468 million $331 million and $306 million for 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair

value of identifiable net assets acquired The companys reporting

units are its opera/rig segments The company tests qoodwili

for impairment on an annual basis during the second quarter If

circumstances change significantly the company would also test

reporting unit for impairment during interim periods between the

annual tests An inipairment charge is recognized for the amount

if any by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied

fair value

The current year goodwill impairment review incorporated the new

qualitative assessment guidance as discussed in Note for certain

reporting units In addition to the qualitative analysis the company

performed quantitxtive procedures including review of sensitivities

around key inpUts assumptions and business projections for

certain reporting Lnits Supplemental quantitative procedures were

performed on the EMEA reporting unit given the European economic

conditions as well as the Global Water Global Paper and Global

Energy reporting units given the recent closing of the merger with

Nalco on December 2011

As expected the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value

of Global Water 01 nbal Paper ard Global Energy reporting units by

low margin as ihese separate reporting units were acquired on

December 2011 shen the carrying value equaled the fair value

As part of this anaysis the company updated the discount rate

assumptions used the quantitative procedures for the reduction

in risk free rates in 2012 and other reductions in risk given the

successful integration to date The company used range of

discount rates from Q.6% to 10.4% compared to the ll.S% discount

rate used in the orginal Nalco purchase price allocation The

combined effect of lower discount rates and the updated projections

drove an increase in estimated fair value for these roporting units in

all cases

Based on the comfanys testing rio adjustment to the carrying

value of qoodwili was necessary Additionally based on the ongoing

performance of the companys operating units updating the

impairment testing during the second half of 2012 was not deemed

necessary There has been no impairment of goodwill since the

adoption of FASB guidance for goodwill and other intangibles on

January 2002

The merger with Nalco resulted in the addition of $4.5 billion of

goodwill Subsequent performance of the reporting units holding the

additional goodwill relative to projections used in the purchase price

allocation of goodwill could result in an impairment if there is either

underperformance by the reporting unit or if the carrying valJe of

the reporting urrt were to fluctuate due to working capital changes

or other reasons that did not proportionately increase fair value
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for each of the companys reportable segments are as follows

US 0.5 INTERNATIONAL

CLEANIN0 OTHER cLEANING SANITIZING GLOBAL GLOBAL GLOBAL

MILLIONS SANITIZING SERVICES SERVICES WATLR PAPER ENERGY TOTAL

December 31 2010 454.4 50.5 824.4 1329.3

Business acquisitions 89.2 5.1 1933.0 179.3 2291.6 4498.2

Effect of foreign currency translation 27.8 27.8

December 31 2011 543.6 50.5 857.3 1933.0 179.3 2291.6 5855.3

Current year business acquisitions 17.1 6.1 23.2

Prior year business acquisitions 22.9 9.6 20.5 53.0

Business disposals 17.1 17.1

Effect of foreign currency translation 19.2 11.1 1.0 13.2 6.1

Reclassificationsc 12.6 7.5 20.1

December 31 2012 513.9 50.5 847.7 1993.2 189.9 2325.3 5920.5

For 2012 none of the goodwill acquired is expected to betas deductible For 2011 $89.2 million of goodwill acquired is expected to be tax deductible

bThe company Eompleted its segment goodwill allocation related to the Nalco merger during the second quarter of 2012 As such goodwill acquired through the

Nalco merger has been disclosed for each legacy Nalco reportable segment above as of the date of the merger December 2011

The reclassifications line represents the transfer of certain water treatment related goodwill into the Global Water reportable segment

Other Intangible Assets

As part of the Nalco merger the company added the Nalco trade name as an indefinite life intangible asset The $1.2 billion ca-rying value of

this asset was subject to impairment testing during the second guarter of 2012 Based on this testing no adjustment to the carr/ing value was

necessary

Other intangible assets subject to amortization primarily include cUstomer relationships trademarks patents and other technology The

fair value of identifiable intangible assets is estimated based upon discounted future cash flow projections and other acceptable valuation

methods Other intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated economic lives The weighted-average useful life

of other intangible assets was 14 years as of December 31 2012 and 2011

The weighted-average useful life by type of amortizable asset at December 31 2012 is as follows

NUMBER OF YEARS

Customer relationshIps 15

Trademarks 16

Patents 14

Other technology

The straight-line method of amortization reflects an appropriate allocation of the cost of the intangible assets to earnings in proportion to

the amount of economic benefits obtained by the company in each reporting period The company evaluates the remaining usefal life of its

intangible assets that are being amortized each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant chaoge to the

remaining period of amortization If the estimate of an intangible assets remaining useful life is Changed the remaining carrying amount

of the intangible asset will be amortized prospectively over that revised remaining useful life Total amortization expense related to other

intangible assets during the last three years and future estimated amortization is as follows

MILLIONS

2010 $41

2011 62

2012 237

2013 240

2014 224

2015 223

2016 217

2017 214

The significant increase in amortization from 2011 to 2012 is due primarily to the amortizable intangible assets acguired through the Nalco

Ill erg

Long-Lived Assets

The company periodically reviews its long-lived and amortizable intangible assets for impairment and assesses whether significant events

or changes in business Circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable An impairment loss may be

recognized when ttie carrying amount of an asset exceeds the anticipated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use

of the asset and its eventual disposition The amount of the impairment loss to be recorded if any is calculated by the excess of the assets

carrying value ove- its fair value

Asset Retirement Obligations

The fair value of liability for an asset retirement obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets is recocnized in the

period in which it incurred if reasonable estimate of fair value can be made The liability is adjusted to its present value in subseguent
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nod is accreton expense is recorded The correspond nq asset

retirement costs are spita
ized as part of the ran ry nq amount of

the re xted cog-I ved as and dop eciated over the assets useful

fe ftc corn nanys asset retirement obligation it
ility was $13.0

mi Ion and $11.0 respectively at December 31 2012 and 2011

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recognized during the per od in whirh transactions

enter nto the determination of financial statement ncome

with deferrer ncome taxes being provided tor the tax effect of

tempoiary differences between the carrying amount of assets and

lush tics md tteir tax bares The company records valuation

ii ow nec to reduce its deterred tax assets when uncertainty

regard ng he realzahlity exists Deferr ed income taxes are

proviced on Ihr undistributed earnings ot tore gn subsidiar es

excep to thc extent such earning are considered to be permanently

reirvd ted the scibs diary

Tnn cornparp records liaoiit os for income fox uncertainties

cvrda with the recogHto ond oeasurenent ritea

prescribed ir aotlroritatve guidance issued by the FASB

Restructuring Activities

Thp co npan ncurs costs for restructuring activities associated

with plans to enhanre ts effic ency and effectiveness and sharpen

ts cornpet eriess These restructuring plans include costs

assoc ated tt sign ticant actions involving employee-related

severance char yes contract term nation costs and asset write

dowrus Employee termination costs are largely based on go Ic es and

severr icc p1 rns and inc ude personnel reductions and related costs

tnr cc verar us Imenefits and outplacement cci vrew These charoes

are ret ected in the guarer whirh the actions am probable and

the amounts are estimab wh ch is general when management

approves the associated actions Contract torminaf on costs inc lode

charges to ternurrate leuses prior to the end of the respective

terms and otier contract terminator costs Asset wrte-downs

inc ude leasehold improvement write-downs and other asset wr te

downs assoc cited with comb nnq erations

Revenue Recognition

The co xmpan recognizes revenue on product sales at the time

esiderice of arrangemr nt exists title to the product and risk of

loss transfer to the customer the price xed and determinable

arid co lect oi is reasonably assured The us mparry recognizes

reven ie on srs ces as they ai perforrx ed WhIe the company

employs sa es and sersice team to ensure customers needs ire

best et in high guilitv way the vast majority of the companys

revenue is gener ted from product ales Outsde of the servce

businesses scussed in Note 16 an other services are either

ncrdental to product sale and not sold separately or nsignrficant

The compvnj so es polices cto ot provide tor general ights crf

return Critical estimates used in recognizing rever ue include the

delay between the time that products are shpped err they rre

received by customers when title transfers and the amount of

credit memos issued subsequent periods The company records

estimated relurt ons to revenue for customer programs and

incent ye cftirings inc ucting pric rig arrangements promotions

arid Other vo ume based incentives it the time the sa is recorded

The compiri\ so recorcts estimated reser vex for anticipated

uircol ectible accounts and for product ret irns and cred ts at the

time of sole Depending In market conditicrrrs we may increase

cusfors en irus en toe offerings which cou reduce gross prof

marg ns at the roe the rr enfive is offered

Share-Based Compensation

The com an mr-i rec cornpcnsrt on expens

bised awards at fa salue at ftc ctmte ot grant ar Ire oqnize

compensatior c- nse over tlus erv cc period awards expected

to vest Gracts tircriier cI oible rec pierits ige 55 with

required veirs -i cr-i ittr buted to experrse using the non

substantive vest rrc rnethc md are fu ly expen over month

period ol owing the dote grnt add tion tee company rcluder

for feiture estinia us the in cr0 of compensrt 01 expense be nq

recognized flare ci in stimafe of the nuiy ocr itstancling

awards expe tec tc je

Earnings Per Common Share

The computatrmi he mrrd di utod carni is mtfrihutati to

Ecolab per sharr counts were fo lows

MILL ONC

EXCEPT PER SHAIE

Net income attributab to Ecolab

Weighted average common

shares outstanding

Basic 292.5 236.9 233.4

Effect of dilut xc stock

options units and awards 6.4 5.2 4.2

Diluted 298.9 242.1 237.6

Anti-dilutive securities

excluded from toe computation

of earnings per share

Comprehensive Income

2.41 1.95 2.27

2.35 1.91 2.23

2.6 4.7 6.2

Comprehensive incorr ludes ef income for gn ccrrrerrc

transl ition adj rtrx nits urmc cogn ted
gain

and sses or

securil icr defir oct fit Penn ion md post retir crier an

adjustrnmr nts iifls inrd losses nm lerivat ye nstr urz erits lesignatect

and effective is iH flue lmedcies and non doris if
i-

iristr cment

designat unici ft five as for eign currerusy nec nyc tment

hedges that are ch rich credited to thre acc uo uloted othe

compnehensise account shareholde ego

Derivative Instruments and Hedging

The company rs fore or curren forwa coctrcfs interest

rate swaps ard fr ign currency debt to manage sks generally

assocrrfed with forc ipr exchaim je rates interest rates and nef

investo cots ni foreign operat ns Tht compann does rot ho .1

dec vative tirmari nsfr onnnt of speculafve iture or for

tradng urpose

All of the coisipu ci rival vex are rccogrr ted or tl balance sheet

at their iir valc he earn ngs impact resu ng from the ch nge

in fair va1ee If -r otive inctrumentc is reri dud iii thu im
line item toe car datrd stiterront of ncorc as Itre unide ying

expocur be rig edgrh

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 tIre cASB issciej irpdted accounting guidance or to

value nneasurenmrontr The updated guidance ms iltod in comnron

fair value meascrement air liclosure regurremerrfs between U.S

GAAP aol lnteii at rr inan al Report ng St mr daids IFRSi
The company ad ni eu this go dance effective Joriuar 2012 The

adoptcir dii riot hi nrafeiia impact or the di losures the

company canso Id itch fin mr ral infor mat cii

2012

703.6

rrrn

462.5 530.3

Earnings attributable to

Ecolab per common share

Basic

Diluted
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SPECIAL GAINS AND CHARGESIn June 2011 and sabsequently amended in December 2011 the FASB

issued final guidane on the presentation of comprehensive income

Under the newly issued guidance net income and comprehensive

income may only be presented either as one continuous statement

or in two separate but consecutive statements The company

adopted this guidance effective January 2012 with comprehensive

income shown on separate statement immediately following the

Consolidated Statement of Income

In September 2011 the FASB amended its guidance on the testing

of goodwill impairment to allow an entity the option to first assess

qualitative factors to determine whether performing the current

two-step process is necessary Under the new option the calculation

of the reporting urats fair value is not reguired unless as result

of the gualitative assessment it is more likely than not that the fair

value of the reporfing unit is less than the units carrying amount

The company adopted this guidance effective with its annual

goodwill impairment testing during the second guarter of 2012

The adoption did not have material impact on the companys

consolidated financial statements

In December 2011 the FASB issued final standard on balance

sheet offsetting disclosures clarification in the scope of the final

standard was issued in January 2013 and reguires disclosures to

provide information to help reconcile differences in the offsetting

reguirements under U.S GAAP and IFRS This guidance is effective

for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 2013

and interim periods within those annual periods The company is

currently evaluating the impact of adoption

In July 2012 the FASB amended its guidance on testing of indefinite-

lived intangible assets for impairment Under the amended guidance

companies may perform gualitative assessment to determine

whether further impairment testing is necessary similar to the

amended goodwill impairment testing guidance discussed above

The guidance for indefinite-lived intangible assets is effective for

annual and interim tests performed for fiscal years beginning

after September 15 2012 with an option for early adoption As

the company performed its impairment testing on indefinite life

intangible assets luring the second guarter of 2012 the amended

guidance will be applied to the testing performed in 2013 The

adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material impact

on the companys financial statements

In August 2012 the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the

SEC adopted rule mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act to reguire

companies to publicly disclose their use of conflict minerals that

originated in the Democratic Republic of the Congo or an adjoining

country The final rule applies to company that uses minerals

including tantalum tin gold or tungsten The final rule reguires

companies to provide disclosure on new form filed with the SEC

with the first specialized disclosure report due on May 31 2014 for

the 2013 calendar year and annually on May 31 each year thereafter

The company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption

In February 2013 the FASB issued final standard on reporting

amounts reclassifed out of accumulated other comprehensive

income The standard reguires an entity to provide information

about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other

comprehensive inome by component This guidance is effective for

reporting periods beginning after December 15 2012 The company

is currently evaluating the impact of adoption

No other new accoLinting pronouncements issued or effective have

had or are expected to have material impact on the companys

consolidated financial statements

Special gains and charges reported on the Consolidated Statement

of Income included the following

MLLIONS 2012 2011 2010

Net sales

Customer agreement modification 29.6

Cost of sales

Restructuring charges 22.7 5.3

Recognition of Nalco inventory

fair value step-up

Subtotal 93.9 8.9

Special gains and charges

Restructuring charges 116.6 69.0

Champion acquisition costs 18.3

Nalco merger and integration

costs
70.9 57.7

Gain on sale of businesses litigation

related charges and other 60.1 4.3 3.3

Venezuela currency devaluation 4.2

Subtotal 145.7 131.0 7.5

Operating income subtotal 239.6 169.5 7.5

Interest expense net

Debt extinguishment costs 18.2

Merger and acquisition debt costs 1.1 1.5

Subtotal 19.3 1.5

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Recognition of Nalco inventory

fair value step-up 4.5

Total special gains and charges 254.4 171.0 7.5

For segment reporting purposes special gains and charges are

included in the Corporate segment which is consistent with the

companys internal management reporting

Restructuring charges

Restructuring charges have been included as component of both

cost of sales and special gains and charges on the Consolidated

Statement of Income Amounts included as component of cost of

sales include supply chain related severance Restrucuring liabilities

have been classified as component of other current liabilities on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet

2011 Restructuring Plan

In February 2011 the company commenced comprehensive plan

to improve substantially the efficiency and effectiveness of its

European business sharpen its competitiveness and accelerate its

growth and profitability Additionally restructuring has been and will

continue to be undertaken outside of Europe collectively the 2011

Restructuring Plan Through the 2011 Restructuring Plan over 750

positions are expected to be eliminated

The company expects to incur pretax restructuring charges of

approximately $150 million $125 million after tax under the 2011

Restructuring Plan through the completion of the Plan in 2013 The

company anticipates that approximately $140 million of the pro-tax

charge will represent cash expenditures The remaining $10 million

of the pre-tax charges represent estimated asset disposals or other

non-cash expenses No decisions have been made for any remaining

asset disposals and estimates could vary depending on the actual

actions taken

As result of restructuring activities under the 2011 Restructuring

Plan the company has recorded restructuring charges of $134.3

million $100.3 million after tax since the inception of the Plan

During 2012 and 2011 the company recorded restrucl.uring charges

of $66.2 million $46.1 million after tax and $68.1 million $54.2

million after tax respectively

71.2 3.6
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Merger Restructuring Plan

In January 2012 following the merger with Nalco the corrrpan3 for mally commer uu plans tc rrdertake estructuring actiors re afed to

the reuctrcr of fs globai worktorce and optimization of its supply chain and off cc faciltes or lading anned reductions of plant and

distribution conter locations the Merger Restru turing Plan Acti ns osso rated with thu ri rger to rnprovo eff1 iency and effectiveness

haAe led to reduction of the company workforcc by approximately 500 postion during Jr th addtronal productv t7 and efficiency

act on beyond 2012 expected to reduce the need for future positions by approximately l50

The company expects that restr ucturing activities under the Merger Restructur flan con pletec Oy the end of 2513 with fota costs

throucih the vnd of 2013 anticipated to he approximately $180 million $120 million after taN The compary antic pates that approximatr ly

$160 nrlion 01 the pie tax restructuring charges II represent cash experrditure Th emarr np $20 ml on ot the prEtax hargos represent

cst too as et disposals and other non-cash expenses No decisions have been ftade rnaininq asset disposals ancf otrrnates Lild

sarv dr pend ig on the ax too action tken

remIt of restructuring act vif as under fhe Merger Restructuring Plan the corr pany nas recorded restructoi np charqcs of $79.8 iRon

$58.6 mlI err after tax nec the inception of the Plan During 2012 arid 2011 tho ompan3 cm rJed cacti cw turing cfrarge $73.2 mili on

$54.7 ii en after tax and $6.6 ml lion $4.1 million after tax respectively

Restructurinc sar ges and subsequent ti olty related to the 2011 Restruturrr an rod Ire Me per Restructuring Plan nrc the nrc stron

of cxcv respect ye an include the ol owing

2011 Restructuring Plan Merger Restructuring Plan

EMPL YEt EMPLOYEE

SERM ner ON essrs rERM Ncr El

ML EL cosrs 5P05AL5 OTHER suxro AL rsi CO IHER er xi TA

2011 Actvity

Recorded exrense and

accrual 60.5 0.5 7.1 68.1 6.6 6.6 74.7

Cash payments 22.2 2.6 24.8 0.3 0.3 25.1
Non-cash charges 0.5 0.5 0.5
Effect of forergn currency

translation 2.2 2.2 2.2
Restructuring liability

December 31 2011 36.1 4.5 40.6 6.3 6.3 46.9

2012 Activity

Recorded expense and
______

accrual 60.7 5.5 66.2 65.4 3.2 4.6 73.2 139.4

Cash payments 33.6 1.5 35.1 28.4 1.8 30.2 65.3
Non-cash charges 3.9 3.9 3.2 3.2 7.1
Effect of fore gn currency

translatron 0.8 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.7
Restructuri-ig liability

December 31 2012 62.4 4.6 67.0 43.4 2.8 46.2 113.2

5/ro Fiestr tunng Plan

Prior to the ro merger Na co conducted various restructuring programs to redesign ano rr iz ifs busi ses arrcl work processes 1flre

Nalro Restructuring Parr As part of the Nalco merger Erolab assumed the NaIc Rostrucf no Plan labi ity balance of 610.0 Ilion wt dr

was primarily related to accrued severance and termination benefits As of December 31 2112 and 200 the remaining lrabr ify balance related

lotte Nalco Restructuring Plan was $3.4 ml ion and $10.6 million respectively Cash payments dur ng 2012 related to this an were $7.4

milIon The company expects to otilice the remaining liability through 2013 as part of he rcrn out of this Plar

Non-restructuring specia gains and charges

Na/co riser per and rntegraron costs

As reso of ih Nalco merger durrrg 2012 and 2011 the company incurred charges of $15c.l3 million $13.7 million after tax md $62.8

minion $45.6 mi Ion after tax respectively Nalco merger charges rye been li-ic uded as coroponrnt of cost of sales special gainsl mi
chargeA neA interest expense and net income loss attrbutahle to noncorstrollrng interest en toe Coirsolidated Statement of Income Aft ounts

inc uded in cost of sNes and nd ncome loss attr butab to noricontrolling interact include racognitiorm of fair value step-tip in Nalco

nternational meMory whce is maintained orn lFQ basis Amountc included special qin rid roar pry in crude merger arnd integral err

chargeA closing costs and advsory fees Amounts inc uded in net interest expense nclude loss on the extingu shment of Nalcos serrio

notes which were assumenl as part of the merger and fees to seure short-term credit Mcii fir to nrtial turd the Na co men per Further

detar related to the Nalco merger are included in Note

Champ on xr nc/f/on costs

As ult at he pending Champion acgoisit on during 2012 the company incurred charges $19.4 II on i$16.7 ft illor aftcr tax Clnamp on

acqarsi.iors harges have teen included as comporrent of special pa ond charges and ret interest expense on the Consclidated Stntsrnen

of Income Amounts inc oiled special gains and harges nclode acgursition costc and adviser fees Anrorrnts included net interest

expense inc urIc fees to se ore term loans arid shor f-term debt and the irrterest expense irni of our $500 miilion pub ic debt rssoan .e in

Deremrer 202 ill of Lhir werr initiated to fund tIne Shaft/glen acquisiron Further details re tIed to the Champion acquis on we nclr bed

Note
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Other special ga/no and charges

During 2012 the company recorded net gain of $60.1 million $35.7

million after tax related to the sale of its Vehicle Care division the

receipt of addifional payments related to the sale of an investment

in U.S business originally sold prior to 2012 and litigation related

charges

In the fourth quarter of 2011 the company modified long-term

customer agreement that was assumed as part of previous

acquisition The impact of the modification was included in net

sales on the Consolidated Statement of Income resulting in sales

reduction of $29.6 million $18.4 million after tax

In the first quarter of 2011 the company completed the purchase

of the assets of the Cleantec business of Campbell Brothers Ltd

Brisbane Queensland Australia Cleantec Special gains and

charges in 2011 incuded acquisition integration costs incurred to

optimize the Cleanec business structure Further details related to

the Cleantec acqui are included in Note

Special gains and charges in 2010 include costs to optimize

the companys business structures Special gains and charges

during 2010 also include the recognition of gain on the sale of an

investment in U.S business The investment was not material to the

companys consolidated results of operations or financial position

Beginning in 2010 Venezuela was designated hyper-inflationary

and as such all foreign currency fluctuations are recorded in

income On January 2010 the Venezuelan government devalued

its currency the Bolivar Fuerte As result of the devaluation the

company recorded charge in the first quarter of 2010 due to the

remeasurement of the local balance sheet using the official rate of

exchange for the Bolivar Fuerte

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisitions

Ecolab makes acquisitions from time to time that align with the

companys strategic business objectives In accordance with

authoritative guidance on business combination accounting the

assets and liabilities of the acquired entities have been recorded

as of the acquisition date at their respective fair values and

consolidated with he company The purchase price allocation is

based on estimates of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed The results of operations related to each acquired entity

have been included in the results of the company from the date each

entity was acquired The aggregate purchase price of acquisitions

has been reduced for any cash or cash equivalents acquired with the

acquisition

Na/co merger

On December 2011 the company completed its merger with Nalco

the worlds leading water treatment and process improvement

company Based in Naperville Illinois Nalco provides water

management sustainability offerings focused on industrial energy

and institutional market segments Nalcos programs are used in

water treatment applications to prevent corrosion contamination

and the buildup of harmful deposits and extend asset life among

other functions and in production processes to enhance process

efficiency extend asset life and improve customers end products

Nalco also helps cestomers reduce energy water and other natural

resource consumption minimizing environmental releases Effective

with the Nalco merger the company added Nalcos three legacy

operating units Water Services Paper Services and Energy Services

as individual repotabIe segments Beginning in the first quarter

of 2012 the Water Services Paper Services and Energy Services

reportable segments were renamed as the Global Wate Global Paper

and Global Energy reportable segments respectively

Under the terms of the merger agreement each share of Nalco

common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the

effective time of the merger was converted into the right to receive

at the election of the stockholder either 0.7005 shares of Ecolab

common stock or $38.80 in cash without interest provided that

approximately 70% of the issued and outstanding Nalco common

stock immediately prior to the effective date was converted into the

right to receive Ecolab common stock and approximate 3O% of

issued and outstanding shares of Nalco common stock mmediately

prior to the effective date was converted into the right to receive

cash In order to achieve this 70%/30F/o stock-cash consideration

mix the merger agreement provided for pro-rata adjustments to and

reallocation of the stock consideration paid to Nalco stockholders

and cash elections made by Nalco stockholders as well as the

allocation of cast as the default consideration paid for Nalco shares

owrred by stockholders who failed to make an election Those Nalco

stockholders making stock elections received approximately 94%

of their consideration in Ecolah shares while those electing cash

received 100% cash consideration Nalco stockholders did not receive

any fractional shares of Ecolab common stock in the merger Instead

they received cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Ecolab common

stock

The final consideration transferred to acquire all of Nalcos stock is

as follows

MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE

Cash consideration

Number of Nalco common shares outstanding receiving

cash consideration

Cash consideration per common share outstanding

41.9

38.80

Total cash paid to Nalco shareholders electing

cash consideration 1623.9

Stock consideration

Number of Nalco common shares outstanding receiving

stock consideration 97.5

Exchange ratio 0.7005

Ecolab shares issued to Nalco shareholders electing

stock consideration 68.3

Ecolabs closing stock price on December 2011 55.62

Total fair value of stock consideration 3799.7

Fair value of Nalco equity compensation awards

converted to Ecolab awards 73.5

Total fair value of cash and stock consideration 5497.1

The company incurred certain merger and integration costs

associated with the transaction that were expensed as incurred and

are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income total of

$155.8 million and $62.8 million were incurred during 2012 and 2011

respectively Amounts included in cost of sales and nd income loss

attributable to noncontrolling interest include recognition of fair

value step-up in Nalco international inventory which is maintained

on FIFO basis Amounts included in special gains and charges

include merger and integration charges closing costs and advisory

fees Amounts included in net interest expense include loss on

the extinguishment of Nalcos senior notes which were assumed as

part of the merger and fees to secure short-term credit facilities to

initially fund the Nalco merger

The company initially
financed the merger through commercial paper

borrowings backed by its $1.5 billion year credit facility and $2.0

billion 364 day credit facility the company had in place at the close

of the merger as well as through proceeds from its $500 million

private placement senior notes See Note for further discussion

on the companys debt The company also issued 68.3 million

shares of Ecolab common stock as part of the merger transaction
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In add tion Cr rt tin outstanding Nalco equty compensation awards

wci cc nyu into Ecolab equity ccmpensation awards of which

the cons du rat cn portion was $73.5 cii on Soc Notes and 10 for

fur the disc us uon on equity end equity curT ponsat on espectve

The urger has been cc coUnted for sinq the acquisition rr ethod

of accojr ting whch equi us among other things hat most assets

acquired and abilities assumed be ccqnized at fa value as of the

arq.is d.te The following table mmc zes the aIue Nalcu

assets ocquiri arid abltics assumd as of the merger date Also

summer ze the tab subsequent to the merqer net adjustments

of $53 rn ion havu bcen made to the prel nary purchase price

locati on of fhe assets acqLred an Ii obil ties assumed with

cci espondinij adjustment to goodwill Purchase pr cc ci ocrtions

wore finializeci in the fourl quarter cf 2012

IN hAL AD IUSTMLN NAL
MeLONS VALUATON lOlA OVA UL VAL.UATON

Current assets 1869.6 0.1 1869.5

Property plant and equipment 1069.2 1.2 1068.0
Other assets 97.3 3.3 94.0

Identifiable intcingible assets

Customer re ationships 2160.0 2160.0
Patents 321.0 321.0

Trade namer 1230.0 1230.0

Trademarks 79.0 79.0

Other technology 91.0 91.0

Total assets acquired 6917.1 4.6 6912.5

Current liabilites 1105.5 0.1 1105.4

Long-term debt 2858.4 2858.4

Pension and postretirement

benefts 505.7 5.6 511.3

Net deferred tax liability 1188.7 5.3 1194.0

Noncontrolling interests and

other liabilities 167.7 35.5 203.2

Total liabilities and noncontrolling

interests assumed 5826.0 46.3 5872.3

Goodwill 4403.9 53.0 4456.9

Total consideration transferred 5495.0 2.1 5497.1

The cdii tiona inc deration of $2.1 million transferred in 2012 re ates

to the resolutir an appraisal action wth respect to dissenting

Na co shares

The customer relationshits patents finite ved trademarks and

other tochnolcig are being amortized over weighted average lives of

15 14 15 and years respect ye Tl Nolco trade name has been

determ ned to have on indef rite life

In-pr ocoss resoarch and development assoc.erod with the Na co

merger sac ncit sign ficant

000dw is calcu ated as tee excess of the consider aton transferred

over the fair ailue of identifiable net assets acquired and represents

the expected ynergies and other her efits from combining the

operations cit Na co with the operations of Ecolab The company

expects that the merger will produce revenue growth synergies

throgh the cros selling of products complemeeary market

and also expand geograpt and market breadth while adding scale

to operations in sma Icr ccruntries thus creating stronger more

globally dversified and strategically well-positioned combned entity

Key areas of cost synergies include increased purchasing power

for raw riraterials supply cha consolidation and elimination of

corporate gen oral and adm nistrative functions overlap

The results Nalcos operations have been included in the

compare/s cur sol dated financial statements from the close of the

merger The fcllowing table provides net sales and operat ng income

from the Nalcc business ncluded in the companys results during 2011

tol owirq the Liecember 2011 merge

The followng tab jii oc des naudited pro torma sales anc

eported results ocr cOons fri the years ended December 31

2011 arrd 2010 as urn the Na ri merger had beerr corxrpletecl

on January 2011 he histor icril nancial information has been

odjustect to give effect to pro fornie events that arr directly

.otfrbutab tc the me rcjer sLipportahie and expected to have

ontinuirto mpact oit the combined results The urraud ted pro

orma results do rot inc uric any anticpated cost savings from

operaf eq efti en ic cii synergios fhat could result from the it erger

Accor dir gly such pr forma amounts are not necossar ly rid cative

of the resu ts thit act ly would have crccur red hacr the merger

been completed coo icy 2010 riot are they irrcticatnve of future

operatng results of nbc ombined core parry

ic

uncu

Net sales

Net income attributable to Ecolab

Earnings attributable to Ecolab per

common share

Basic

Diluted

Champion acquisition

In October 2012 tI corcipony entered into arr agreement and Ian of

merger ur cter hi he company has agreed to acqu re Charnpiorr

In December 2012 the corrrpany announced that it ororended the

ecquist err agreerrrent tnat Champons aownstrearn process

and water solutior business will oct be acquired ftc company

Based in Houston Texas Champ on is global specialty products anct

very ces company Je ivering products and service based offerings

to the oil and gas indcistr Champions sales for the business to be

acquired by the cemliscy were approximately $1.4 billion 2012

Subect tc rertan odlustments set out in the merger agreement the

total transacton Sue expected to be approximately $2.2 hil ion

Otter adluetments for net cash arid other items the consideration

xxi be paid appi ox rrately 75% irr cash and 25% in shares of Ecolah

common stock Addtionial Ecelab will he required to pay an

additional amount in cash up to $lCiO million in the aggregate equal

to 50o of the ncremental federal tax on the merger considei ahon

resu of increases in applicable capital gains and nvestment

taxes after Decenihe 31 2012 The consummation of the Champion

acquisition remains subject to the satisfaction or waver of various

closing conditions including arrronci others the receipt of equired

regulatory approvals

Financing for the air actien is expected to come from combination

Cf term loan funding issuances under the companys U.S commercial

paper program and proceeds from the $500 mIlion public offering

oebt securities ssuett in December 2012

Other significant acquisition activity

Subsequent Event ctivity

In January 2013 the company completed the acquisition of Mexico-

based Ouimipnoductcs S.A de CV wholly-owned subsidiary of

Fomento Economircc Mexicano S.A.B de CV Ouimiproductos

produces and supplies cleaning sanitizing and water freatmerrt goods

and serv ccx to hr ewrries and beverage companies located in Certral

arid South Americo Annual sales of the lousiness are approximately

$43 million

UI

Net sales

Operating income

193.4

13.8

.Oi2

VOn

11283.9

665.5

2.22

2.17

2011

10326.0

621.4

2.06

2.02
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2012 Activity Other Significant Acquisition Summary

In December 2011 rubsequent to the companys fiscal year end for

international operations the company completed the acquisition of

Esoform an independent Italian healthcare manufacturer focused

on infection prevention and personal care Based outside of Venice

Italy with annual seles of approximately $12 million the business

became part of the companys International Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services reportable segment during the first quarter of 2012

Also in December 2011 the company completed the acquisition of

the InsetCenter pest elimination business in Brazil Annual sales of

the acquired business are approximately $6 million The business

operations and staff have been integrated with the companys

existing Brazil Pesi Elimination business and became part of the

companys lnternaional Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services

reportable segment during the first quarter of 2012

In March 2012 the company acquired Econ IndOstria Comdrcio

de Produtos do Hicliene Limpeza Ltda provider of cleaning

and sanitizing products and services to the Brazilian foodservice

industry Based in Sao Paulo Brazil its annual sales are

approximately SO million The business operations have been

integrated within tne companys existing Brazil Institutional business

and became part cf the companys International Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services reportable segment during the second quarter of

2012

2011 Activity

In December 2010 subsequent to the companys fiscal year end for

international operations the company completed the purchase of

the assets of Clearrtec located in Brisbane Queensland Australia

Cleantec is developer manufacturer and marketer of cleaning and

hygiene products principally within the Australian food and beverage

processing foodservice hospitality and textile care markets The

business which had annual sales of approximately $55 million

became part of the companys International Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Servicer segment during the first quarter of 2011 The total

purchase price was approximately 543 million of which $2 million

was placed in an escrow account for indemnification purposes

During the third quarter of 2012 the $2 million escrow balance was

paid to the seller

In March 2011 the company closed on the purchase of the assets

of 0.0 Solutions nc privatelyheld developer and marketer of

surgical fluid warming and cooling systems in the U.S The business

which had annual sales of approximately $55 million became part

of the companys iJ.5 Cleaning Sanitizing segment during the

first quarter of 2011 The total purchase price was approximately

$260 million of wnich $26 million was placed in an escrow accourrt

for indemnificatiol purposes related to general representations

and warranties During the third quarter of 2012 $13 million of

the escrow balance was paid to the seller Assuming the general

representations and warranties continue to be met the remaining

$13 million escrow balance is expected to be paid to the seller in the

first quarter of 2C13

2010 Activity

In September 2011 the company acquired the commercial laundry

division of Dober Chemical Corp The acquisition strengthens

the companys U.S and Canada Textile Care business by adding

customer relationships and business scale as well as important

customer technolaqy The business which had annual sales of

approximately $37 million became part of the companys U.S

Cleaning Sanitixing segment during the third quarter of 2010

Excluding the Nalco merger the pro forma impact of all other

acquisitions during 2012 2011 and 2010 was not material to the

companys consolidated financial statements therefore pro forma

financial information is not presented Based upon purchase price

allocations excluding the Nalco merger which is showrr previously

in this note the components of the aggregate purchase prices of

2012 2011 and 2010 acquisitions are shown in the following table

The contingent consideration relates to immaterial acquisitions

completed during 2012 and 2011

MILLIONS 2012 200 2010

Net tangible assets acquired

liabilities assumed

Identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships

Patents

Trademarks

Other technology __________ _______________________

Total intangible assets 12.0 165.4 17.7

Goodwill 23.3 94.3 8.3

Total aggregate purchase price 34.3 318.3 43.4

Contingent consideration 2.6

Liability for indemnification 16.0 28

Net cash paid for acquisitions 47.7 285 43.4

Excluding the Nalco merger the weighted average ussful lives of

intangible assets acquired was 13 years as of December 31 2012

2011 and 2010

Dispositions

In December 2012 the company completed the sale its Vehicle

Care division for $116.9 million resulting in gaul of $76.3 million

$47.5 million after tax recorded in special gains and charges

Vehicle Care sales were approximately $65 million in 2011 the

majority of which were within the companys U.S Cleaning

Sanitizing reportable segment Net cash proceeds were used to

repay debt and for general corporate purposes

During the third quarter of 2012 the company received additional

payments of $13.0 million related to the sale of an investment in

U.S business originally sold prior to 2012 The corresponding gain

of S13.0.million recognized during the third quarter of 2012 was

recorded in special gains and charges

During the third quarter of 2010 the company sold ar investment

in U.S business and realized gain of $5.9 million which was

reported in special gains and charges The investment was not

material to the companys consolidated results of operations or

financial position

During the second quarter of 2010 the company sold small

joint venture in its international segment The impact of this

divestiture and the joint venture were rrof material to the companys

consolidated results of operations or financial position

The company had no business dispositions in 2011

58.6 17.41.0

8.4

2.8

0.5

0.3

145.5

0.3

11.2

8.4

11.3

0.7

5.7
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BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31 MILLIONS

Accounts receivable net

Accounts receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts

2012 2011

2298.3

73.2

2144.6

49.3

Total
2225.1 2095.3

Inventories

Finished goods 774.3 745.5

Raw materials end parts 338.3 351.4

Inventories at FIFO cost 1112.6 1096.9
Excess of FIFO cost over LIFO cost 24.5 27.3

Total 1088.1 1069.6

Property plant and equipment net

Land 158.9 158.8

Buildings and improvements 562.1 483.8

Leasehold improvements 80.5 77.3

Machinery and equipment 1281.2 1206.1

Merchandising and customer equipment 1812.5 1682.7
Capitalized software 385.7 385.7

Construction in progress 207.2 182.7

4488.1 4177.1

Accumulated depreciation 2079.0 1881.7

Total
2409.1 2295.4

Other intangible assets net

Cost of intangible assets not subject to amortization

Trade names 1230.0 1230.0
Cost of intangible assets subject to amortization

Customer relationships 2588.6 2593.2
Trademarks 185.2 201.0

Patents 414.7 404.4

Other technology 174.8 174.6

3363.3 3373.2
Accumulated amortization

Customer relationships 373.1 204.8
Trademarks

51.2 48.6
Patents 65.6 36.3
Other technology 59.3 38.3

Total 4044.1 4275.2

Other assets

Deferred incomE taxes 51.0 61.9

Pension
7.0 22

Other 248.6 278.6

Total 306.6 362.8

Other current liabilities

Discounts and rebates 244.4 239.9

Dividends payable 60.0

Interest payable 19.5 51.0

Taxes payable other than income 97.3 74.1

Derivative liabilities 9.9 3.3

Restructuring 116.6 57.5

Other 283.3 262.9

Total 771.0 748.7

Other liabilities

Deferred income taxes
1174.2 1249.2

Income taxes paVabfe noncurrent 81.5 80.8

Other 147.2 160.7

Total
1402.9 1490.7

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Unrealized gain loss on derivative financial instruments net of tax 13.6 13.5
Unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit expense net of tax 613.8 481.3
Cumulative translation net of tax 167.7 149.9

Total 459.7 344.9
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DEBT AND INTEREST

The following table provides the components of the companys short-term debt obligations along with applicable interest rates as of

December 31 2012 and 2011

MILLIONS 2012 2011

EXCEPT INTEREST RATES AVERAGE AVERAGE

INTEREST INTEREST

PAYABLE RALE PAYABLE RATE

Short-term debt

commercial paper 593.7 0.46% 916.1 0.67%

Notes payable 44.5 10.04% 100.3 7.52%

Long-term debt

current maturities 167.6 6.6

Total 05.8 1023.0

In September 2011 the company replaced its existing $600 million multi-year credit facility with $1.5 billion multi-year credit facility which

expires in September 2016 During 2011 the company also entered into $2.0 billion 364 day credit facility In April 2012 the company

reduced its 364 day credit facility from $2.0 billion to $1.0 billion In August 2012 the company replaced the $1.0 billion 364 day credit facility

which was to expire in September 2012 with $500 million 364 day credit facility Both of the $1.5 billion and $500 million credit facilities

have been establisUed with diverse portfolio of banks No amounts were outstanding under any of these agreements at year end 2012 or

2011

The credit facilities support the companys U.S commercial paper program which was reduced to $2.0 billion subsequent to the replacement

of the 364 day credit facility discussed above and the companys $200 million European commercial paper program Combined borrowing

under these two commercial paper programs may not exceed $2.0 billion The company had $594 million and $916 million in outstanding

U.S commercial paper at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The company had no commercial paper outstanding under its European

program at December 31 2012 or 2011 As of December 31 2012 the companys short-term borrowing program was rated A-2 by Standard

Poors and P-2 by Moodys

The following tablc provides the components of the companys long-term debt obligations along with applicable interest rates as of December

31 2012 and 2011

MILLIONS EXCEPT INTEREST RATES 2012 2011

AVE RAGE EFECTI VE AVE BA GE EFFECTI YE

MATURITY CARRYING INTEREST INTEREST CARRYING INTEREST INTEREST

BY YEAR VALUE RATE RATE VALUE RATE RATE

Long-term debt

Description 2012 Principal Amount

Series private placement senior notes 125 million euro 2013 162.3 4.36% 4.51% 168.1 4.36% 4.51%

Series private placement senior notes 175 million euro 2016 227.3 4.59% 4.67% 235.3 4.59% 4.67%

Seven year 2008 senior notes $250 million 2015 249.4 4.88% 4.99% 249.1 4.88% 4.99%

Series private placement senior notes $250 million 2018 250.0 3.69% 5.15% 250.0 3.69% 5.15%

Series private placement senior notes $250 million 2023 250.0 4.32% 4.32% 250.0 4.32% 4.32%

Three year 2011 senior notes $500 million 2014 499.8 2.38% 2.40% 499.7 2.38% 2.40%

Five year 2011 senior notes $1.25 billion 2016 1248.1 3.00% 3.04% 1247.6 3.00% 3.04%

Ten year 2011 senior notes $1.25 billion 2021 1249.3 4.35% 4.36% 1249.2 4.35% 4.36%

Thirty year 2011 senior notes $750 million 2041 742.6 5.50% 5.53% 742.3 5.50% 5.53%

Three year 2012 senior notes $500 million 2015 499.8 1.00% 1.02%

Five year 2012 senior notes $500 million 2017 499.6 1.45% 1.47%

Nalco senior notes So 2019 838.7 6.63% 5.13%

Nalco senior euro notes 50 2019 300.7 6.88% 5.53%

Nalco senior notes $0 2017 558.5 8.25% 6.30%

Capital lease obligations 13.8 18.3

Other 11.7 12.3

Total debt 5903.7 6619.8

Long-term debt current maturities 167.6 6.6

Total long-term debt 5736.1 6613.2

Term Loans

In November 2012 the company entered into $900 million term loan credit agreement with various banks Under the agreement which

had not been drawn upon as of December 31 2012 the term loan will bear interest at floating base rate plus credit rating based margin

Proceeds from the term loan are expected to be used to fund portion of the pending Champion acquisition Funding under the agreement

will be available thTough April 15 2013 and to the extent funded the term loan will expire on the third anniversary of the funding date

Pub/ic Notes

In December 2012 in public offering the company issued $500 million of debt securities that mature in 2017 at rate of 1.455G The

company anticipates that the proceeds will be used to finance portion of the cash consideration to be paid in connection with the pending

Champion acquisit on or for general corporate purposes

In August 2012 in public offering the company issued $500 million of debt securities that mature in 2015 at rate of 1.O0% The proceeds

were used to refinance outstanding commercial paper and for general corporate purposes
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In December 2011 the company issued $3 75 billion of debt

securities in pub ic debt offerng The offer ng was mu ti-tranche

transaction consist ng of three five ten and thirty year maturities

Interest rates range from 2.38% to 55Q% The proceeds were used

to repay outstanding commerc al paper whch was ssued to fund

portion of the cash component of the Nalco merger and repay the

Na co term loans and fund share repurchases

In Febrcary 2008 the company issued and sold $250 million

aggregate prurc pal amount of senior unsecured notes that mature

in 2015 at r0te of 4.88/a in public debt offering The proceeds

were used to efinance outstanding commercal paper and for

general corporate purposes

The sei es of notes issued by the company in December 2012

August 2012 December 2011 and February 2008 pursuant to

public debt oferings the Public Nofes may be redeemed by the

company at it option at redemption prices that include accrued

and unpaid inferest and make-whole premium Additionally if the

Champion acouisition is not completed by May 2013 or if the

Champion acguisition merger agreement is terminated on or before

such date the company may redeem the $500 million series of

notes issued ty the company in December 2012 in whole hut not in

part at price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus

any accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date Upon the

occurrence of change of control accompanied by downgrade of

the Public Notes below investment grade ratng within specified

time period the company will be required to offer to repurchase

the Public Notes at price equal to 1D1% of the aggregate principal

amount there plus any accrued and unpaid interest to the date of

rep ur chase

The Public Notes are senior unsecured and unsubordinated

obligat ons of the company and rank equally with all other senior

and unsubord nated indebtedness of the company from time to time

out stan ding

Prvate Notes

October 2011 the company entered into Note Purchase

Agreement to issue and sell $500 million private placement senior

notes split into two series $250 million of seven year notes that

mature in 2018 at rate of 3.69% and $250 million of twelve year

notes that mature in 2023 at rate of 4.32% Both series of the

notes were funded in November 2011 The proceeds were used for

general corporate purposes including partially funding the Nalco

merger

The company has outstanding euro 300 million $390 million as of

Decemoer 31 2012 aggregate principal amount of the companys

private placement senior notes in two series 4.360/n Series Senior

Notes clue 2013 the aggregate principal amount of euro 125

million and 4.159% Series Senior Notes due 2016 in the aggregate

principal amount of euro 175 million issued in December 2006

pursuant to Note Purchase Agreement dated July 26 2006

The series of notes issued by the company in December 2006

and Novembe 2011 pursuant to private debt offerings the

Prvate Note may be redeemed by the company at its option at

redemption prices that include accrued and unpaid interest and

make whole premium Upon the occurrence of specified changes

of control involving the company the company wil be required to

offer tcr repurchase the Private Notes at price equa to 100% of the

aggregate principal amount thereof plus any accrued and unpaid

interest to the date of repurchase Additionally the company wil

be requ red to make similar offer to repurchase the Private Notes

upon the occurrence of specified merger events or asset sales

involving the company when accompanied by downgrade of the

Private Notes del rue trnert grude rating with spec fed time

perod

The Private Note ire senior oh igvtons of the cornpuny and rink

equal in right of merit with all other senior indebtedness at the

company The Pr ca Notes shall be unconditionally guaranteed by

subsidiaries of th company in certain circuinstanc as as descrihc

in the note pLurchusu agreements as amended

Covenants Repatrn n/s and Net Interest Expense

The company is ii mpl moe with all covenants at December

2012

In January 2012 he compiny redeemed $1.7 billion of Nilcc

senior notes wt were issumod in 2011 an part of the merger

As of December 02011 the Na cc senior notes were fully arid

unconditiona ly iaanteed certain Nalco subs diaries In

conlunction with iti redemption in January 2012 ii guararteas in

place as of Decenrb 11 2011 were extinguished

In February 2011 th Company repaid its $15Q mill on 6.875% rates

when they her irne utcuc

As of December 31 2012 the aqpregate annual rrat critics of lcng

term debt for the nc xt ye year weie

MIL Oi

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Interest expense md nterest ncorne incurred dci rig 2012 2011 and

2010 were as fol ow

Interest expense

nthrocf inrrmo

Interest expense net

2012

Interest expense erierally nclude the expense ossoci sted wi/h the

interest on tte cam manys ccitstanding borrowings Interest expense

also inc udes the amortizat on at debt issuance costs and debt

dscounts which ire both rocognized over the term of ttin related

debt The increase in nterest expense in 2012 was driven primurily

by debt siued to fund the cash portion of the Nalco merger

consideration the ropayment ot Nalco debt and share repuri hases

Interest expense or 2012 also inc odes an $18.2 rwi lion loss or

extinguishment of balco debt rcognized tIre first quarter

FAIR VALUEI MEASUREMENTS

The companys riaricial instr uments include osh and cash

equivalents money market funds in rabbi trust mccourmts

receivab account payable contingent cosideation obigations

commercial paper otes payable foregn currency forward

contracts and long lerm debt

Fair value is defined as the exit price or the amount that would be

received to se air asset or paid to transfer liabi rty in an orderly

transaction betwi err market participants as of the measurement

date hierarchy has been established for inputs used in measuring

fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and

minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requir ng that the most

observable inputs used when available The hierarchy is broken

down into three eec Is

Leve/ Inputs ar cleated prices in active markets that are

accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities

168

506

755

1479

501

MiLL ci acm

$281
8.9

276

82.1

7.9

74.2

65.6

6.5

59.1

44 Lcolab Arunra Report 2012



Level Inputs include observable inputs other than quoted prices

active markets

Level Inputs are unobservable inputs for which there is little or no

market data available

The carrying amount and the estimated fair value for assets and

liabilities measurec on recurring basis were

DECEMBER 31 MILLIONS 2012

Assets

Money market funds held

in rabbi trusts

Foreign currency forward

contracts

Liabilities

Foreign currency forward

contracts

Contingent consideration

obligations

CARRYING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AMOUNT LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL

Money market funds held in rabbi trusts are classified within level

because they are valued using quoted prices in active markets The

carrying value of foreign currency forward contracts is at fair value

which is determined based on foreign currency exchange rates as of

the balance sheet date and is classified within level

For business acqui after December 31 2008 contingent

consideration oblications are recognized and measured at fair

value at the acquisition date Contingent consideration liabilities are

classified within level because fair value is measured based on the

probabilityweighted present value of the consideration expected

to be transferred The consideration expected to be transferred is

based on the companys expectations of various financial measures

The ultimate payment of contingent consideration could deviate

from current estimates based on the actual results of these financial

measures Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration

obligations during 2012 and 2011 were as follows

MILLIONS

Balance at end of year 23.2

The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable

approximate fair value because of their short maturities The

carrying value of cash and cash equivalents commercial paper

and notes payable approximate fair value because of their short

maturities and as such are classified within level

The fair value of long-term debt including current maturities is based

on quoted market prices for the same or similar debt instruments

The carrying amount and the estimated fair value of long-term debt

including currert maturities held by the company were

Derivative Instruments and Hedging

The company uses foreign currency forward contracts interest

rate swaps and foreign currency debt to manage risks associated

with foreign currency exchange rates interest rates and net

investments in foreign operations The company does not hold

derivative financial instruments of speculative naturz or for

trading purposes The company records all derivatives as assets and

liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value Changes in fair value are

recognized immediately in earnings unless the derivat ye qualifies

and is designated as hedge For derivatives designated as cash

flow hedges the effective portion of changes in fair value of hedges

is initially recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

AOCI on the Consolidated Balance Sheet Amounts recorded in

AOCI are reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods

during which the hedged transactions affect earnings The company

evaluates hedge effectiveness at inception and on an ongoing

basis If derivative is no longer expected to be effective hedge

accounting is discontinued Hedge ineffectiveness if any is recorded

in earnings

The company is exposed to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance of counterparties for foreign currency forward

25.1
exchange contracts and interest rate swap agreements The

company monitors its exposure to credit risk by using credit

approvals and credit limits and by selecting major international

banks and financial institutions as counterparties The company

does not anticipate nonperformance by any of these counterparties

and therefore recording valuation allowance against the companys

derivative balance is not considered necessary

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges

The company utilizes foreign currency forward contrats to

hedge the effect of foreign currency exchange rate flLlctuations

on forecasted foreign currency transactions includino inventory

purchases and intercompany royalty and managemen fee

payments These forward contracts are designated as cash flow

hedges The effective portions of the changes in fair value of

these contracts are recorded in AOCI until the hedged items affect

earnings at which time the gain or loss is reclassified into the same

line item in the Consolidated Statement of Income as he underlying

exposure being hedged All hedged transactions are forecasted to

occur within the next twelve months

The company occasionally enters into interest rate swap contracts

to manage interest rate exposures In 2011 the company entered into

six forward starting swap contracts in connection with the issuance

of its private placement debt during the fourth quarter of 2011 The

interest rate swap agreements were designated and effective as

cash flow hedge of the expected interest payments related to the

anticipated debt issuance In 2006 the company entered into and

subsequently closed two forward starting swap contracts related

to the issuance of its senior euro notes with the net settlement

recorded in AOCI The amounts in AOCI for both the 2011 and 2006

transactions are recognized in earnings as part of interest expense

over the remaining life of the notes as the forecasted interest

transactions occur The company did not have any forward starting

interest rate swap agreements outstanding at December 31 2012

2011 or 2010

DECEMBER 31 IMILLIONSI 2012

Long-term debt

including current

maturities

2011

CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

AMOUNT JALUE AMOUNT VALUE

5903.7 6488.8 6619.8 6885.3

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING TRANSACTIONS

Assets

Money market funds held

in rabbi trusts 2.2 2.2

Foreign currency forward

contracts 6.5 6.5

Liabilities

Foreign currency forward

contracts 9.9 9.9

contingent consideration

obligations 23.2 23.2

DECEMBER31 MILLIONS 2011

CARRYING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AMOUNT LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL

0.9 0.9

10.4 10.4

3.3 3.3

25.1

Balance at beginning of year

Liabilities recognized at acquistion date

Losses gains recognized in earnings

Settlements

Assumed through Nalco merger

Foreign currency translation

2012

25.1

2.6

1.9

2.5

0.1

2011

2.4

5.0

0.8

16.9

25.1
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Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

The company also uses foreign currency forward contracts to offset

its exposure to the change in value of assets and liabilities held at

foreign subsidiaries primarily receivables and payables which are

remeasured at the end of each period Although the contracts are

effective economic hedges they are not designated as accounting

hedges Therefore changes in the value of these derivatives are

recognized immediately in earnings thereby offsetting the current

earnings effe.t of the related foreign currency denominated assets

and liabilities

Derivative Summary
The following table summarizes the fair value of the companys

outstanding cerivatives as of December 31 The amounts are

included in other current assets and other current liabilities on the

companys balance sheet

Derivatives designated

as hedging instruments

Foreign currency

forward contracts

Derivatives pgt designated

as hedging insfrurnants

roreign currency

forward contracts

Total 6.5 10.4 $__ 3.3

The company had foreign currency forward exchange contracts

with notional values that totaled $1.3 billion and $586 million

at December .31 2012 and 2011 respectively The increase from

December 31 2011 is primarily driven by increased hedging activity

as result of the inclusion of Nalco operations in 2012

qualified as cash flow hedges was as follows

MILLIONS

Unrealized Qain loss

recognized ino ADCI

effective potcn

Foreign currency forward

contracts

Interest rate swap

contracts

Gain doss recognized in

in me effective pifi.n3

Foreign currency forward

contracts

Interest rate swap

contracts

2.1 6.5 3.6

Interest expense net 2.7 0.8 0.4

Total 0.6 7.3 4.0

The impact on earnings from derivative contracts that are not

designated as hedging instruments was as follows

Total 7.9$ 2.5 $10.9

The amounts recognized in SGA above offset the earnings impact

of the related foreipn currency denominated assets and iabilities

The amounts recognized in interest expense above represent

the component of toe hedging gains losses attributable to the

difference hetween the spot and forward rates of the hedges as

result of interest rale differentials

In the third quarter of 2012 the company entered into forward

contract with notional amount of euro 100 million to hedqe

an additional porrion of the companys net investments in euro

functional subsidarios The forward contract was renewed in the

fourth quarter of 2112 and remained open as of December 31 2012

The revaluation gains and losses on the euronotes and forward

contract which are desiqnated anct effective as hedges of the

companys net investments have tieen included as component of

the cumulative translation adjustment account

Total revaluation gains and losses related to the euronotes and

forward contract charged to shareholders equity were as follows

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Authorized common stock par value $1.00 per share was 400

million shares in 2010 Effective December 2011 following approval

41
by the companys shareholders the companys authorized common

015 stock was increased to 800 million shares Authorized common

stock remained at 800 million shares in 2012 Treasury stock is

stated at cost Dividends declared per share of common stock were

$08300 for 2012 $07250 for 2011 and $06400 for 2010

On December 201 the company issued 68316283 shares of

common stock for the stock consideration portion of the Nalco

merger see Note In addition as part of the consideration

each outstanding Nalco stock option was converted into an option

to purchase the companys common stock with both the number

of options and the exercise price adjusted accordingly based on

the stock award exchange ratio Pursuant to change-in-control

agreements Nalcor existing restricted stock awards to non-

employee directors and certain officers in general fully vested

as result of the merger For those awards that did not vest as

result of the merger each Nalco unvested restricted stock award

was converted based on the stock award exchange ratio into

MILLIONS LOCATION 2012 2011 2010

Gain loss recognized in income

Foreign currency forward

contracts SGA

Interest expense net

0.9

7.0

2.9 5.4

5.4 5.5

MILL IONS

ASSET DERIVATiVES LIABILITY DERIVATIVES

2012 2011 2012 2011

3.8

6.6

0.8

5.7

Net Investment Hedge

The company designates its euro 300 million $390 million as

of December 31 20i2 senor notes and related accrued interest

as hedge of exi foreign currency exposures related to n1t

investments the company has ii certain Euro functional subsidiaries

Prior to redemption in January 2012 the Nalco euro denominated

borrowings were aIm designated as hedge of existing foreign

1.2
currency exposures

1.7

8.2 2.1

The impact orr AOCI and earnings from derivative contracts that

MILLiONS 2012 2011 2010
LOCATION 2012 2011 2010

Revaluation gains losses net of tax 9i 9.5 37.6

The company forrnlly assesses on quarterly basis whether the

euro-denominated debt is effective at offsetting changes in the

value of the underling exposure No hedge ineffectiveness was

1.9 0.2 2.5 recorded in earnings during 2012 2011 and 2010AOCI equity

ADCI equity

Sales

Cost of sales

SGA

15.3

0.3

4.7
1.5

0.1
2.0

0.2

Gain loss recognized in

income ineffective portion

Foreign currency forward

contracts Interest expense net 1.2 1.8 1.2
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restricted stock aeard of the company with vesting subject to

continued employment In conjunction With the merger the level

of attainment of the performance criteria applicable to converted

Nalco performance based restricted stock awards was fixed based

on actual and target financial performance and such awards

were converted based on the stock award exchange ratio into

time based restricted stock award of the company based on such

performance level with vesting subject to continued employment

The company has 15 million shares without par value of authorized

but unissued and undesignated preferred stock The companys

former shareholder rights agreement was amended in December

2012 to accelerate the expiration date of the former rights issued

pursuant to the rights agreement from March 10 2016 to December

31 2012 Accordincly the rights agreement terminated as of that

date

In May 2011 the companys Board of Directors authorized the

repurchase of up to 15 million additional shares of common stock

including shares tc be repurchased under Rule lObS-i In August

2011 the Finance Committee of the companys Board of Directors

via delegation by tie companys Board of Directors authorized the

repurchase of an additional 10 million common shares which was

contingent upon completion of the merger with Nalco

In September 2011 under the existing Board authorization subject

to the completion of the Nalco merger the company announced

$1.0 billion share repurchase program As part of this program

in December 2011 the company entered into an accelerated

share repurchase ASP agreement with financial institution

to repurchase $500 million of its common stock Under the ASR

the company recemed 8330379 shares of its common stock in

December 2011 The final per share purchase price and the total

number of shares to be repurchased under the ASR agreement

were generally based on the volume weighted average price of the

companys common stock during the term of the agreement Ttre

ASR agreement ended in the first quarter of 2012 In connection

with the finalization of the ASP agreement the company received

an additional 122314 shares of common stock All shares acquired

under the ASP agreement were recorded as treasury stock

In addition to the ASP the company reacquired 2600569 shares

349425 shares and 7366001 shares of its common stock in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively through its share repurchase program

through open market or private purchases The company intends

to repurchase all snares under its authorizations for which no

expiration date har been established in open market or privately

negotiated transactions subject to market conditions As of

December 31 2012 15810096 shares remained to be repurchased

under the companys repurchase authorization and approximately

$279 million remained to be purchased as part of the $1.0 billion

program discussei above The company expects to complete this

remaining portion of the $1.0 billion share repurchase program in

2013

The company also reacquired 734857 shares 187454 shares

and 242161 shores of its common stock in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively related to the exercise of stock options and the vesting

of stock awards

10 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The companyr equity compensation plans provide for grants of

stock options resticted stock awards and restricted stock unit

awards Common shares available for grant as of December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 were 5316532 8813059 and 11608387

respectively Common shares available for grant reflect 12 million

shares approved bV shareholders in 2010 for issuance under the

plans Following the Nalco merger in 2011 1405530 common shares

on converted basis formerly reserved for grant under Nalcos

2004 Stock Incentive Plan were added to the shares available for

grant by the company The company generally issues authorized

but previously unissued shares to satisfy stock option exercises

The company has share repurchase program and generally

repurchases shares on the open market to help offset the dilutive

effect of share-based compensation

The companys annual long-term incentive share-based

compensation program is made up of 50% stock options and 50%

performance-based restricted stock unit PBRSU awards The

company also grants limited number of non-performance based

restricted stock awards RSA and restricted stock unit awards

RSU
Prior to the Nalco merger Nalco had outstanding stock options

restricted stock awards and performance share awards that were

issued pursuant to its incentive compensation plan as well as

certain non-plan inducement stock options and restricted stock

awards For each of the converted awards discussed below the

stock award exchange ratio of .67959 was used to convert Nalco

awards into Ecolab awards As result of the merger he majority of

Nalcos existing stock options fully vested Each outstanding Nalco

option was converted into an option to purchase the companys

common stock with both the number of options and the exercise

price adjusted accordingly based on the stock award exchange

ratio Pursuant to change-in-control agreements Nalcos existing

restricted stock awards to non-employee directors and certain

officers in general fully vested as result of the merger For those

awards that did not vest as result of the merger each unvested

restricted stock award was converted based on the stcick award

exchange ratio into restricted stock award of the company with

vesting subject to continued employment In conjunction with

the merger the level of attainment of the performance criteria

applicable to converted Nalco performance based restricted stock

awards was fixed based on actual and target financial performance

As such each Nalco performance share award converted based on

the stock award exchange ratio into time based restricted award of

the company based on such performance level with vesting subject

to continued employment The total fair value of Nalccs converted

equity compensation as of the merger dates was $111 million of

which $73 million was included in the consideration transferred to

acquire Nalco with the remaining $38 million subject to expense

recognition over the remainder of the vesting term As of December

31 2012 $10 million of the $38 million remains to be expensed

Total compensation expense related to all share-based

compensation plans was $66 million $45 million net of tax benefit

$40 million $27 million net of tax benefit and $29 million $19

million net of tax benefit for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

As of December 31 2012 there was $115 million of total measured

but unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested

share-based compensation arrangements granted under all of the

companys plans That cost is expected to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 1.9 years

Stock Options

Options are granted to purchase shares of the companys stock at

the average daily share price on the date of grant These options

generally expire within ten years from the grant date The company

recognizes compensation expense for these awards on straight

line basis over the three year vesting period Stock opion grants

to retirement eligible recipients are attributed to expense using the

non-substantive vesting method
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summary cf stock option activity and average exercise prices is as follows

2012

NUMBER ER Mb MBE rLR

oPrF0N I-RI PT IIJN PR

Outstanding baginning of year 126579$ 41.45 19988025 38.66 22262204 36.22

Granted 2238267 71.17 2661551 55.38 1783293 48.03

Issued in connect on with Nalco merger 883173 29.35

Exercised 6774.032 35.16 3331926 32.59 3813865 28.46

Canceled 465658 53.61 74244 43.68 243607 43.86

Outstanding erd of year 15125156 48.29 20126579 41.45 19988025 38.66

Exercisable end of year 11036700 42.77 15885276 38.57 16091416 37.42

Vested and expected to vest end of year L14770288 48.01

Represents weighted average price

The tcta intrinsic value of options the amount by whch the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the option on the date of exercise that

were eerc sod during 2012 2011 and 2010 was $211 million $69 million and $76 mill on respectively

The tctal aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of December 31 2012 was $346 lion with corresponding weighted average

remaining contractual life of 6.5 years The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exerc sable as of December 31 2012 was $313 million

with corresponding we ghted-average remaining contractual life of 4.0 years The tutu aggregate intrinsc value of options vested and

expected to \est as of December 31 2012 was $342 million with corresponding weighted-a ierage ren-aining contractual life of 6.4 years

The lattice binomial option-pricing model is used to estimate the fair value of opt ens at cirant date The companys primary employee option

grant occurs dur ng the fourth quarter The weighted-average grant-date fair value of opt nn granted and the significant assumptions used in

determning he under yinq far value of each opton grant on the date oF grant were as to IoNs

2012

Weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted at market prices 13.77 11.01 10.11

Assumptions

Risk-free rate of return 0.9% 1.4c 2.0x

Expected life years years years

Expected volatility 22.8% 22.8x 23.1c

Expected dlvi jend yield 1.3% 1.4 1.4%

The risk-free rate of return is determined based on yield curve of U.S treasury rates fron ne month to ten years and period

commensurate with the expected life of the options granted Expected volatlity establishe based on fs storical volatility of the companys

stock once The expected dividend yield is determined based on the comcranys annual dvidend amount as percentage of the average stork

price at the me of the grant

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

The expense associated wth PBRSU awards is based on the average of the high and low stare price of the companys coremon stock on the

date of grant adjusted for the absence of future dividends The awards vest based on the oinpany ach eying defned performance taget

and th continued service for three year period Upon vesting the coripany issues shares of its common stock such that one award unit

equals one share of common stock The company assesses the probability of acheving the rforrnance target and recognizes expense over

the thee ye-r vestig perod when it is probabe the performance target wi be met PBRSL awards grarted to etirement eligible recipients

are attributed to expense using the non-substantive vesting method The awards are general subject to fofeture in the event of term nation

of emp oyment

The expense associated with shares of non-performance based RSAs and RSU5 is based on the average of the high and low share price of the

companys cc mmon stock on the date of grant adjusted for the absence of future dvidends rrrd is amortized on straight-line basis over the

perioc during whch the restrictions lapse The company currently has RSAs and RSUs that est over per ods between 12 and 60 months The

awards are q.nera ly subject to forfeiture in the event of termination of employmer

summary cf non vested PBRSU awards and restricted stock activty is as fol ows

P605 Do I-

AWARDS

December 30 .2010 845630 44.70 167171 43.54

Granted 572350 52.96 126121 51.02

Issued in connection with Nalco merger 857366 55.62 808883 55.62

Vested Earned 13360 55.62 81874 48.71

Canceled 121321 54.07 3641 41.80

December 31 2011 2140665 50.68 1016660 53.67

Granted 454620 68.63 230193 64.10

Vested Earned 285249 55.62 362926 53.80

Canceled 218764 53.14 86714 52.03

December 31 2012 2091272 53.65 797213 56.79

Represents weighted average price
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Provision for income taxes

Statutory U.S rate

State income taxes net

of federal benefit

Foreign operations

Domestic manufacturing deduction

Change in valuation allowance

Nondeductible deal costs

Audit settlements and refunds

Other net

Effective income tax rate

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the company has recorded

deferred tax liability of $68 million and $98 million respectively on

legacy Nalco foreign earnings that the company intends to repatriate

This deferred tax liability originated based on purchase accounting

decisions made in connection with the Nalco merger and was the

_____________________ result of an extensive study required to calculate the impact at the

purchase date

U.S deferred income taxes are not provided on certain other

unremitted foreign earnings that are considered permanently

reinvested which as of December 31 2012 and 2011 wers

____________________
approximately $1.4 billion and $1.2 billion respectively These

earnings are considered to be reinvested indefinitely or available for

distribution with foreign tax credits available to offset the amount

of applicable income tax and foreign withholding taxes that might

be payable on earnings It is impractical to determine txe amount

216.3 216.6 of incremental taxes on an ongoing basis that might arse if all

undistributed earnings were distributed

The company files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction

and various U.S state and international jurisdictions With few

exceptions the company is no longer subject to state and foreign

income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2005

The Internal Revenue Service IRS has completed examinations

of the companys U.S federal income tax returns through 2004

The legacy Ecolab U.S income tax returns for the years 2009 and

2010 are currently under audit The legacy Nalco U.S ixcome tax

returns for the years 2005 through 2010 are currently under audit

In addition to the U.S federal examination there is Iimted audit

_____________
activity in several U.S state and foreign jurisdictions The company

anticipates changes to its uncertain tax positions due to closing of

various audit years mentioned above The company believes these

changes could result in decrease in the companys gross liability
for

unrecognized tax benefits of up to $13 million during the next twelve

months Decreases in the companys gross liability could result in

offsets to other balance sheet accounts cash payments and/or

adjustments to tax expense The occurrence of these events and/

or other events not included above within the next twelve months

could change depending on variety of factors and result in amounts

different from above

During 2012 the company recognized net discrete tax benefit of

$9.2 million The net benetit in 2012 is based largely on benefits

related to remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and

liabilities resulting from changing tax jurisdictions recognizing

adjustments from filing the companys 2011 U.S federal tax return

as well as release of valuation allowance related to capital

loss carryforward Discrete benefits were partially offset by the

remeasurement of certain deterred tax assets and liabilities resulting

from changes in local country tax rates state and foreign country

audit settlements and adjustments

During 2011 the company recognized net discrete tax expense of

$7.4 million The net expense in 2011 is largely made up of favorable

settlements and adjustments related to prior year retLrns and

reserves which were more than offset by the impact charge

related to the realizability of foreign net operating loss carryforwards

as well as change in the blended state tax rate The settlements are

related to the companys 1999 through 2001 and 2007 through 2008

U.S income tax returns and various state and other international

returns

During 2010 the company recognized net discrete tax benefit of

1.3
$8.0 million The net discrete tax benefit in 2010 primarily included

0.1
recognizing favorable settlements related to the companys 2002

29.0/s

through 2004 U.S Federal IRS appeals case favoratle settlement

of an income tax audit in Germany for the years 2003 through 2006

11 INCOME TAXES

Income before inccme taxes consisted of

MILLIONS 2012

United States 594.8

International 417.8

2011

440.0

239.6

2010

497.5

250.2

Total $1012.6 679.6 747.7

The provision for income taxes consisted of

MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010

--1
Federal and state 141.3 104.9 173.5

International 173.2 69.7 74.2

Total current 314.5 174.6 247.7

Federal and state 31.7 25.2 26.3

International 34.9 16.5 4.8

Total deferred 3.2 41.7 31.1

The companys ovcraII net deterred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities were comprised of the following

DECEMBER31 MILLIONS 2012 2011

Deferred tax assets

Other accrued liabilities 136.1 112.4

Loss carryforwards 110.4 112.0

Share-based compensation 71.6 82.5

Pension and other comprehensive income 337.8 346.3

Foreign tax credits 47.6 44.7

Debt fair value adjustment 79.4

Other net 138.9 120.4

Valuation allowance 86.8 73.1

Total 755.6 824.6

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment

basis differences 246.8 289.6

Intangible assets 1331.4 1412.1

Unremitted foreign earnings 68.3 98.0

Other net 30.5 60.9

Total 1677.0 1860.6

Net deferred tax liabilities balance L.S..ii 1036.0

As of December 31 2012 the company has tax effected federal

state and international net operating loss carrytorwards of

approximately $1 rxillion $14 million and $95 million respectively

which will be available to offset future taxable income The state loss

carrytorwards expire from 2013 to 2032 For the international loss

carryforwards $46 million expire from 2014 to 2022 and $49 million

have no expiration

The company has -ecorded an $87 million valuation allowance on

certain deterred tax assets based on managements determination

that it is more like than not that the tax benefits will not be utilized

The companys U.S foreign tax credit carryforward of $48 million

has ten-year carryforward period and will expire between 2018 and

2023 if not utilized

reconciliation of the statutory U.S federal income tax rate to the

companys effective income tax rate is as follows

2012

35.0%

2011 2010

35.0% 35.0%

1.9

4.5

2.0

1.1

3.0

2.6

0.5

0.1

0.4

2.0

3.2

2.9

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.6

30.7% 31.8%

Ecolab Annual Report 2012 49



13 RESEARCH EIXPENDITURESand adjustments related to prior year tax reserves These benefits

were partially offset by $5 million charge due to the passage of

the U.S Patient Protection and Affordable Care Law which changes

the tax deductibility related to federal subsidies and resulted in

reduction of the value of the companys deferred tax assets related

to the subsidies as well as the negative impact of internationa tax

costs from opti nizing the companys business structure

IL LI

Balance at beginning of year

Additions based on tax positions related

to the current year

Additions for tax positions of
prior years

Redact ons for t5x pus fions of
prior years

Reductions for tax positions due to

statute of limitations

Settlements

Assumed connect on with the

Nalco merger

Fore go currency translation

Included in ftc gross liability for unrecognized tax benefits balance at

December 31 2012 is $91 million of tax postions that depending on

the ultimate resolution could impact the annual effective tax rate in

future per ods

The company recognizes both penalties and accrued interest related

to unrecognued tax benefits in the companys provision for income

taxes During the year ended December 31 2012 the company
accrued approximately $3 million in interest The company had

approximate $11 million and $6 million of interest and penalties

accrued at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

12 RENTALS AND LEASES

The ccrnpany leases sales and administrative office facilities

distribution canters research and manufacturing facilities as well

as vehicles arid other equipment under operating leases Total rental

expene under the companys operating leases was $183 million in

2012 $l30 million in 2011 and $121 million in 2010 As of December

31 2012 idenifiable future minimum payments with non-cancelable

terms in excess of one year were

LL iNS

2013 108

2014 84

2015 7D

2016 59

2017 49

Thereafter 155

Total

The company enters nto operating leases for veh des whose

non-cance abe terms are one year or less in duration with month-

to-month renewal optons These leases have been excluded from

the table ahoie The company estimates payments under such

leases will approximate $46 million in 2013 These vehicle leases

have guaranteed residual values that have historically been satsfied

prmari by tie proceeds on the sale of the vehicles

Reseurch experrdtures that related to the development of new

products and proesces inc uding significant mpovements and

refinements to exist eq products are expensed as ncurred SUch

costs were $183 rnil ion 2012 $96 million in 2011 and $88 million in

2010

14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Insurance In the U.S the compony has high deductible nsura ice

policies for casuaty and properfy losses subject to per occurrence

and liability limitaticn Globally the company has high deductible

insurance polcies fcc property losses The company is insured

for losses excess of these 090uctibles subject to policy terms

and conditons and has recorded both liability and an offsetting

receivab for amounts in excess ot these deduct bles The conrpany

is self insLired for he alth care aims for eligihle particpatng

employees subject certain deductibles arid limitations The

company determines its liab lit es for claims on an actuaria basis

Environmental matters The company is currently partcipatirg in

environmcntal as sments and remodaton at 37 locations arid

environmental liabil cx have been accrued reflecting managements

best estimate of Jfmire costs Potential insurance eimbursements

are not anticipated cm the companys accruals for environmental

liabilities

Litigation he ccmaany arid cotamn subsidiaries arc party to

various lawsuits cIa ins and environmental actions that have isen

the ordinary couro of business These include from time to time

antitrust commercia patent nfrinqement product liabi
ity art

wage hour lawsuits as well as possible obligat ons to investigole arid

mitigate the effects on the env ronment of the disposal or release of

certain chemca sat stances at various sites such as Superfuni sites

and other operating or closed tacilties The company has establ shed

accruals for certa awsuits claims and environmental matters The

company crront temieves that there is not reasonably possible

hsk of material loss excess of the amounts accru ct related

hese leqa matters Because litgaton is inherently uncertari and

unfavorable rulincs or developments could oct ur there can be no

certainty that the corripany may not timafely incur charges ir

excess Cf present recorded liabilities future adverse ruling

settlement or unfavcm able development could result future charges

that could have muterial adverse effect on the companys resu ts

of operations or cash flows the period in whch they are recorded

The company currertly believes that such future charges relatr

Ic suits and egal cia mx if any would not have material adve-se

effect on the mpays cansclidatd financai posit

cccnciliaton of the beginning and ending amount of gross liability

for unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

2012

89.5

7.5

5.0

3.4

0.8

8.0

7.8

4.5

Balance at end of year

2011 2010
The company is sub cct to various cIa mx and cant ngeridies related

66.2 116.7
to amor other things wor kers compensat on general liabilty

including product ablity automobile clams hea th care claims
7.3 10.4

environmental matters and lawsuits The compar is also subject

270
to various claims and contingencies related to income taxes which

are covered in Note 11 The company also has contractual oblgatons

0.8 68 including lease ccmmif merits which are covered Note 12

8.0 44.6 The company rccorts liablit es where contingent oss is probable

and can be eixcmnam ectimatud If the reaconablu ectimate

50.1

probable oss range the company records the most probable
0.3 0.6

estimate of the oss or the minimum amount when no amount thin

66.2
the range better estimate than ary other amount The company

discloses contingent ability evcrm the lability is not probat Ic

or the amount no estmab or 00th if there is reasonaole

possibility that mncte al loss may have been incurred

93.1 89.5
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Matters Related to ti/age Hour Claims re eased toxnity data for ght ol dispersants

The company is defendant in seven wage hour lawsuits claim ng

violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act FLSA or smilar

state law Of the seven suits two have been certified foi class action

status three seek lass certification and the remaining two have

reached tentative settlements Doug Ladore Ecolab Inc et al

United States Distr ct Court for the Central District of California

case no CV 11-9386 OAF FMOx is putative wage nour class

action brought on behalf of California Pest Elimination employees

The case has been certfied for class treatment and on January

22 2013 the aintifts motion for summary judgment was granted

and the court found that the ass of employees was entitled to

overtime pay On February 22 2013 pursuant to court-ordered

mediation the company reached preliminary settlement with the

plaintiffs which remains subject to court approval The company

has established an accrual for the settlement amount which is

not material to its operations or fnancial position second suit

California state ation has been certified for class treatment of

Calibrnla lrstitutcnal employees Three of th other wage hour

suits seek certificm on of state class of certain Institutional or

Pest Elimination division associates with two of those matters also

seeking nationwide certification of alleged FLSA volations in Pest

Elimination antI lnstfutional One suit so seeks certification of

purported class of erminated California employees of any bus ness

for alleged via ation of statutory obligations regarding payment

of accrued vacation upon termination Tentative settlements have

been reached in the remaining two matters one involving natonal

class of certain independent contractors in the companys U.S Other

Services segment erd the other Californ class of technicians in

the companys Egu nment Care subs diary formerly GCSI These

cases have been class certified for settlement purposes only The

settlement amounts are not material to the companys operations

or financial position

Matters Related To Deepwater Horizon Incident Response

On April 22 2010 the deepwater drll ng platform the Oeepwater

Horizon operated by subsidiary of BP plc sank in the Gulf of

Mexico after catastrophic explosion arid fire that began on April 20
2010 massive oil spill resulted Approximately one week tol owing

the incident subsidiaries of BR plc under the authorization of the

respondng federal agencies formally requested Nalco Company

now an indirect sutsidiary of Ecolab to supply large quantities of

COREXIT 9500 Nalco oil dispersant product listed on the U.S

EPA National Contingency Plan Product Schedule Nalco Company

responded immediately by providing avalable COREXIT and

increasing production to supply the product to BPs subsidiaries

for use as authorized and directed by agencies of the federal

government throuchout the incident Prior to the incident Na co and

its subsidiaries had not provided products or services or otherwse

had any involvs merit with the Deepwater Horizon platform On July

15 2010 BP announced that it had capped the leaking wel arid the

application of dispersants by the responding parties ceased shorty

thereafter

On May 2010 the President appointed retired U.S Coast Guard

Commandant Admiral Thad Allen to serve as the National Incident

Commander in chai ge of the coordination of the response to the

incident at ho natonal level The EPA directed numerous tests of all

the dispersants on the National Contnqency Plan Product Schedule

including those provided by Nalco Company to ensure dec siam

about ongoing dispersant use in the Gulf of Moxco are grounded

in the best available science Nalco Company cooperated with this

testing process ant continued to supply COREXIT as requested by

BR and government authorities After review and testing of number

of dispersants on June 30 2010 and on August 2010 the EPA

The usc of dispersants by the respond nq parties was one tool

used by the government arid BP to avoid and reduce damage to

the Gulf area from the spill Since the spll occurred the EPA and

other federal agenc cx have closely monitored conditons in areas

where dispersant has been applied Nalco Company ha encouraged

ongoing monitoring and review of COREXIT and other cispersants

and has cooperated fully with the governmental review and approvai

process However in connecton with its provision of COREXIT Na co

Company has been named several lawsuits xx described below

Putative Class Action Litigation

In June July and August 2010 in April 2011 and in Apr 2012 Na no

Company was named along with other unatfiliated dole ridants

in nine putative class action complants fled in ther the United

States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiara Parker et

ci Nalco Company et al Civil Act on No 210 cv-01749 CJB SS

Harrs et ci BP plc et al Civil Action No 2l0-cv-O2078-CJB-

SS irelan BP Products inc nt al Clvi Action No 11 cv 00881

Adams Louisiana of al Clvi Action No 11-cv-Ol051 Elrod et

al BP Exploraton Production Inc et al 12-cv-OO9R1 the

United States Dstriut Court for the Southern District of Alabama

Southern Divsion lLavgne et ci BP PLC et xl Civil Action No

110 cv OO222-KD Wrght et al BP plc et ci Civil Action No

110 cv 00397 or the Unted States District Court for the Northern

District of Flor da Pensacola Division Walsh et al BR PLC et al

Civil Action No 310-cv-OO143- RV MD Petitlean at ci BP plc et

Case No 310 cv-00316 RS EMT on behalf of various potential

classes of persons who live and work in or dci ye income from the

Coastal Zone The Parker Lavigne and Walsh cases have since

been voluntarily dismissed Each of the remaining art ons conta ns

substantally Cmi ar allegations generally ci eqing among other

things negligence relat ng to the use of our COREXIT spersant

connection wth the Deepwafer Horzon oil ep The picintiffs in each

of these putative class action lawsuits are generally seek nq awards

of unspecit ed compensatory and punitive damages arid attor neys

fees and costs

Other Related Federal Claims

In July August September October and December 2010 Nalco

Company was also ramed along with other unaffilicted defendants

in eght complaints fled by individuals in either the lJniled States

Distrct Court for the Eastern strct of Lou siana Ezell BP plc

et Case No 210 cv 01920 tiDE JCW the United Stifes District

Court for the Southern District of Alabama Southern Division

Monroe BP et ci Case No 11O-cv-O0472-M Hill BR plc et

Cvi Action No 010 cv OO47OCG Hudley BR plc et Civil

Action No lOmv-0O532-N the United States District Curt for the

Northern District of Florida Tallahassee Divsion Capt Onder nc

BP plc et ci Case No 410 cv 00364 RH WCS the Urited States

Distr ct Court for the Southern Distr ct of Miss seippi euthe rn

Division Trehern BR plc of ci Case No 110-nv 0O4l2 HSO-JMR

or tne United States District Court for tue Soutlier District of Texas

Chatman BP Exp oration Production vi Action No 10 cv

04329 Brooks Tidewater Marine LLC ef al vi Art on No 11 cv-

000491

In April 2011 Nalco Company was also namori in Best Br sh

Petroleum et al Civil Action No 11-cv-O0772 ED Blank

BR Exploration Production Inc et ol ill Acton No 211 cv

867 lED La.l Pearson BP Exploration Production Inc Civil

Action No 2lOcv-863 ED La Alexander et ci BR Exploration

Production et al vii Action No 11-cv-00951 E.D La and Coca

BP Products North America Inc et al E.D La
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bet 2J11 Na co Company was named ir Toips et al

Nin Compa et ii S9 121 25t1 Judl str Court or

ci aci mit Cs in In Noverr ber 2011 Tc tips was removed to

1k Urlted Stat Distr ct urt for the Eastrn trict of ouislani

it Aor iZC2 Nil Corrpan wus namtd In Espong BP Pt

it Cast la 016b3C7 32ne Jud cia stct Cord Parish

Tn ret owe jlclanai und Hogs .Brt Petro eum Expioratuoru

odin tuo Inc et at Case No 2012-22995 CD str ct Court Hart is

County lexa In April 2312 Esponge was rcmovecl to tIe United

Sttc ist ut for ie Eastern District or It siana In May

2012 110 -s rtrroied tithe Un ted Stites District Cc urt for

if Sc.uthc strt of xa In June 2012 the Jud Pint For

Mu tidi tr ct iti.j1ition transfcr rd gan to tte L.r ittd States str ct

c. jtfor Eastcrn Dustrct oIL ouislani

it romp aint Lspong genera leges among other thnqs

thU ant sprsants we causec it II cont nut to cause

nt ifs tct It SV LV nue md/ar earin cipacity The rem ning

cc p1 iints gtner ii illege imong ther thngs ni iger cc and

ur mu ti fjm the ube CORF XT dspeaar tin ct nect

tn tt DEE fW iter Hor ian sp II Th onipia nts scek unspecific

compensat ry and pun tite damage and ttorneys fees and acts

TI Ci atman ice as vrluntiriiy cm sscd

In Jam ary 2012 ilco Company wa named ilong with other

unaffi iated defndants in lop Watei Ctarti rs LL BP P.LC et

al No O165i08 32nd Jdc al District Court Parish cf Terreb-nnc

cii san Th co np nt generally le jes amonc other thinj

negliger cc aril gi oss reg igence mel iting to the Deepwater Hot izon

ci sri anc ue of chemical esperscnts Thc pa nt ffs al ege that

ti nil md di pi.rsants hive harmed the fchrg charter busirn sces

at stek uisoecifled compc nsatory damages pu tive damages md
att arm eys Iei and osts In ..bruar 2012 Top Water Char fer was

ten ovcd to tie Un ted States str ci Courf for tF Easterr District

uisi ma

In Aug ist intl S.ptembe 2012 Nalco Company was named along

with otier uraffi ated dfendants Doorr BP Exp oration

Produ tot ct Case 12 cs 2048 LO La md Icolan

Exi br ition Produc tioi ct ii Cast No.12 cv 2338 CE.D Th

up aints jner ly al jc imong ther ttinjs ntgligencc ar

trirt ibi ty re ating to the Deepwater Hor zon ol spi and use of

chem rsants The complaints seek inspec lied corr pensatory

er punitive lamages

Al of he abcvc referenced cues pcndit against Na co Company

have teen aiim strat ye transferred for prc-ta purposes to

judge the Un ted State Dlstr ii urt for The Eastern strict of

Louisiara th otht.r related cises under in Re Oil Sp II by the Oil

Rig Deepw er Hot zon in the Gulf of Mexii.o on April 20 2010

CvI Actor Ko 10 md 02179 E.D La MDL 2179 Pursuant

to orders sc .cd by Judge Barbier ir MDL 2179 the claims have

beer conso iciafed sevcrmi master comp aints in uding one

ran no Na to mpany and others who res pondi to the Gulf

Sp II 1cnhn isti Btn.1I ant ff ae req tired by Judge

Barbiei tc pr pre st 1esgnating previously-f ed lawsuits that

assert aim tti the B3 Bundle regardless of whether lawsu

named cad JeIendnt namee thi B3 Bund master comp aint

Nalca Comp ry is me eived drift list from the aintiffs sterng

mutt tec drift st identifies fifteen aces thc B3 Bun

sone if whit ire put itive ass actiors Six cases previously iled

aga ns Na to Campany are rot included in the B3 Bundle

Pu nt tat rdr ss ied by Judge Barbier MDL 219 airrant

hirg tc asert ta i.e of action subject to one or more of the

raster omila rats were pcrrritted do so by iii ng short-form

Jo nder It mt-form let is deenaed to be in inti rtent on into

oreor nct ot-r cor ilaintsinMDL l79 rhedeadlie

hrt
iiJ

hort rccr At Api 21.Ct1e rdivduiis

who ha tent ncr tlat ntcricnt It B3 Bundli

Nalco Cc rt pi his ason bal eve tha the indit dudI are

dffercttr.ntt .c tie cit tic ufatvt clic tonsdcscried

abowi Theeilai tii$wtc Ii rtcrvenedir th.B3BundIpceekto

recc ver Famajc fc ii qcd persona inJumios nrc monto it ij

and/or rc pert in me it tc ttic oil c-au eloi

On it 20 Ja tie 13 ot at hr sunnTary iudvnent

agiin tttc ifl ir lit B3 MasfcrCompii nt it thi gr unls

hit ii 3Iaintf ms cr peernted by thc cciprt.henisiie oil

spI spb SE en it firtt the Clean Watt- md i4or al

cant nci cy Plar ci Nalt mis ntitledtc der mmur ty

Iron 3m In ernl 28 20 the Court gnart Na co motior

and dcm se wIt udit tIc Iannc in mster Co nplaint

iss.rtel iga nict Ia .c the urt reid that ich ms wc re

prccmrtc thi an Aatr Act and Nitiond Ce atingency Flar

Becius am tic B3Ma Icr Compiai at remit endinq igaint

cthc.n erdar tic ut Ic is not far

pumpcsc ap il ocr tccfe Rule of Appcl alt Prn..tedur

plaim ft vIl mys alt ret tijof final iudc.mc nt to aapei thc

Court

On April 1Q 2C.12 81 tt Pa nl ifs Stec mit 11 nniittee SC
for MDL 219t el to sor i.reim nary appro boitwo pmcpcsed

clas act on sittli mm moposed Med ci Iicn4 Is Class Act on

Settlcrrer am in conaomlc aral rot nrt Damac cc

Cias At or tti it in suant to the proposcJ settiemenli class

menber igr ifan it .Iiims against BP and other neleasid

parties irc.Iudr Nm Encrgs erv es LP mIcc Holding Conpan

NacoFirnncc dn4 IL Nico Fin nce iloldi js nc Nici

Holding Ii mad ii mpan temtia lass members wee

perm ttc tc cit .u the srtlerrer ts The opt .aut peroci csed

Novembr 1.2012 Tic naitttd potcn.t al ass ncmtes to

rcvokc it it it uf ti thc itt na settiemer apprcva as

enter cc

On Mi 201 ci in inc nun iii approved the Med cal

Benefits Cli sAc Ic Settlc rnent it ii Econc rn am Propt rty

Damages Class Ii St ttiemt nt nearin to considcn thi fiimress

emsonib nes vat lequ of the proposed sctt ements took

eon Novemt 2012 Or Dc ember 24 2Olc the Court

granted nal 41 ml the Econ mm and Prop nIl Damage Clas

Action Settler tnt Januar li2013 the Court granted final

aoprova of the Mec ci Benef ts Class Act on Sett ennent

Na co Co pany Inc dent detendmnts and the other mesponler

defendants ha me nam ti imd party dde lint by

Trar soc an Dceç Dr II no Irit and its mff iatts the Trar sot can

Entities me tic nrrp nt mad Petition of mit As et Leas ng

GmbH et MDL 179 Action 10 2771i ii Apr and Way

2011 the Tram rot ntifr arieron ntemnat al Cor omat on

Hal iburtcn Ener .t imcs L.L.C Weattenford U.S

and We mTh ifltAflcit ai iruc cob tnt se the Crass

Caimmnt hut ci its nt1JL2lT9gi nrt Naic Com any

and other unaff itd cmos dcli ndamt The Cto Claimint

eneralIy allege in ott em hinQs that if thc it found Ia for

iamagns resuitin inn the ee waer Hor iv xplos or oil

and/o sc esporasc It cv arc cm lit ed to indennr or ontm tutror

fmomthc rcsdcfcilmnl

In Apr an .ini 231 sur i.c rf its deft risc tt mim gainst

Nalco mpar urti lair is against thi ro stl aiiaar Is

It tc centen ia Cn any general its that fit

found .h- far in .ec resu ng from the .ei ii itc Hon ioa

expbos..rois rca rcsparse cntiitontuiburon
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or indemnity from th Cioss Claimants
fiscal year-end of the companys international afti lates

Other Pelated AcOrns

In March 2011 Nalca Company was named along with other

unaffiliated defendants in an amended complaint filed by an

individual in the Circuit Court of Harrison County Mississippi Second

Judicial Disfrct Franks Sea Tow of South Miss Inc et al Cause

No A2402 10 228 Circuit Court of Harr son County Mississippi

The amended complaint generally asserts among other things

negligence and str ct product liability claims relating to the plaint fts

alleged exposure to chemical disper sants manufactured by Nalco

Company The plai itiff seeks unspecified compensatory damages

medical expenses and attorneys fees and costs

In August 2012 Jambon Supplier L.L.C and Jambon Marine

Holdings L.L.C Third-Party Plaintiffs petitioners in limitation

in re of Jambon Supplier II L.L.C et al Civil Action No 12-426

ED La filed third-party complaint against Nalco and other

unaffiliated defendants collectively Third-Party Defendants The

third party complaint generally alleges among other things that

one of Third-Parts Plaintiffs employees filed claim against them

in the underlying limitation action In his claim he alleged that he

was exposed to oi and disperSants while working as crew member

aboard Third-Party Plaintiffs vessel during the Deepwater Horizon oil

spill response The third-party complaint assorts that if the employee

suffered injur es rs alleged the Third-Party Defendants are strictly

liable

The company believes the claims asserted against Nalco Company

are without n- erit and intends to defend these lawsuits vigorously

The company also believes that it has rights to contribution and

or indemnification including legal expenses from third parties

However the con- pany cannot predict the outcome of these lawsuits

the involvement it might have in these matters in the future or the

potential for futu litigation

15 RETIREMENT PLANS

Pension and Postretirement Health Care

Benefits Plans

As part of the merger with Nalco the company assumed sponsorsh

the Nalco gualifed and non-oualfied pension and other

postretirement benefit plans The Nalco U.S gualfied pension

an merged intc the Ecolab U.S gualified pension plan effectve

December 31 2012 and certain Nalco employees became eligible to

participate in the merged plan

The company has non contributory qualified defined benefit

pension plar cosering most of its U.S employees The company also

has U.S non cortributOry non gualif ed dofned benefit plans which

provde for benefits to employees in excess of limits permitted under

its U.S pension clan The non-qualified plans are nut funded and

the recorded be cefif obligation for the non qualified plans was $110

million ano $94 mi lion at December 31 2012 and 2011 respextively

The measurement date used for determining the U.S pension plan

assets and obl gations is December 31

Various international subsidiaries also have defined benefit pension

plans Internatonal plans are funded based on local country

requirements The measurement date used for determining the

international pension plan ssets and obligations is November 30 the

The rornpany provides postretirement liea th rare benefits to certa mm

U.S employees The corresponding plans are contributor/ based

on yeai of serv cc md family status with retiree contribut ons

adjusted annually Thc measuierlient date used to detei mino the

U.S postretirement health care plan assets and obligat ons is

December 31 Certain employees outside the U.S are covered under

government sponsoreo programs which arc not reguind to be

fully funded The expense and obligat on for provid ng nternational

postretirernent health rare benefits are not gn cant
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The foIlownc1 table sets torth financial informabon related to the companys pension arid poctrotirement health care plans

U.S INTERNATIONAL U.S P0STRETiREMT
PENSION PENSION HEALTH CAREMILLIoNS

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Accumulated Benefit Obligation end of year 1889.2 $1683.5 896.0 281.5 2773
Projected Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation beginning of year 1892.4 1154.7 978.6 579.4 277.3 159.4Service cost
50.5 46.7 29.6 23.1 5.1

Interest
89.3 63.4 48.3 28.2 12.9

Participant contributions
4.1 3.7 10.0 4.4Medicare subsidies received

1.9
Curtailrnents and settlements

4.8 5.4Plan amendments
24.8 8.3 3.7 1.8 0.1Actuarial loss gain 173.0 128.9 165.5 43.0 0.7Assumed through acquisitions

537.4 6.9 402.8 121.4Benefits paid
75.3 38.7 35.2 26.3 24.6 13.7

4.1 19.8
Projected benefit obligation end of year 2105.1 1892.4 1180.6 978.6 281.5 277.3Plan Assets

value of sian assets beginning of year 1352.1 988.9 612.6 318.5 16.6 19.6Actual returns on plan assets 174.0 7.3 57.3 9.7 1.9
Company contributions

182.7 114.4 52.5 44.0 19.7 8.2
Participant contributions

4.1 1.5Assumed thrcugh acquisitions
290.2 257.6

Settlements

3.5 4.3
Benefits paid

75.3 38.7 35.2 26.3 24.6 13Foreign currency translation

1.5 9.7
Fair value of plan assets end of year 1633.5 1352.1 689.3 612.6 15.1 16.6

Funded Status end of year
471.6 540.3 491.3 366.0 266.4 260

Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet
Other assets

7.0 22
Other current liabilities

9.8 10.6 13.1 11.4 7.4 8.0Postretirement healthcare and pension benefits 461.8 529.7 485.2 376.9 259.0 252.7Net liability

471.6 540.3 491.3 366.0 266.4 260.7
Amounts recognized in Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Loss

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 769.1 690.4 241.3 102.8 12.3 12.9Unrecognized set prior service costs benefits 54.5 33.9 7.1 2.5 1.5 0.3Tax benefit

273.0 251.7 67.1 30.8 5.7 6.2Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax 441.6 404.8 167.1 69.5 5.1
7.0

Change in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 45.1 31.8 6.2 8.1 0.4 0.2Amortization of prior service costs benefits 4.2 4.2 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1Current period net actuarial loss gain 126.2 222.2 143.4 30.2 0.1 5.0Current period prior service costs benefits 24.8 4.3 3.7 1.8 0.1Settlement
2.4

Tax expense benefit
21.3 72.4 36.3 10.5 0.5 1.9Foreign currency translat ion

1.3 6.6
Other comprehensive loss income

122.2 25.0 1.9 3.3
in Includes qualified and non-qualified plans

Estimated amoiisi in accumulated other comprehensive loss expected to be reclassified 10 rret period cosi during 2013 are as follows

U.S
INTERNATIONAL U.S POSTRETIREMENTMILLIONS

PENSION
PENSION HEALTH CARE

Net actuarial loss
62.3

11.1 06
Net prior service costs/benef its 6.9
Total

55.4
10.6 0.3

Includes qunlifwd and nonqualif led plans
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The aggregate projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit

obligation and fair value of pension plan assets for plans with

accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assefs were
as follows

DECEMBER 31 MILLIONS 2012 2011

Aggregate projected benefit obligation 2931.8 2638
Accumulated benefit obligation 2635.0 2378.2

Fair value of plan assets 1972.1 17278

These plans include the U.S non-quahfied pension plans which are

not funded as viell as the U.S qualified pension plan These plans

also include var ous international pension plans which are funded
consistent with local practices and requirements

Plan Assets

The fair value hierarchy of plan assets is determined by using

methodology that categorizes the inputs used to measure fair

value The first category is for Unadjusted quoted prices in an active

market that are accessible at the measurement date for identical

assets or liabilities Level The second category is for values

measured using other observable inputs such as quoted prices

for similar asset or liability in an active market Level The
third category is for fair value measurements based on significant

unobservable inputs Level

Cash and certair equity securities and fixed income Level Valued
at the quoted market prices of shares held by the plans at year-end
in the active marset on which the individual securities are traded

Real estate insurance contracts and certa/n equity securities and
fixed income Level Valued based on inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the securities

Hedge funds and orivate equity Level Valued based on the net

asset values of the underlying partnerships The net asset values

of the partnerships are based on the fair values of the underlying

investments of the partnerships Quoted market prices are used
to value the unde-lying investments of the partnerships where
available

United States

The allocation and fair value of the companys U.S plan assets for

its defined benefit pension and postretirement health care benefit

TARGET
ASSET

ASSET
CATEGORY

ALLOCATION PERCENTAGE
PERCENTAGE OF PLAN ASSETS

DECEMBER 311% 2012 2011 2012 2011

Equity securities

Large cap equity 34% 34% 36% 38%
Small cap equity 10 10

International
equity 13 13 14 12

Fixed income

Core fixed income 18 22 19 22
High-yield bonds

Emerging markets

Other

Real estate

Hedge funds 10

Private
equity

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

FAIR VALUE AS OC
DECEMBER 31 2011

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL
Equity securities

Large cap equity 525.1

Small cap equity 131.0

International equity 161.8

Fixed income

Core fixed income 303.5

High-yield bonds 21.0

Emerging markets 6.1

Other

Real estate 49.4 49.4
Hedgefunds

1271 127.1

Private equity 41.5 41.5
Other

1.7 0.5 2.2

Total
1150.2 49.9 168.6 1368.7

For those assets that are valued using significant unobservable

inputs level the followinq is rollforward of the qnificant

activity for the year

MILLIONS

Balance at December 31 2010

Assumed through Nalco merger

Unrealized gains losses

Purchases sales and settlements net 46.7

Transfers in and/or out

Balance at December 31 2011 $127.1 41.5

Unrealized gains 7.5

Realized gains
3.3

Purchases sales and settlements net 2.4

Transfers in and/or out

Balance at December 31 2012 134.6 $48.J
The company is responsible for the valuation process and seeks
to obtain quoted market prices for all securities When quoted
market prices are not available number of methodo ogles are

used to establish fair value estimates including discounted cash
flow models prices from recently executed transactions of similar

securities or broker/dealer quotes using market observable

information to the extent possible The company reviecs the

values generated by those models for reasonableness and in some
cases further analyzes and researches values generated to ensure
their accuracy which includes reviewing other publicly available

information

MILLIONS
FAIR VALUE AS OF

OECEMBER 31 2012

8.8
Cash

Equity securities

Large cap equity

Small cap equity

International equity

Fixed income

Core fixed income

High-yield bonds

Emerging markets

Other

Real estate

Hedge funds

Private equity

Other

594.2

159.9

223.7

308.9

81.8

32.6

594.2

159.9

223.7

308.9

81.8

32.6

Total

55.5 55.5

134.6 134.6

48.2 48.2

0.4 0.4

MILLIONS

525.1

131.0

161.8

303.5

21.0

6.1

plans are as follows

HEDGE

FUNDS

55.4

25.9

0.9

PRIVATE

EQUITY

10.6

21.0

2.7

7.2
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mp my .S irrsestment fr rteqy or go ices are desig aed

max Si thr ossbiHty of ha ring rut fiCient funds to meet the

ong tern iabi it es of the pens on fund while achierinq balance

betwccn the qoa of asset growth of the plan and keeping risk at

reasonable Is irrent ncorne is not key goal of the plan

The asset Ic ra1 on positior eflects the ability and willingness to

accept rc ativi ly more short term variability in the formanCe 0x

tt p0 5511 ii p1 an portfolio exchange br tne expectation of heter

onq-tc rm rctorr .ower oension costs and better fundc status in

the ono on

bc

Cr LOBE

Cash

Equity
securities

International equity

Fixed income

Corporate bondx

Government bonds

Total fixed income

FEPrLN AOl

LAN AS CI

2012

Cash

Equity securities

International equity

Fixed income

Corporate bonds

Government bonds

Other

Insurance contracts
92.5 92.5

Real estate
9.0 9.0

Total
34 577.9 612.6

Assets if fur tort ci mont pans its be the 51.9 tic ma aged

in eaCh Icj luns irid 1SSI 1il
at or strd1e Jr

Hf

ordance with is tub afro mU procticr Iherefore

rio ovei all targct as of cst rc er ted hr quit

seurties are or icr inter-lati anal for the company some

equity securrtie ow errs Icrel ornr soc tc the all or Th

tuids are vtect dr ego ties hor Os mU cal estats

Investments and SO .s fl-c assets are marr iqed by

insurance nrnpo cci Ii 15 ufi guararitreCl afoot rotor
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-clan assets Thr cci cc is lie in wcjr
ificant ricenti atio of isi
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resiecccd fbi hcr assitii ition at iriternatien pn ion is ots

41
The company lct wile cer on rrvestmentr previniisly classified as

len basset had ci orr rhir tei itics nrc ci astent with livel

22 sets Then ri
sfc ci ts ar or rrarilv funds ins stcd in lr id

20 cecurit e5 TOe 200 hr nir by i5ssif cat in of these investrT ci

42 has been ii rised will ct the pioseritatlon
Then svHn no

transtert im cvc to 13 it cccii fbi cal yEars encli
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Ft ALUL
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OF ii Ii Ic

LHVE OL El LEJ

288.8

5.2 150.7

8.1 117.4

rA LIE

Mt ER

IL

6.7

248.0

10.9 126.1

17.1 102.3

Cc

6.7

248.0

137.0

119.4

the per sion tic ad is versifed across numbe of asset classes and

securities Selected indic dual portfol Os wIthin the asset asses may

be undi to siti wine ma ntaining thi diversifed nature of total olan

assets Tie cc mpans has no significant concentraton of risk in its

.5 plan assets

International

rdt ioi lair asSetc and fair due of tie coixip 155

imtor ri in aset for its defined beret peir5iori
ans arc as

SE

1%

42

23

18

41

Other

Insurance contracts
14 15

Real estate

Total
100% 100c

Cash

Equity securities

International equity

Fixed income

Corporate bonds

Government bonds

lOlA

288.8

155.9

125.5

Other

Insurance coatracts 96.4 96.4

Real estate
10.7 10.7

Other 0.5 3.5 4.0

Total
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Net Periodic Benefit Costs

Pension end postretirement health core benetits expense for the companys oporahons ore as follows

U.S INTERNATIONAL U.S POSTRETREMENT

PENSION PENSION HEALTH CARE

MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Service cost employee benefits

earned during the year 50.5 46.7 50.6 29.6 23.1 18.9 5.1 2.2 2.0

Interest cost on benefit obligation 89.3 63.4 62.6 48.3 28.2 26.7 12.9 9.0 8.8

Expected return on plan assets 127.1 100.6 90.1 42.3 22.5 17.0 1.2 .4 1.5

Recognition of net actuarial loss 45.1 31.8 24.7 3.9 5.7 4.0 0.4 0.2 0.2

Amortization of prior service

cost benefit 4.2 4.2 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.4

Settlements/Curtallments 2.4 0.3 1.6 1.3 0.1 --

Total expense 56.0 37.1 48.6 41.3 35.9 33.1 17.3 10.1 9.1L____
Includes qualified md non-quatfied plans

Plan Assumptions U.S INTERNATIONAL U.S POSTRETIREMENT

PENSION PENSION HEALTH CARE

PERCENT 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 201 2010

Weighted-average actuarial

assumptions used to determine

benefit obligations as of

year end

Discount rate 4.14% 4.86% 5.41% 4.04% 5.02% 4.62% 3.95% 4.80% 5.41%

Projected salary increase 4.32 4.08 4.32 2.74 2.98 3.40

Weighted-average actuarial

assumptions used to determine

net cost

Discount rate 4.85 5.23 5.84 5.66 4.26 5.21 4.80 5.34 5.84

Expected return on plan assets 8.25 8.44 8.50 6.87 6.37 6.22 8.25 8.50 8.50

Projected salary increase 4.08 4.07 4.32 3.59 3.62 3.38

Includes qualified and non-qualified plans

The discount rate assumptions for the U.S plans are developed using bond yield curve constructed from population of high-quality non

callaOle corporate bond issues with maturIties rangincj from six months to thirty years dIscount rate is ostimated for the U.S plans and is

based on the durations of the underlying plans

The expected long term rate of return used for the U.s plans is generally based on the pension olans asset mix The company considers

expected long-term real returns on asset categories expectations for inflation and estimates of the impacl of active management of the

assets in coming to the final rate to use The company also considers actual historical returns

The expected long term rate of return used in the companys international plans is determined in each local jurisdiction and is based on the

assets held in that jurisdiction the expected rate of returns for the type of assets held and any guaranteed rate of return provided by the

investment The other assumptions used to measure the international pension obligations including discount rate vary by counry based on

specific local requirements and information As previously noted the measurement date for these plans is November 30

For postretirement benefit measurement purposes as of December 31 2012 the annual rates of increase in the per capita cost cf covered

health care were assumed to be 7.5% Tfie rates were assumed to decrease each year until they reach 5% in 2019 and remain at those levels

thereafter Health iare costs for certain employees which are eligible for subsidy by the company are limited by cao on the subsidy

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the companys U.S postretirement health care benefits

plan one-percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects

1-PERCENTAGE POINT

MILLIONS INCREASE DECREASE

Effect on total of service and

interest cost components 0.1 0.1

Effect on postretirement

benefit obligation 2.3 2.9
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Multiemployer Plan Savings Plan ESOP and Profit Sharing

the epa iv con butes to multiemp over defined benefit pension

plar urder terms of collective-bargain rig agreement that

cosers cortair of its union represented employees Partcipetion in

the mu 1ierr pinyor pension tian not considered signiiican to the

.omoa cc who Tee risks of participat ng iu employer

an are ditererrt tram single cmp oer pension plans such that

assts cart uted to the multiemployer plan by one employer may

he used to provide benc fits fo employees of uther articipating

cmploers diticna ly it parfic pating employe stops contribufng

to the an the unfunded ob iqations of the an mat he borne by

ftc ronianirg rrticipatinq employers he company contr buted

$0.5 II or 1r ng 2012 $0.4 millior during 2011 arid $0.5 million

durng 010 cc mu tiemployer defined benefit per son plan If the

compa ay et ci si to stop participatrrg in the multomp oyer plan the

eon no may be required to pay the plan an smount based on the

unaerf rnded fa is the an refer ed to as th Ii aaal abi ity

Dur rig lire to rth iuarter of 2012 the company determined that

thdr rail ft re fh multiempiuyer an wa probable and ecorded

an etimat-a aLil ty of $4.7 ml on

Cash Flows

As it err or 12 the companys stimate ct her cUts expected

to hr paid ci of the ext vet yea md ir the aggregate

tor tIre we ci yours thereafter fe the company pens on and

postret rere er 0th care benefit ens are as to lows

MED EARL SuBS DY

ALL PLANS REcEIPTS

Depen nq or plan tundir levels th defneo tienet qua tied

pension an ov des certain fermin iting par tic pants with an option

to receive the penson benefits in the torre of lump sum payments

Th opion rese fed settlement charge of $2.4 million recorded

special pa as and charges in the lourth quarter of 2012

The company currently complarrce with all funding requirements

of its U.S per sion and postretirement health care ens

Based din err asset values as of December 31 201 the company

was recuircd to make cortributions of $38 million to ts Nalce U.S

pension plan lur leg 2012 During 2012 total of $180 million was

tundedi to the Na co U.S pension plan In the first quarter of 2011 the

company mace $100 to Ilion voluntary contribution to its Ecolab

U.S pension plan

The company fund ng polcy for the U.S pension plan is to maintain

an ass bale icC that meets the loncj0erm funding requirements

dentifed by the projections of the pension an actuaries whi

simultaneousy sat stying the tiducary responsibi ities prescribed

ERISA The company so takes into consideration the fax

deduc ibil ty of contribut ens to the benefit ens

The ccmpany is nof aware of any expected refunds of plan assets

within the rrect twelve months from any of its existing U.S or

international pen ron or postretirement benett plans

cgacy Eoab

he coinpc iy pr 4Jlie say eqs plan for substantially

all legacy emp oyees new an benefiting active

mployees in ruir ii ave age pay or legacy Cc5h be anne

pens on he neft is purr ott from the Eec lab 4011k an is of

.Januar 2013 Or this err employee 401kl cc ntribufionc of up

to 30 eIg ble pensaf on are matched l000o by the ompany

and crnplo cc 401 entrib ons nver 35 and up to 5o at digit Ic

compensaf on arc Or bed 50/o by tte company ottier art ye

legacy Ecolab err ployees rer ra the Leo ab 401k plan nut

wi rece ie 100 xtch on 401kl ontribut ens up to at

elg ble cempensa ci and SOy0 nratch on 4Olrk ontribut onc

of over 40c and uy to 8o of sigh compensation The companys

matching contributic are 1000 vested imrnediatr The companys

matching contrt ufic expense amounted to $26 ci II on 2010 $24

millicir in 2011 oid ml hair Or 2010

eg my NorO

the core iiiy
ansi rs J0f nrc car tnibut on prO sharing and

av eqs plan tar iT ccl Ic incy Nalco employee Under tIre

legacy Nil in annie profit then rig ccrntribut curs ire made

to the counts ot nfl ag crap eyees that vary based on he

compon tirran ji en form inca Profif sharing and 401kl match ncj

.ontribc.t ce espe rise during 2012 were $13 lie ii rrrd $17 niil inan

respecti i0y Prof ir in arid 401k watch eq cor tr bution

expense oir Do cr1 2011 through ftc end of 2011 were $2

ml on rI $1 in ir espoctive The company rd payable te the

an of $14 wilier ecere he 31 2012 primarily re ated to profit

charing wh ch wi paid during 2013

Croft sharing conln unit ons will no longer be made for an yeirs

etter December 12 Prior tc January 2013 the eqacy ildo

alan proj dad tar Ti trbing corrfn hut ens of up to 4% of eligib

compenscit err for or rloyees ao elect to contribute to 4011k

secoLmnts Bcqirrn january 2013 eligible legacy Na co employees

rece ye 100 match on 401k contrbutions of up to 4o of

lig ble compensat en arid 50o nratch on 4Ollk contrihutons of

over 4% and up fr of eligib compensat on

16 OPERATING SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC

INFORMATION

Effectve with Ore Nilco merger the company added Nalcos

three legacy Opel it no unts Vtatei Services Paper Services and

Energy Servicesi is idditional reportable segmerts to the merged

companys neporf tic str crcture

Beginnir the quarte of 2012 the Water Servces Paper

Servces and Energy Services reportable segments were renanred

as the Global Water Global Paper and Global Enerqy reportable

segments respecIvely With the encept ion of the water treatment

related busnecs chdngu dsCuc5ed below the underlying strLjc1ure of

the Globa Wafer aba Paper and Global Energy segments erna ns

the same as 2011

Beginning the rst quarfel of 2012 the International reportable

segment was renamed as ttre Internationa Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services reaor table ceqmerrt With the exception of the water

treatment related bins ness change discussed below the under yinq

structure of the lets rn itional earring Sanitizng Other Services

segment remains lb same as 2011

LL DNS
_____________

169

2014 170

2015 171

2016 184

2017 200

2018-2022 1075
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Beginning in the first quarter of 2012 due to changes in how the company internally manages and reports results within its legacy Ecolab

Food Beverage and Asia Pacific operating units certain water treatment related businesses were moved from the U.S Cleaning Sanitizing

and International Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services reportable segments to the Global Water reportable segment The movement of

these businesses did not significantly impact year-over-year comparability therefore prior year reported segment information has not been

restated to reflect this change

The profitability the companys operating units is evaluated by management based on operating income The company has no interseqment

revenues The companys fourteen operating units are aggregated info six reportable segments U.S Cleaning Sanitizing U.S Other

Services International Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services Global Water Global Paper and Global Energy

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing This reportable segment provides cleaning and sanitizing products to U.S markets through its Institutional Food

Beverage Kay Healthcare and Textile Care operating units Prior to its disposition in the fourth quarter of 2012 the Vehicle Care operatinq

unit was also part of U.S Cleaning Sanitizing reportable segment These operating units exhibit similar products manufacturing processes

customers distribution methods and economic characteristics

U.S Other Services This reportable segment includes all other U.S operations of the legacy Ecolab company This segment provides pest

elimination and kitchen equipment repair and maintenance through its Pest Elimination and Equipment Care operating units respectively

These two operating units are primarily fee for service businesses Since the primary focus of these businesses is service they have not been

combined with the companys U.S Cleaning Sanitizing reportable segment These operating units are combined and disclosed as an all

other category

International Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services This reportable segment includes four regional operating units from thE legacy Ecolab

company EMEA Asia Pacific Latin America and Canada These operating units provide cleaning and sanitizing products as well as pest

elimination service Legacy Ecolab International operations are managed by geographic region and exhibit similar products manufacturing

processes customers distribution methods and economic characteristics

Global Water This reportable segment utilizes technologically advanced solutions chemical products and equipment to provide integrated

global water treat mont and process improvement offerings for industrial and institutional markets

Global Paper ThU reportable segment serves the process chemicals and water treatment needs of the global pulp and paper industry

through the use of technologically advanced solutions chemical products and equipment

Global Energy This reportable segment serves the process chemicals and water treatment needs of the global petroleum and jetrochemical

industries in both upstream and downstream applications

Corporate Consistent with the companys internal management reporting the Corporate segment includes amortization specifically from

the Nalco merqer intangible assets merger integration costs and investments the company is making in business systems and structure The

Corporate segment also includes special gains and charges reported on the Consolidated Statement of Income

Operating Segment Information

The company evalLiates the performance of its international operations within its International Cleaning Sanitizing Other Sers ices Global

Water Global Paper and Global Energy reportable segments based on fixed currency exchange rates The difference between the fixed

currency exchange rates and the actual currency exchange rates is reported as effect of foreign currency translation in the following tables

All other accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America and the accounting policies of the company described in Note

The following tables present net sales and operating income loss by reportable segment

Net Sales Operating Income Loss
MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

U.S Cleaning Sanitizing 2992.9 2930.3 2721.9 651.4 556.7 513.9

u.s Other Services 474.6 457.1 448.5 70.8 69.7 71.4

intl Cleaning Sanitizing Other Services 3175.8 3075.1 2899.4 340.8 285.8 254.5

Global Water 2087.4 67.2 235.9 11.0

Global Paper 805.4 33.9 86.3 6.2

Global Energy 2268.0 92.3 360.1 17.7

Corporate
___________ 29.6 459.9 21.6 30.5i

Subtotal at fixed currency 11804.1 6626.3 6069.8 1285.4 735.5 809.3

Effect of foreign currency translation 34.6 172.2 19.9 3.9 18.3 2.5

Consolidated $11838.7 6798.5 6089.7 1289.3 753.8 806.8
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The fol owing tables present the companys depreciation and amortizatior capital expend tires including cap to ized sottw rrc expenditures

and totci assets by reportable segment The Global Water obal Paper and Global nerg mour ts are presented in total discretely

ider tif able amounts by reportable segment are not dentifiable and are not produced inter riall Corporate assets are prir cipally cash arid

cash equivalents and deferred taxes All amounts presented are measured in publi excf anlie rates

U.S Cleaning Sanit zing

U.S Other Services

Intl Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services

Global Water Paper

Energy

Corporate

Capital Expenditures

Depreciation Amortization Including Capitalized Software

The company had two classes of products within its U.S Clean nq Sanitizing and Internat Ic rninq Sarr zing Oth oervices

operat ons wt ih rcmprised 10% or more cosoldated net sales any of th aH h0 Silox of rev 3Sh no prude ts were

approx matel t1% of consolidated net sales in 2012 approximately 18% of consul doted net srles 201 and approximate l010x in 2011

Sa ox ct launcry products were approximately 10/ of consolidated net sa es 2011 and 200

Tt vast majcrity of the companys revanue is dr von by the sale of ts chemical prc ducts j.it any orri spo ding sers icc cons derod

irrcderta to the product sale fhe company has two operating segments IPest ElirTl atin1 Equ prnc Care thin wh the underly rig

revenue driver is tee for service as opposed to chemca products Tofa service re senue at public xchanqe rates for the Pest mnation and

Equipment Core operating units within the companys operat ng segmerrt is shocsr he Sw sther serve based rec enuc ins gnitic mt

Service Revenue

iM LIONS

U.S Ottier Services

Intl Cleaning Sanitizing

Other Services

2012 211

4O1.1
384.5

212.lj
202.4

2110

379.0

183.0

Geographic Information

Net sacs and lorrq-lived assets at public exchange rates by geographic region ac as to cc

Net Sales Long-Lived Assets net

201 202 2012

3551.2 3170.4 7100.3 7202.8

1955.5 1843.2 1908.4 1990.6

721.4 575.7 2377.1 2339.6

321.2 272.5 714.3 687.4

249.2 227.9 580.2 568.3Canada

Consol dated 11838.7 6798.5 6089.7 12680.3 12788.7

Net sales by geographic region were determined based on origin of sale Geographic data for long-I ved sxsc is based On hysic al oi ation

those assets

MiL ON 2012

202.7

5.4

167.9

154.8

163.7

ii 201

199.8 184.3

5.3 5.4

174.0 158.2

5.6

11.0

Consolidated

2012

214.2 163.4 148.7

8.1 4.5 2.5

168.5 176.3 146.5

216.7 21.8

714.5

Total Assets

2012

2146.0 2270.7

162.2 154.2

395.7 347.9 607.5 366.0

2634.6

11 21 5.4

1414.1

2607.9

11082.4

2069.5

297.7 17572.3 18184.7

MILLION Si

United States

EMEA

Asia Pacific

Latin America

2012

5865.3

3027.9

1586.8

849.7

509.0
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17 QUARTERL FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

LLONS EXCEPT PER SHARE

2012

Net sales 2810.9 2958.7 3023.3 3045.8 11838.7

Cost of sales including special charges of $76.0 $3.1 $3.2 and

$11.6 in 01 02 03 and 04 respectively 1614.0 1608.9 1616.4 1644.2 6483.5

Selling general and administrative expenses 989.7 981.7 977.7 971.1 3920.2

Specal gains and charges 41.4 41.6 28.0 34.7 145.7

RET SECOND TH RD FOURTH
QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER YEAR

Operating income 165.8 326.5 401.2 395.8 1289.3

Interest expense net including special charges of $18.2 and $1.1

in 01 and 04 respectively 86.1 63.9 64.2 62.5 276.7

Income before income taxes 79.7 262.6 337.0 333.3 1012.6

Provision for income taxes 35.6 79.2 97.7 98.8 311.3

Net income including noncontrolling interest 44.1 183.4 239.3 234.5 701.3

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

including special charges of $4.5 in 01 5.6 1.1 1.3 3.1 2.3
Net income attributable to Ecolab 49.7 184.5 238.0 231.4 703.6

Earnings attributable to Ecolab per common share

Basic 0.17 0.63 0.81 0.79 2.41

Diluted 0.17 0.62 0.80 0.77 2.35

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 291.5 291.9 292.7 293.8 292.5

Diluted 297.9 298.2 298.6 299.9 298.9

2011

Net sales including special charges of $29.6 in 04 1518.3 1698.8 1736.1 1845.3 6798.5

Cost of sales including special charges of $0.8 $4.5 and $3.6

in 01 03 and 04 respectively 77Q4 860.8 877.9 966.5 3475.6

Selling general and administrative expenses 581.6 609.6 595.3 651.6 2438.1

Special gains and charges 14.6 30.1 23.3 63.0 131.0

Operating income 151.7 198.3 239.6 164.2 753.8

Interest expense net including special charges of $1.5 in 04 13.5 13.1 13.2 34.4 74.2

Income before income taxes 138.2 185.2 226.4 129.8 679.6

Provision for income taxes 44.4 59.0 71.9 41.0 216.3

Net income including noncontrolling interest 93.8 126.2 154.5 88.8 463.3

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.8

Net income attributable to Ecolab 93.6 125.9 154.3 88.7 462.5

Earnings attributable to Ecolab per common share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Per share amounts do not necessarily sum due to changes in the calculation of shares outstanding for each discrete period and rounding

0.40 0.54 0.67 0.35 1.95

0.40 0.53 0.65 0.34 1.91

232.0 231.6 231.9 252.2 236.9

235.9 236.1 236.1 257.5 242.1
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REPORTS OF MANAGEMENT

To our Shareholders

Managements Responsibility for

Financial Statements

Management is responsib for the integrity and objectivity of the

consolidated nancial statements The statements have been prcpared in

accordance wi accounting princ pies generally accepted in the United

States of Amer rca and accordingly include certain amounts based on

managements best est mates and judgments

The Board of Directors acting through its Audit Committee composed

solely of independent directors is responsible for determining that

management fulfills its responsibilities the preparation of financial

statements and maintains interna control over financial reporting The

Audt Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the appointment

of the companys independent registered public accounting firm sublect to

ratification by the shareholders It meets regularly with managemerrt the

internal auditors and the independent registered pub ic accounting firm

The independent registered public accounting firm has aud ted the

consolidated nancial statements included in ths annual report and have

espresxed the.r opinion reqarding whether these conso dated financial

statements present farly in all materia respects our financial posit on

and results of operation and cash flows as stated in their report presented

separately herein

Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

Management repcn fib shincl and ii aintainrig rcte ift

interna control nanc re ortinq as such tern dot ncd

Exchange RuIx ta 15 ft Unjer the super vftor md cc fh the

participation of is flcE cc cnt ccc ludi ig the prir cipal executive offi or

and principal nan of er an eva uat ion of the des gn and openmirnq

effect vermess inerrm control over trnanc roper rig was ondr cted

based on the trirnow rk in lnternvl Centre Integrated Framowr ft

issued by the Corn mit of Sponsor ii Organizations of the Treadwmy

Commiss on Base tho aluat or rdr hc framework ci Inter nil

Contro nteqr rtcd Ii rn work mana ement oncluded that Inter ri
ri

control over fir ar purtin was ffocive as of Dec ember 31

On Oocemtrer C11 Na ci hold ng Company rnrgeu ito ci wholl3 crwrred

subsid icy of ftc rnpany See Noto to thc Consolid ited nanci ml

Statenrencs cor iou nal irfor rriaJor if egav iVy lwnesse lrciz

been inc uded rn ccii gcme nt asessmer it ntor ntrola ovr

financial
rci

orir ja 0ecmt 31 2012

The comp irrys nc er en font regiser public ad Quo ii

PnicewatcrfrouseC me rer has au uteri the effect eriss of tl

comparrya rntci rntr mix nanr rep ir ng cc rolre 31 2012

as state ft ii of vhi hr idoct herc fl

Douglas Baker Jr

Chairrean rod Ch veoutice Oficcr

Oin el Schrnerhel

Ct ef Fr mind Off ocr
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Ecolab Inc

In our opinion fhe accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income equity and of

cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Ecolab Inc and its subsidiaries at December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements for

maintaining effectiva internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the icco wpanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express opinions on these

financial statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in

accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financiel reportnq was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design

and operating elfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessay to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and ii provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation

of effectiveness to future periods are subiect to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the jolicies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopors LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

February 26 2013

Ecolab Annual Report 2012 63



Summary Operating and Financial Data

ECLMLR FIR SHPE AN iFPt 1L/N

OPERATION

Net sales

United States including special gains and charges

International at average rates of currency exchange

Total

Cost of sales ivcluding special gains and charges

Selling general and administrative expenses

Special gains and charges

2012

5865.3

5973.4

35512

247

11838.7 67985

6483.5 3475

3920.2 438

145.7 131

3170.4

2919

6089.7

3013

2261.6

7.5

3.112

787

900

2978

2174.2

671

Gitngincorne 1289.3 753.8 8068 681.3

Gain on sale of equity investment

Interest expense net including special gains and charges 276.7 /4 59 61

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes equity earnings and changes in accounting principle 1012.6 679.6 747.7 620

provision for income taxes 311.3 2163 2166 201.4

Income from continuing operations
701.3 463.3 531 418.7

Gain from disccintinued operations

Changes in accounting principle

Net income inc uding noncontrolling interest 701.3 463.3 531.1 4187

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

including special gains and charges 2.3
1.4

Net income attibutable to Ecolab 703.6 462.5 530.3 4173

Earnings per share as reported GAAP
Diluted cont nuing operations

2.35 91 23 74

Diluted net income 2.35 91 223 1.74

Earnings per share as adjusted Non-GAAPY

Diluted cent nuing operations 2.98 .54 23 1.99

Diluted net income
2.98 54 2.23 1.99

Weighted-average common shares outstanding basic 292.5 216.9 233.4 236.7

Weighted-average common shares outstanding diluted 298.9 242 237.6 239.9

SELECTED INCOME STATEMENT RATIOS

Gross profit
45.2% 18.9 5o.5 49

Selling general and administrative expenses 33.1 35.9 371 36.8

Operating income
10.9 11.1 13.2 11.5

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 8.6 10.0 12.3 10

Income from continuing operations
5.9 8.7 7.1

Effective income tax rate
30.7% 31 29.0 32.5

PINANCIAL POSiTION

Current assets 4892.0 53960 18699 814.2

Property plani and equipment net 2409.1 2295.4 1148.3 1.176

Goodwill intangible and other assets 10271.2 10493.3 1854 030.5

Total assets 17572.3 18 184.7 4872.2 5020.9

Current liabilit es
3052.7 166.3 1324.8 1250

Long-term debt 5736.1 661 3.2 6564 868.8

Postretirement health care and pension benefits 1220.5 1173 565.8 603

Other liabilities 1402.9 1490.7 192.2 288.6

Total
11412.2 12443.6 739 3011.3

Ecolab shareholders equity
6077.0 56667 2129 2000.9

Noncontrollinc interest 83.1 74.4 3.8

Total equity 6160.1 0141.1 233 009.6

Total liabilities and equity 17572.3 18 184 4872.2 020.9

SELECTED CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash provided by operating activities 1203.0 685 9504 695

Depreciation xnd amortization 714 95 3479 334

Capital expenditures
5745 41.7 2605 252.5

Cash dividends declared per common share 0.8300 7250 0.6400 5751

SELECTED Fl 4ANCIAL MEASURES/OTHER

Total debt 6541.9 7636 8456 967.3

Total debt to capitalization
51.5% 284 32

Book value per common share 20.62 19.41 9.16 846

Return on becinning equity
12.2% 21 26 26.6c

Dividends per share/diluted earnings per common share 35.3/o 38 01 28.7 33.1

Net interest coverage
4.7 10 13.7 11

lear end market capitalization
21190.5 16 379.0 11723.3 10.47.4

Annua common stock price range 72.79-57.44 58.13 33.81 52.46 4066 4768 29.27

Number of employees 40860 43200 26494 25931

l3 oI Fr ropeted rnr gcr witl Sal wI cI sCri rl ii psI srr 311 /0 11 /1 il

Ir 4th reer rest Felt reflEct tOed/c tot tics pI citC tO IS rflEi rt
Na

tc rqa
/52 .1 r2 11 tjfa rdes iec barqesF $919 in 2012 580 11 Ca 301 53
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

3130.1

3007.4

6137.5

3141.6

2257.2

25.9

712.8

2801.3

2668.3

5469.6

2691.7

2089.2

19.7

669.0

2562.8

2333.0

4895.8

2416.1

18667

2327.4

2207.4

4534.8

2248.8

1743.0

613.0 543.0

21357

2049.3

4185.0

2033.5

1656.1

4.5

490.9

11.1

61.6 51.0 44.4 44.2 45.3 45.3

2014.8

1747.0

3761.8

1846.6

1458.7

0.4

456.1

1923.5

1480.1

3403.6

1688.7

1302.9

37.0

375.0

43.9

651.2 618.0 568.6 498.8 4456 421.9 331.1

202.8 189.1 198.6 178.7 161 160.2 1313

448.4 428.9 370.0 320.1 283.7 261.7 1998

1.9

4.0

448.4 428.9 370.0 320.1 2837 261.7 197.7

0.3 1.7 1.4 0.6 1.0 1.1 14

448.1 427.2 368.6 319.5 282.7 260.6 196.3

1.80 1.70 143 1.23 1.09 0.99 0.76

1.80 1.70 1.43 1.23 1.09 0.99 0.75

1.86 1.66 1.43 1.24 1.09 0.96 0.88

1.86 1.66 1.43 1.24 1.09 0.96 0.87

245.4 246.8 252.1 255.7 257.6 259.5 258.2

249.3 251.8 257.1 260.1 260.4 262.7 261.6

48.8% 50.8% 50.7% 50.4% 51.4% 50.9% 50.4%

36.8 38.2 38.1 38.4 39.6 38.8 38.3

11.6 12.2 12.5 12.0 11.7 12.1 11.0

10.6 11.3 11.6 11.0 10.6 11.2 9.7

7.3 7.8 7.6 7.1 6.8 7.0 5.9

31.1% 30.6% 34.9% 35.8% 36.3% 38.0% 39.7%

1691.1 1717.3 1853.6 1421.7 1279.1 1150.3 1015.9

1135.2 1083.4 951.6 868.0 867.0 769.1 716.1

1930.6 19221 1614.2 1506.9 1570.1 1309.5 1133.9

4756.9 47228 4419.4 3796.6 3716.2 3228.9 2865.9

1441.9 1518.3 1502.8 1119.4 939.6 851.9 853.8

799.3 599.9 557.1 519.4 645.5 604.4 5397

680.2 418.5 420.2 302.0 270.9 2499 2076

256.5 243.2 252.7 201.7 257.3 195.9 140.5

3177.9 2779.9 2732.9 2142.5 2113.3 1902.1 1741.6

1571.6 1935.7 1680.2 1649.2 1598.1 1321.1 1119.8

7.4 7.2 6.4 4.9 4.8 5.7 4.5

1579.0 1942.9 1686.6 1654.1 1602.9 1326.8 1124.3

4756.9 4722.8 4419.4 3796.6 3716.2 3228.9 2865.9

753.2 797.6 627.6 590.1 570.9 523.9 412.7

334.7 291.9 268.6 256.9 247.0 228.1 220.6

326.7 306.5 287.9 268.8 275.9 212.0 212.8

0.5300 0.4750 0.4150 0.3625 0.3275 0.2975 0.2750

1138.2 10034 10661 746.3 701.6 674.6 699.8

41.9% 34.1% 38.7% 31.1% 30.4% 33.7% 38.4%

6.65 7.84 6.69 6.49 6.21 513 4.31

231% 25.4% 224% 20.0% 21.4% 23.3% 21.9%

29.4% 27.9% 29.0% 29.5% 30.0% 30.1% 36.7%

11.6 131 13.8 12.3 10.8 101 8.5

8301.7 12639.9 11360.4 9217.8 9047.5 7045.5 6432.0

552.35-29.56 53.78-37.01 46.40-33.64 3715-30.68 35.59-2612 27.92-23.08 525.20-18 27

26568 26052 23130 22404 21338 20826 20417

Interest epense net includes special charqes at $19.3 is 2012 and $1.5 ix 2011 ...Nef income attrihutable to nc.ncontrsllinq interest includes special charcies of $4.5 ix 2012

-Earninqs per share as adxsted lNox-GAAP amounts exclude the impact of special qeinsi and charges discrete tax items and for 2011 post merger legacy Nalco activity

All per share shares outstanding ansI market price data reflect tse two-for-one stock spkt declare4 in 2003
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

Ecolabs annuol meetng of stockholders will

be held on ftc rsday May 2013 at 10 am
in the Audtorium of the Landmark Center

75 West 5th Street St Paul MN 55102

Common Stock

Stock trading ymbol ECL Ecolab common

stock is listed md traded on the New York

Stock Exchance NYSE Ecolab stock is 0150

traded on an on sted basis on certain other

exchanpes Opt ons are traded on the NYSE

Eco ab comrncn stock is included in the SP
500 Materials sector of the Global Industry

Classificaton 3tandard

As of Feoruar 2013 Ecolab had 7394

shareholders of record The closing stock

price on the NVSE on February 2013 was

$73.87 per sh ire

Dividend Policy

Ecolab has palo common stock dividends

for 76 consecutive years Quarter cash

dividends are ypically paid on or around

the 15th of canuary April July and October

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Stockho ders of record may elect to

reinvest the livdends Plan participants

may alo elect to purchase Ecolab common

stock through this service

To enroll in the plan stockholders may

contact the p1 mn sponsor Computershare

for brochure and enrol ment form

Governance

Disclosures concerning our board of

drectos polir.ies governance princioles

and corporate ethics practices including

our Code of Conduct are available online

at www.ecolae.com/ nvestors/corporate

governance

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhooseCoopers LLP

225 Soith Sixrh Street

Minneapolis MN 55402

Investor Inquiries

Securities analysts portfolio managers

and represent Gives of financial institut ens

should contac

Ecolab nvestor Relations

370 Wabasha Street North

St Paul MN 55102

Phone 651.293.2545

Fax 651.225.3123

Investment Performance

The following chart assu nes investment

of $100 Ecolab Common Stock the

Standard Poors 500 Index and the

Standard Poors 500 Materials Index on

January 2008 and daily reinvestment

al div dends

150

In 2012 Ecolab began ut lizing compet vc

data from comparison group of 23

companes the Peer Group for

purposes of benchmarking compersation

for certain executives Therefore go ng

forward to provide more re evant

industry comparson Ecolab wi present

total return carculation fo this conpo1te

Peer Group Index in lieu of total return

calculation for the SP 500 Mater aix Index

Further information regarding the self

selected Peer Group can be found below

and in Ecolabs proxy statement for 2013

Investor Resources

SEC Filings Copies of Ecolabs toi rn 10

10 and reports as fi ed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission ire

oval able freE of charge These documenfs

may be obtained on our wcbsite at

wvwa cc ab.com/investc promptly after

uch eports are fled with or furnishi

to the SEC or by contacting

ad nc

Attr Corporate Secret nrv

370 Wabasha Street North

St Paul MN 55102

Emai rriveslor.info eco ab.com

Transfer Agent Registrar

and Dividend Paying Agent
Stoc kholders of rec ord

ry
contact tie

transfer agent Computershare Trust

Company NA to reguest ass stance witti

change crf address transfer of shore

owner ship replacement lost stock

certificates dividend payment or tax

reportir ssues If your Lrolob stock

held hr bank or brokeriqe count please

contact your bank or hi crker for assrstane

Courier Address

Computershare Trust Corxrpany 84
250 Royall Street

Carrton MA 02021

General Correspondence and Dividend

Reinvestment Plan Correspondence

mputershare Trust ompany NA
P.O Box 43078

Pro iide cc RI 02940 3078

Website vrww.computerxtiar e.com/eco ab

or usc the online fom at

www us.ccirxrputershare.r um/Investor

corrtact/eriqu ry

Telephone

312.360.5203 or 1.800.322.8325

Hearing Impaired 312.588.4110

Cornpuferrharr provides lephone

assistance to stockho ders Monday though

Friday from am to p.rnr Eastern fime

Around thH lock serv ce also avail nb

onlirre arid to callers usng touch tonic

telephor

Is

cc

rc
-J

-J

cc

50

Peer Group Coixrpan Es

3M Ce

Agr urn ic

Products and

Chernica crc

Airgas inc

Ashland Inc

Baker Hughes nc

Carneron Internat one

Corp

CeIrnese carp

CF ndustr ies

Ho rips Inc

Danaher coi

du Pont de

Neri ours and Cu

isto Chrrr

iii bar for Co

Ii icr rat ru Paper

Mc ris mntc

Mosaic Conrpany

Nat or weli

Vrco

Potush Corp orir on

Sas ha tc he

PPG Indu tires cc

Proxu Ira

hlurnt crgr Ltd

eu ci Corp

Vs arns Cc

Reduce Re-use Recycle

If you re weed rca tiple sp cx of fri icr cit ci tu Fr nsestrnsnt or ii 0- Help sire

resources P1 axe cont ict pour oker the tr Sr icerit tc rcic iss stir rrddtioi

any dup cute accounts

Air is roses ispeirils ti fri Ar ij mr Ir rrt .r
rrr

rk mm

hIs SA fir
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Douglas Baker Jr

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Ecolab Inc Director since 2004

Barbara Beck

Chief Executive Officer Learning Care Group Inc

early education/child care provider Director

since 2008 Finance and Safety Health and

Environment Committees

Leslie Biller

Chairman of the Board Sterling Financial

Corporation bank holding company Director

since 1997 Compensation and Finance Committees

Jerry Grundhofer

Chairman of the Board Santander Holdings USA Inc

and Chairman Emeritus and retired Chairman of the

Board US Bancorp financial services Director since

1999 Compensation and Finance Committees

Arthur Higgins

Consultant Blackstone Healthcare Partners of

The Blackstone Group asset management and

advisory firm Director since 200 Compensation

and Governance Committees

Joel Johnson

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hormel Foods Corporation food products Director

since 1996 Audit and Governance Committees

Michael Larson

Chief Investment Officer to William Gates III and

Business Manager of Cascade Investment L.L.C

Director since February 2012 Finance and Safety

Health and Environment Committees

Jerry Levin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Wilton

Brands Inc consumer products Director since

1992 Compensation and Governance Committees

and Lead Director

Robert Lumpkins

Chairman of the Board The Mosaic Company

crop and animal nutrition products and services

Director since 1999 Audit and Safety Health and

Environment Committees

Scott OHara

Former Executive Vice President H.J Heinz

Company food products Director since 2009

Finance and Safety Health and Environment

Committees

Victoria Reich

Former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer United Stationers Inc wholesale distributor

of business products Director since 2009 Audit

and Safety Health and Environment Committees

Daniel Sanders

Retired President of ExxonMobil Chemical Company

and Vice President of ExxonMobil Corporation oil

natural gas and chemicals producer Director since

2011 Audit and Governance Committees

Mary VanDeWeghe
Chief Executive Officer and President Forte

Consulting business consulting and Professor

at Georgetown University McDonough School of

Business Director since 2011 Audit and Finance

Committees

John Zilimer

Retired President and Chief Executive Officer

Univar Inc industrial chemicals and related

specialty services Director since 2006

Compensation and Governance Committees

Denotes committee chair

COMMUNICATION wIrH DIRECTORS

Stakeholders and other interested parties

including our investors and employees

with substantive matters requiring the

attention of our board e.g governance

issues or potential accounting control or

auditing irregularities may use the contact

information for our board located on our

website at www.ecolab.com/investors/

corporate-governance

In addition to online communication

interested parties may direct

correspondence to our board at

Ecolab Inc

Attn Corporate Secretary

370 Wabasha Street North

St Paul MN 55102

Other Communication

Matters not requiring the direct attention of

our board such as employment inquiries

sales solicitations questions about our

products and other such matters should

be submitted to the companys management

at our St Paul headquarters

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Douglas Baker Jr

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Martha Goldberg Aronson

Executive Vice President and President

Global Healthcare

Christophe Beck

Executive Vice President and President Regions

Larry Berger

Executive Vice President and

Chief Technical Officer

Alex Blanco

Executive Vice President and Ciief Supply

Chain Officer

Darrell Brown

Executive Vice President Asix Pacific

Angela Busch

Senior Vice President Corporate Development

Ching-Meng Chew

Vice President and Treasurer

John Corkrean

Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller

Thomas Handley

President and Chief Operating Officer

Michael Hickey

Executive Vice President and President

Global Institutional

Roberto lnchaustegui

Executive Vice President and President

Global Services and Specialty

Michael McCormick

Corporate Compliance Officer Associate General

Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Stewart McCutcheon

Executive Vice President and

Chief Information Officer

Judy McNamara

Vice President Tax

Michael Meyer

Executive Vice President Human Resources

James Miller

Executive Vice President and President

Global Initiatives

Timothy Mulhere

Executive Vice President and President

Global Water and Process Services

Daniel Schmechel

Chief Financial Officer

James Seifert

Executive Vice President General Counsel

and Secretary

Stephen Taylor

Executive Vice President and President

Global Energy

Heidi Thom

Senior Vice President Global Marketing

and Communications

James White

Executive Vice President and President

Latin America

Jill Wyant
Executive Vice President and President

Global Food Beverage
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